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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBHE

Results and financial performances EBENVERR 2022 2021
Results E¥

Revenue (HK$'000) WA (FHETT) 2,279,321 2,404,398
Profit for the year (HK$'000) F A (FHIT) 226,909 282,383
Basic earnings per share (HK$) FBREKRBR (BT 0.27 0.34
Proposed final dividend per share (HK cents) 3 &R AREARE GBI 8.6 8.6
Gross profit margin EFI=E 23.7% 23.7%
Net profit margin SR = 10.0% 11.7%
Return on equity (Note 1) A [E] $R== ([ et 1) 14.1% 17.4%
Return on assets (Note 2) BEBRE(MZE2) 8.4% 9.9%
Inventory turnover days (Note 3) FERAEXE(ME3) 98 98
Trade receivable turnover days (Note 4) g 5 WA B R (A F4) 54 50
Trade payable turnover days (Note 5) S IR ERE (M EF5) 57 62
Financial position B AR R

Net current assets (HK$'000) mEBEEFE(TET) 1,090,873 1,162,975
Current ratio (Note 6) mENL KR (H7E6) 219.1% 220.7%
Quick ratio (Note 7) REVLL R (M5E7) 176.3% 169.2%
Gearing ratio (Note 8) BEBELEKES) 21.6% 20.9%
Net gearing ratio (Note 9) FEREABLER(MZI) 0% 0%

Notes:

(1)

Return on equity ratio is calculated by dividing profit after tax by total equity and
multiplying the resulting value by 100%.

SR [B] 3R 3 15 5 T 12 it T B LA 1 s 4 B LA T 72
EFLL100% 5 -

(2)  Return on assets ratio is calculated by dividing profit after tax by total assets and (2) EBEBIIE KIZF £ 55 T L B E 48 58 F 45 15
multiplying the resulting value by 100%. BIL100%:E -

(3) Inventory turnover days are calculated based on the average balance of (3) TFE/FHE R T 1% 17 BT 4205 I B B EE R 55
inventories divided by the cost of sales for the relevant year multiplied by 365 ERL AN B IA365KAFE o
days.

(4) Trade receivable turnover days are calculated based on the average trade (4) B 5N IE E 5K S 1% T B 5 UK 2 TE B A
receivables divided by the revenue for the relevant year multiplied by 365 days. BEIEEFHIMA BFTIA365FKEE -

(6) Trade payable turnover days are calculated based on the average trade payables (5) B 5 ME (T IEE 5K B 1% T B 5 (2 B B I
divided by the cost of sales for the relevant year multiplied by 365 days. BB EE R P R K B IA 365K 51 E o

(6) Current ratio is calculated by dividing current assets by current liabilities and 6) WEHZRIZEGEEER UGB B &L EEFL
multiplying the resulting value by 100%. 100%:15 -

(7)  Quick ratio is calculated by dividing current assets less inventory by current (7) FBHFEGEEEREFER U GEE EHEF
liabilities and multiplying the resulting value by 100%. PR{EFIA100% 55 -

(8) Gearing ratio is calculated by dividing total borrowings by total equity and (8) HBEBEBHRIGIEEHFRL I IESEEDEHEE
multiplying the resulting value by 100%. FIA100%:15E -

(9) Net gearing ratio is calculated by dividing net borrowings (total borrowings (9) FEEBEHLRIZERFH(EELAZRHELRER

net-off cash and pledged bank deposits) by total equity and multiplying the
resulting value by 100%. Net gearing ratio was zero as net cash of the Company
as at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021 was HK$924,579,000 and
HK$864,067,000 respectively.
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Financial Highlights (continued)
MBREE)

Five Year Revenue — by business segments

EFRA—ZERKD B

HK$'000
FHT
2,500,000
2,000,000
1,500,000
1,000,000
500,000
0
Year 2018 Year 2019 Year 2020 Year 2021 Year 2022
20184 20194 20204 20214 20224
Mold fabrication . Plastic components manufacturing Total
HEARIME JEBAAM RS @5t
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
T FET FHT FHT FET
Mold fabrication RARME 692,412 590,786 700,198 706,025 606,235
Plastic components JEEBAR B
manufacturing 1,606,197 1,720,056 1,333,221 1,698,373 = 1,673,086
Total w\Et 2,298,609 2,310,842 2,033,419 2,404,398 2,279,321

FOIEE (%) BRARE 20224 3R
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

To All Shareholders

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), | am pleased
to present the annual report of TK Group (Holdings) Limited
(the”Company” and its subsidiaries together, the “TK Group” or
the”Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2022.

TEN YEARS OF HARD WORK IN EXCHANGE FOR A
CENTURY OF BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT

This year, TK Group celebrates the 10th anniversary of its listing
on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange in 2013. The Group has kept
improving its technology to maintain the precision of its molds
at the highest level in the world as always, and its production
efficiency has continued to improve as well. The high value-
added products and services have been recognized by the
industry and customers, especially in satisfying the requirements
of many leading international brands for excellent quality. These
achievements make us feel proud and encouraged.

In the first five years after listing (2013 to 2018), the compound
annual growth rate of the Group's revenue and net profit reached
13.9% and 23.6% respectively, showing a clear growth trend; until
the past four years, the business environment has been full of
challenges and uncertainties. In 2019, the trade friction between
China and the United States became more and more intense,
and in 2020, COVID-19 began to become widespread around the
world, followed by regional closures and shutdowns, resulting
in obstruction of logistics and supply chains, rising logistics and
production costs, rising raw material prices, and surging inflation.
The global economy fluctuated to varying degrees due to the
impact of local epidemic prevention measures and fiscal policies.
The weak macro-economy has significantly dragged down the
performance of overseas customers, and TK Group's results have
also come under a lot of pressure. Facing a challenging business
environment, the Group has stepped up against the tide in the past
four years, showing strong resilience. The Group's net profit has
remained at above HK$200 million (2019: HK$302 million, 2020:
HK$210 million, 2021: HK$282 million, 2022: HK$227 million), and
net profit margin has also maintained at above 10%. Meanwhile,
the Group has persisted in investing in the development of new
products and new industries despite the challenging environment,
and has successfully explored new direction for engaging in
businesses with potential, adding new impetus to the Group's
future sustainable growth.

TREmEE(E)
R

AANBRRESS([EET ) MARERT
FEER)BRAR(TARE I REWE A
B BB IRTIEE R [AEE])EHZE2022
F12A3MBUEFEZFERSE ©

THEMGE BFERE

H2013FEFERXZMLET  RIIKESF
ERBAETEFRE ANEBETEHHRELT
Bl ARAREE-ERFEERRS
KE - EERAMEERT - SEENEM
LRBESERREFPHORA - LHERE
REEARRAERMHEEmE 2 BFR - Fk
ARG RE R M E5E -

£ LEMEHNESF (20135820184 ) » AEE
WARFAIOFESEREDRESE13.9%
}&23.6% EERBERE  ZREMNF - &
BIRB MBI A THEE M - 20196 - P
BZEREBBORL - NE2020F AR
MR EFRIGEER IR - B2 R 2[R 14
HERER  S3WRREEESAE - ¥R
MAEERA LR - R EHER LA - BIRA
Tt BERESES R Z 0 bR e & B B BUR
FYELRTREENEE - RELCEREER
BHERBIELHRE  RISENEER
WAL AZ DS - ME R AkEAE
FIRE  ASEBTEREANFERME  BR
TRMEM AN -ERFE2EBTA L
(20194F : 3.02EA T * 20204 : 2. 1088
JC ~ 20214 : 2.82{88 7T ~ 20224 : 2.2718
BIT) RN EIEFEE10% A £ - Rk -
RNEEERERERIRET - TRFRERN
Em- MEXFE  KWREBEZGEENN
EBREE  AASBRKROFELERNMD
Eple

RIE® (=A%) BRAR] 2022F
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Chairman'’s Statement (continued)
TEREE(E)

Since its establishment in the 1980s, TK Group has experienced
various market changes, and has understood that the changing
environment is an inevitable law of business. We are especially
grateful to all shareholders who have been in the same boat as
TK Group. Before the listing, the management proposed in the
prospectus that the annual dividend payout ratio should not be less
than 30%. Over the past ten years, since 2014, despite the ups and
downs of the business, we have still maintained a dividend payout
ratio at about 40%, which is much higher than the commitment to
shareholders at that time. In the future, TK Group will continue to
maintain a similar dividend payout ratio and share the fruits of the
Group's efforts with shareholders.

In 2023, while we celebrate the 40th anniversary of our
establishment, the haze of the epidemic has gradually dissipated.
We believe that the worst days have passed, and the overall
market and TK Group will usher in recovery and return to the
track of rapid growth. The original intention of TK Group remains
unchanged. In the future, we look forward to continue to actively
expand domestic and overseas markets with high-precision
technology, and the edge of diversified customer base with high-
flexibility, grow together with customers and shareholders, and
create greater value for the society!

BUSINESS REVIEW 2022

In 2022, the global economy was still be affected by various
uncertainties, including the widespread of the new variants of
CQOVID-19 epidemic, continuously rising inflation, coupled with the
catalysis of the Russia-Ukraine war, adoption of fiscal tightening
policies in economies such as in Europe and the United States, and
continuously surging cost of living, contributing a weak consumer
market. At the same time, the de-globalization caused by the
deterioration of Sino-US relations has hindered the recovery of
international trade, all of which have brought challenges to the
business environment.

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2022
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

The business environment in the first half of the year was
particularly difficult. Affected by continuously surging inflation
and tightening policies of governments around the world, the
consumer sentiment has become cautious and conservative.
In addition, the global supply chain has not yet recovered,
resulting in frequent adjustments in the production plans of
downstream consumer brand customers, affecting the normal
production arrangement and efficiency of the Group, thereby
putting pressure on the profit level. Under the active adjustment
of the Group, together with the timely implementation of strict
cost and internal control, the internal operating efficiency in the
second half of the year has been significantly improved, and the
profit of the Group has been guaranteed while flexibly meeting
the needs of customers. Coupled with the decrease in overall
market fluctuations in the second half of the year, orders from
most customers have become more stable, and orders from some
emerging industries and leading customers in the industry have
increased significantly. As a result, the profitability of the Group in
the second half of the year has rebounded from the low level in the
first half of the year, basically returning to the similar level from the
same period last year.

Facing the changing and unstable environment, TK Group forged
ahead with unremitting self-improvement. Attributable to its
business diversification, and its long-term and deep relationship
with customers, the Group's operating risks were basically
controllable. With the hard power of high-precision plastic injection
molds, the continuous innovation of product solutions have helped
to stabilize customers and developed new customer sources. The
loss and tight internal and capital control has enabled the Group to
maintain financial stability and abundant cash. Under the extremely
challenging external environment, TK Group has achieved solid
operating results in 2022, with the revenue of HK$2,279.3 million,
representing a year-on-year decrease of only 5.2%; the profit for
the year amounted to HK$226.9 million, representing a decrease
of 19.6% from the same period last year. Based on a sound and
stable financial position and strong cash flow, the Board resolved
to recommend a dividend payout ratio of 41.9% for the current
year, with a final dividend of HK8.6 cents per share. Together with
the interim dividend of HK2.8 cents per share, the total dividend
payout for the year was HK11.4 cents per share, in return for the
unremitting support of shareholders.

TRBESE)

FHFNEHRBLERNE - XRERTER
FEERERSEBRANERRE  HERASR
BBEERT - N EEREEE S RIRES
BB THEEREEPNAEEERE
HE - FEAKENLFLERMEEEX
EMLMBEKFERE - EAKENTEG AR
T BRREEENERKAN XA ER
THFHABLERERERS - £EERE
BREPHELNAR - RETAEENFE -
METHEREMGRERLD - KRBHFP
FEEBRE  MoMETERITERERR
FORTEEHRBZEE  fAKET+F
WENENE EELFERURE  EXEER
B EFRBEOZKF -

EHZETBOHRE  RISERKERT
BETE - 2BEAZ TN ERBEERK
BRENEFBE  AEBLCERBREART
T ERRBREIBEANBEEIIET T
BENER I REIBERFEAABTE
B REBEENABREARAEE  SAEE
RIFMRER BeRB - ERAKENIN
ERET  BTEE2022FREEENEE
R - WWASES2279.3B 88T ERFE R
P&5.2% : FAREFEX15226 9B BB + &
EFEREMAD19.6% - ERR FREBENI
MARBNHRET EFGREEHERAE
FEMNRELLEE41.9% @ KPR ERESE
f&8.678 Ml - ERF HR B EFR2.88W - &
FHIEEFIR11.45 - AESERENT R
EAESED o
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Chairman'’s Statement (continued)
TEREE(E)

PROSPECTS

In 2023, as China lifts its strict epidemic prevention and
control measures and realizes a full return to normal, the global
economy will usher in a new impetus. Coupled with the gradually
appearance of the cooling effect of various countries' measures to
curb inflation, the market expects the global economy to recover
steadily. Although, in the past three years, the market has faced a
once-in-a-century pandemic, TK Group has continued to advance
towards the goal of becoming bigger and stronger. In addition to
prudent financial management, it has also accurately invested in
resources for long-term development layout and actively promoted
its five-year plan set in 2020, with the goal of doubling the scale of
its plastic injection molding business.

Diversification has always been an important strategy of the Group.
TK Group has committed to providing customers with diversified
product solutions and enriching product lines, so as to maintain
its leading position as a world-leading one-stop comprehensive
plastic injection molding solution supplier. The Group has closely
followed the needs of the personal consumer electronics market.
It acquired the silicone business in 2021, and successfully
developed a product solution that integrates liquid silicone and
traditional plastic injection molding technology, greatly improving
the plasticity of customer products in terms of appearance design,
comfort and function. The Group is working with many customers
to optimize product details. Some products have completed mold
development and are preparing for mass production this year.
The plant in Huizhou, which was expanded last year, will strongly
support the Group in capturing opportunities brought by economic
recovery. At the same time, the Group will continue to adhere to
the development of diversified businesses, especially focusing
on the development of emerging industries, in order to maintain a
steady and sustainable growth. After two years of hard work, the
Group has successfully entered the large-scale and fast-growing
medical testing consumables and emerging electronic atomizers
industries. Based on the characteristics of the industries, the
seasonal and economic cyclical sensitivity of related products are
relatively low, which is more conducive to balancing the annual
production plan and capacity utilization arrangements, and reducing
business cycle risks. TK Group has also paid close attention to
various emerging concepts, and has started to design molds for
Metaverse-related products and customers.

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2022
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

Mold precision, not only the core competitiveness that TK Group
has been proud of for forty years, but also the hard power that TK
Group relies on to maintain deep and solid business relationships
with leading companies in major industries around the world, is
crucial to the quality of plastic injection molding products. The
Group will strive for excellence, intensify efforts to develop high-
efficiency and precision molds with multi-cavity, improve dual-
colours plastic injection molding technology, and deeply cultivate
integrated plastic injection molding processes to develop more
cost-effective and value-added production solutions for customers,
so as to consolidate customer relationships by leveraging
technological advantages, and develop more potential customers
and product lines to promote long-term business development.

The Group will continue to promote its business strategy of
internal extension and external expansion. In line with the trend
of shifting the supply chain to Southeast Asia, TK Group has
established a production base in Vietnam and deployed further
expansion of production capacity to more effectively meet the
increasing demand. The strategy of internal extension will also
usher in huge development opportunities. Under China's full
efforts to promote economic recovery and intensify efforts to
promote strategy of internal circulation, the Group will focus more
on developing domestic leading enterprises to open up the huge
domestic demand market, and help Chinese brands gain a share
of the overseas consumer goods market with international-level
top quality. The Group is still looking for suitable acquisition or
investment targets to expand its business scope and industrial
advantages.

TK Group has always adhered to the core concept of innovation
and change. In the future, it will continue to strengthen its leading
strength in the plastic injection molding industry chain, constantly
seek breakthroughs and innovations in products and technologies,
accelerate the expansion of operation scale, and seize unlimited
opportunities brought by the global market and economic recovery,
in order to stand firm in the ever-changing market and reach new
heights.

FTHEREE(E)
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Chairman'’s Statement (continued)
TEREE(E)

CORPORATE CULTURE

With a corporate culture unanimously recognized and supported
by the public and all staff, every decision and every order of TK
Group are determined upon thorough consideration in terms of
customers, suppliers, staff, natural environment, the society and
TK Group itself to ensure all parties are treated in a fair and equal
manner, as well as profit maximization. Such culture is consistent
with TK Group's operating concept of “concerted development,
concerted growth"”. In addition, the Group places high emphasis
on integrity, and believes that the “Three Principles”, namely,
“Fairness, Equality and Transparency”, will facilitate our health
development and growth. Under the corporate culture of mutual
trust, all of our staff are able to concentrate on the creation of
corporate value and provision of better services to our customers,
thus protecting interests of the Group and the customers as a
whole.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity
to express my sincere gratitude to our shareholders, business
partners and customers for their full support and trust. | would also
like to give special thanks to all our staff and management team
of the Company for their dedication. After the gloom is the dawn.
With the concerted efforts of the whole group, the Group is full of
confidence in the future development of the industry and business
performance. We will strive to promote the development of the
Group under your trust and support, thereby creating better results
and return for our shareholders and the society.

Li Pui Leung
Chairman
Hong Kong, 31 March 2023
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

2022 was a volatile year full of challenges. Since the outbreak of
the COVID-19 epidemic, economies such as in Europe and the
United States have adopted highly-relaxed fiscal and monetary
policies, and being coupled with the Russia-Ukraine war, which
worsened the inflation problem, the price of energy and bulk
commodity largely fluctuated during the year, and the cost of
living in Europe and the United States kept surging. In addition,
under the impact of the new COVID-19 variants and the escalating
geopolitical risks, the growth of global economies slowed
down, resulting in a fall of consumer demand. The shortage of
supply experienced in the semiconductors market remained
unresolved in the first half of 2022, and this has caused major
automobile manufacturers and consumer electronic product
manufacturers to lower their annual production forecasts. All
the above macro-economic factors has made the business
environment extremely difficult. Nevertheless, the Group, through
the edges of maintaining close relationship with customers,
business diversification and persistently launching new products,
was capable of maintaining stable income. For the year ended
31 December 2022, the Group's total revenue amounted to
HK$2,279.3 million (2021: HK$2,404.4 million), representing
a year-on-year decrease of 5.2%. In particular, revenue from
the mold fabrication business decreased by 14.1% due to the
instability of the automobile supply chain. In terms of plastic
components manufacturing business, downstream segments
of commercial telecommunications equipment and electronic
atomizers performed well and the segments such as medical and
personal health care and smart home maintained stable growth
during the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

BIRE T ()

As the impact of the new variants of COVID-19 on the global supply
chain continued in the first half of 2022, customers had to adjust
their production plan due to the shortage of semiconductors which
made the Group adjust its normal production schedule, impacting
its production efficiency and gross profit margin. As a result, the
Group's gross profit margin fell to 18.7% for the first half of the
year (first half of 2021: 23.7%). For the second half of the year,
the issue of semiconductors was gradually resolved and orders
resumed to the normal level while the capacity utilization rate
improved. With the improvement of gross profit margin driven
by the new products launched by new customers, the Group's
profitability in the second half of the year rebounded from the
first-half year low position and generally resumed to a similar level
as recorded in the same period last year. During the year, the
Group's gross profit decreased by 4.9% to HK$541.3 million (2021:
HK$569.2 million), and the gross profit margin remained at a similar
level as that of last year at 23.7% (2021: 23.7%).

During the year, the Group recorded a profit for the year of
HK$226.9 million (2021: HK$282.4 million), decreasing by 19.6%
over the same period last year. Net profit margin decreased by
1.7 percentage points to 10.0% (2021: 11.7%). Basic earnings per
share was HK$0.27 (2021: HK$0.34), decreasing by 20.6% over the
same period last year.

With the gradual easing of congestion-induced problems faced
by the global logistics, the Group maintained an inventory
turnover day of 98 days in 2022 which was the same compared
to 2021, and the trade receivable turnover days increased by
4 days to 54 days as compared to the same period last year.
Based on a sound financial policy and in view of reserving
funds for future development, the Group remained prudent in
capital management which enabled the Group to maintain a high
level of net cash of HK$924.6 million (2021: HK$864.1 million),
representing an increase of 7.0% as compared with last year. The
sound cash position has enabled the Group to flexibly respond
to the uncertainties and challenges arising from the external
environment. As at 31 December 2022, the Group had sales orders
on hand amounting to HK$814.2 million, which represented a
decrease of 11.3% as compared with HK$918.3 million as at 31
December 2021.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

BUSINESS SEGMENT ANALYSIS

During the year under review, the revenue of the mold fabrication
segment from external customers amounted to approximately
HK$606.2 million, representing a decrease of approximately 14.1%
as compared with approximately HK$706.0 million in last year, and
accounting for approximately 26.6% of the Group's total revenue.

The Group has production lines for ultra-large standard molds and
high-precision molds. The major products of the Group’s ultra-
large standard molds are automobiles components. The clients
mainly include first-tier component suppliers who manufacture
automobiles components for renowned automobile brands in
Europe, such as Mercedes-Benz, BMW and Volkswagen. High-
precision molds production lines mainly produce high-precision
molds with multi-cavity and efficiency, covering the markets
of high-end consumer electronic products and industries such
as smart home, medical and personal health care, mobile
phones and wearable devices. The Group continues to focus on
expert-level molding technology research and is committed to
providing customers with high quality and cost-effective design
solutions. In addition to developing external customers, the
Group also cooperates with the downstream plastic components
manufacturing business partners to provide more premium one-
stop services for the customers.

Over the past two years, the outbreak of COVID-19 epidemic and
the escalation of geopolitical conflicts have interrupted the supply
chain, resulting in global crisis of supply shortage in semiconductor
chips which significantly impacted the automobiles industry.
Automobiles manufacturers lowered their target of production and
controlled their spending, and hence the mold orders of the Group
were affected, and the increase of machine idle time and cost
became obvious in the first half of the year. Through a series of
measures in reducing costs and improving efficiency, the Group's
mold business achieved significant improvement in efficiency
in the second half of the year. Under the pressure of persistent
depreciation of Euro currency, the gross profit margin for the mold
fabrication segment in 2022 decreased slightly by 0.7 percentage
point to 26.4% for the whole year (2021: 27.1%). With the gradual
recovery of automobile industry in the second half of the year and
the growth in demand for products that satisfy the requirements
for reducing the weight of automobiles, the automobile segment
has achieved an improvement of 5.8% in terms of sales orders
on hand as at 31 December 2022 when compared to as at 31
December 2021.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

BIRE T ()

In response to the increasingly severe market competition, the
Group has shifted its focus of development into high-precision
molds with multi-cavity and efficiency which have stringent quality
requirements, endeavored to improve the precision of its products
while committing to exploring new customers and new projects
on high-precision mold, acquiring top notch customers in the
medical health, consumer electronics and packaging industries and
providing high quality and cost effective products that satisfy the
market demand. Driven by the internal circular economy policies,
the Group is in progress of securing domestic brand customers
with international stronghold. At present, the domestic market has
highly recognized and commended the quality and technological
capability of the Group’s products. The Group will continue to offer
high-quality mold products and design solutions to help customers
improve their product quality and production efficiency, so as to
maintain its leading position in the industry.

Against the backdrop that the global economy was greatly
impacted by the COVID-19 epidemic and Russia-Ukraine war, and
affected by high inflation and the monetary policy adjustment
adopted by various countries, overall consumption demand was
weak and customers kept adjusting their production and delivery
schedule as well as the progress of new product development with
reference to market changes. In addition, with the continuation of
trade frictions between the United States and China and for the
sake of minimizing the uncertainties arising from geopolitics, the
trend of relocating the supply chain to Southeast Asian countries
has become more obvious. All of these factors have affected
the orders of the Group’'s downstream consumer electronics
customers. During the year, the Group took the initiatives in
exploring new products and new customers, offsetting the
negative impact resulting from the shrinkage of the consumer
market. Revenue from the plastic components manufacturing
segment amounted to approximately HK$1,673.1 million (2021:
HK$1,698.4 million), representing a slight decrease of 1.5% as
compared with last year, accounting for approximately 73.4% of
the total revenue of the Group.

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2022

HEBRANTIS RS AEEERAIER
RESBERBENZHERSBIBTRA
RAERNBTE - BEMAEEEEANN
5?}5)32%&155 CREER  HEBET B
ROTENEmBFPHTRHESEE - AKAE
M BRFEMISHERZEM - ERBERERK
T AEEEEHREEFEBRERKD
PEREER - R/ AMHISEAREEE
mEE  RileE I EES EERA - KE
BT LEENREERARRRGER

PHEFPRAEDMEREENZ - RER
TTERBELHAL o
%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁf%@i?@]@AH?&H mEs
BREERSENEERAERR - BRREE
HRES  BEFELM Emﬂiuﬂﬁiﬁﬁ
BB R mAEEE - B BXE

SEBRTH - REEBEBURH THE M

HESEBEE R DM ENBERBINRE -
BEAZEFEASETHETHERERP

TS - TN NEBEZFABTESR LT
ERECEEEEMBERNEATE 18
A RIS EEHORALE1,673.18EE T

(20214 :1,698.4B8®EIL) * REFRLLMK
#1.56% [ AREBBLWALT3.4% °



The mobile phones and wearable devices segment recorded a
year-on-year decrease of 19.4% in revenue, which was mainly
due to the weak demand for personal consumer electronics in
Europe and in the United States under high inflation and tight
monetary policies. Some customers’ orders decreased significantly
as compared to the high base in the second half of last year. The
Group endeavored to develop new products made with silicon,
offering innovative product solutions for various wearable personal
products customers, further diversifying the customers portfolio.

The smart home segment and the medical and personal health
care segment achieved stable revenue growth, recording a year-
on-year increase of 7.7% and 3.6% respectively. In line with the
transformational changes to home living brought by Internet of
Things and the persistent rise in consumers’ requirements on
standard of living, the demand for smart home appliances from the
European and the American markets kept rising. The Group has
been focusing on serving two customers of global leading brands
in the industry and has achieved stable growth in the customers’
orders during the year. In addition, the COVID-19 epidemic has
made concepts such as molecular diagnosis and home tests
popular in the market, and the Group had successfully acquired
customers of renowned brands from domestic and overseas
medical segment, covering consumables such as in vitro diagnostic
devices and glucose watchers. Such products were gradually
produced on mass basis during the year. In the long run, there
will be a continuous rise in the demand for health management
from domestic consumers, and the Group will put further effort
in securing customers from the industry, with a view to grasping
the opportunities of development from the medical and healthcare
market.

The commercial telecommunications equipment segment
recorded a significant year-on-year increase of 72.1% in revenue,
which was due to the successful business transformation
of customers and the constant release of new supporting
products, as well as the market success of new series of
products. Benefitting from the established long-term cooperation
relationship with customers, the Group remained as the main
supplier of its customers’ new products and the business prospect
is promising. In addition, rapid growth was witnessed in the
development of overseas e-cigarette market and steady increase
in demand was achieved. The Group's technigue on electronic
atomizers was well-recognized by customers of overseas brands,
and the electronic atomizers segment achieved a year-on-year
growth of 27.0% in revenue.
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During the year under review, customers’ orders in the second
half of the year were more stable as compared to the first half of
the year. Coupled with the fact that the Group adopted stringent
strategies in improving its internal production efficiency, the
Group’s plastic components manufacturing business achieved
an increase of 0.6 percentage point in gross profit margin to
22.8% (2021: 22.2%). The Group expected that the recovery of
global economy driven by the relaxation of measures on epidemic
prevention in the PRC, the higher volume of orders placed and
the increase in the number of new projects would help improve
the capacity utilization rate, allowing further growth in gross profit
margin.

CUSTOMERS OF THE GROUP

As of 31 December 2022, sales of the Group were mainly export
sales and our customers were mainly prestigious corporations and
brands in Europe and America. Customers of the Group cover a
wide range of industries, from automobile to household electrical
appliances to mobile phones and wearable devices, smart home
as well as medical and personal health care. As a key supplier of
molds and plastics of high-end electronic products, the Group's
orders are widely impacted by the launch time, popularity and life
cycle of products of its downstream industry customers. However,
being engaged in the molds and plastic injection industry for nearly
40 years, the Group always sticks to the strategy of client diversity
in order to manage and minimize risks efficiently. Currently, the
Group has been widely recognized as a trustworthy business
partner of various internationally known brands of consumer
goods, including numbers of leading brands in many fast-growing
industries such as smartphones, personal health care and smart
home brand.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2022 was approximately
HK$2,279.3 million, representing a decrease of approximately
HK$125.1 million or 5.2% when compared with the revenue of
approximately HK$2,404.4 million in 2021.

In 2022, the revenue from external customers of the mold
fabrication segment was approximately HK$606.2 million,
representing a decrease of approximately HK$99.8 million or
14.1% when compared with revenue of approximately HK$706.0
million in 2021. In the past two years, the outbreak of the epidemic
and the escalation of geopolitics have resulted in interruption to
the supply chain, leading to the global shortage of semiconductors.
This has severely impacted the automobiles industry and
automobiles manufacturers have adjusted their production target
downward and controlled their spending, and hence the Group's
orders of related molds were affected.

In 2022, the revenue from external customers of the plastic
components manufacturing segment was approximately
HK$1,673.1 million, representing a decrease of approximately
HK$25.3 million or 1.5% when compared with the revenue of
approximately HK$1,698.4 million in 2021. The COVID-19 epidemic
and the Russia-Ukraine war have impacted the global economy
while the high inflation and the adjustment of monetary policies
adopted by various countries in the world have resulted in weak
consumption demand in general. Customers kept adjusting their
respective production and delivery schedules and the pace of new
product development on the basis of market changes. In addition,
the continuation of Sino-US trade frictions has made the trend of
relocating the supply chain to Southeast Asia regions as a measure
of minimizing the uncertainties arising from geopolitics more
obvious and all of such factors have affected the orders placed by
the Group's downstream customers of consumer electronics.
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Gross profit for the year ended 31 December 2022 was
approximately HK$541.3 million, representing a decrease of
approximately HK$27.9 million or 4.9% as compared with the
gross profit of approximately HK$569.2 million in 2021. Gross
profit margin was 23.7% (2021: 23.7%), which was the same as
compared to 2021.

The gross profit margin for the mold fabrication segment slightly
dropped 0.7 percentage point to 26.4% (2021: 27.1%). The
Group’s orders of molds were affected by the global shortage
of semiconductors and the idle time of production equipment
and expenses in the first half year increased. Through a series of
measures in reducing costs, the Group has achieved significant
improvement in the efficiency of mold fabrication segment in
the second half of the year. Under the pressure of persistent
depreciation of Euro currency, the gross profit margin for the
mold fabrication segment slightly reduced 0.7 percentage point as
compared with the same period last year.

The gross profit margin for the plastic components manufacturing
segment increased 0.6 percentage points to 22.8% (2021: 22.2%),
which was mainly attributable to improvement in the stability
of orders in the second half of the year as compared with the
first half of the year. The slight improvement in the gross profit
margin for the plastic components manufacturing segment was
also attributable to the Group’s stringent policy on improving the
internal production efficiency.

Other income for the year ended 31 December 2022 was
approximately HK$44.6 million, representing a decrease of
approximately HK$7.3 million or 14.0% when compared with that
of approximately HK$51.9 million in 2021, which was mainly due
to the decrease in sales amounts of scrap and surplus materials by
the Group during the year.
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Other gains (net) for the year ended 31 December 2022 were
approximately HK$9.5 million, representing a decrease of
approximately HK$1.6 million or 14.1% when compared to the
other gain (net) of approximately HK$11.1 million in 2021. The
decrease was attributable to the mixed result of: (1) the lack
of COVID-19-related rental concessions during the year (2021:
HK$9.2 million); (2) the reduction of lease modification gains of
approximately HK$1.3 million; (3) the impairment loss of goodwill
of approximately HK$6.7 million (2021: nil); and (4) the exchange
gains of approximately HK$14.0 million during the year as
compared to the exchange losses of approximately HK$1.6 million
for the corresponding period in last year.

Selling expenses for the year ended 31 December 2022 were
approximately HK$67.0 million (2021: HK$79.3 million), accounting
for approximately 2.9% (2021: 3.3%) of the total revenue of
the Group, representing a decrease of approximately HK$12.3
million or 15.4% as compared with 2021, and a decrease of 0.4
percentage point in terms of the percentage to total revenue and
this was mainly attributable to the decrease in transportation
expenses resulting from the decrease in sales.

Administrative expenses for the year ended 31 December 2022
were approximately HK$280.6 million (2021: HK$247.0 million),
accounting for approximately 12.3% (2021: 10.3%) of the total
revenue of the Group, representing an increase of approximately
HK$33.6 million or 13.6% as compared with 2021, and an increase
of 2.0 percentage points in terms of the percentage to total
revenue. The increase in administrative expenses was mainly
attributable to the increase in employee expenses resulting from
the annual salary adjustment and the increase in standard wages in
Shenzhen.

Net finance income for the year ended 31 December 2022 was
approximately HK$13.4 million, representing a decrease of
approximately HK$4.7 million or 26.4% from that of approximately
HK$18.1 million in 2021. The decrease was mainly due to the
increase in interest expenses.
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Share of net loss of associates for the year ended 31 December
2022 was approximately HK$2.3 million, as compared with share of
profit of an associate of approximately HK$0.5 million for 2021.

Income tax expense for the year ended 31 December 2022 was
approximately HK$31.8 million (2021: HK$42.1 million) and the
effective tax rate was 12.3% (2021: 13.0%).

Profit for the year ended 31 December 2022 was approximately
HK$226.9 million, representing a decrease of approximately
HK$55.5 million or 19.6% when compared with approximately
HK$282.4 million in 2021.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND RATIOS

The Group maintained a sound financial position during the
year. As at 31 December 2022, the Group had net current
assets of approximately HK$1,090.9 million (31 December 2021:
HK$1,163.0 million). The Group had total cash and bank balances of
approximately HK$1,271.6 million (31 December 2021: HK$1,203.2
million), including cash and cash equivalents of approximately
HK$1,114.5 million (31 December 2021: HK$1,027.6 million) and
restricted cash and deposits of approximately HK$157.1 million (31
December 2021: HK$175.6 million). The current ratio of the Group
as at 31 December 2022 was approximately 219.1% (31 December
2021: 220.7%).

Total equity of the Group as at 31 December 2022 was
approximately HK$1,605.6 million (31 December 2021: HK$1,621.9
million). The gearing ratio as at 31 December 2022 was
approximately 21.6% (31 December 2021: 20.9%).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

BEEREN WO (E)

DEBT MATURITY PROFILE BB B HAR R

The maturity profile of the Group’s borrowings is set out below: AREBEER R RO -
2022 2021
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHT
Within 1 year 1TFLAA 286,472 194,229
Between 1 and 2 years 1220 K 60,543 85,889
Between 2 and 5 years 2E5F A - 59,051
347,015 339,169

An analysis of the Group's key liquidity ratios as at 31 December M2022F12A318 » AEBNETERHES

2022 is as follows: LRSI ¢
2022 2021
Inventory turnover days (Note 1) GFEREESXE (1) 98 98
Trade receivable turnover days (Note 2) B SRR IARSERE(H22) 54 50
Trade payable turnover days (Note 3) B RN ERAE RS (HE3) 57 62
Current ratio (Note 4) ENEL 2 (HfaE4) 219.1% 220.7%
Notes: Htat -

1. Inventory turnover days are calculated based on the average balance of 1. FERABXREDNERFEFHERBRUEHAFENHE

inventories divided by the cost of sales for the relevant year multiplied by 365 ERABIRIA36E5KRAHE -
days.

2. Trade receivable turnover days are calculated based on the average trade 2. EBSRWKEBABXEIIRTHE S EKKIER A
receivables divided by the revenue for the relevant year multiplied by 365 days. BRFENHWABIIA365KTE ©

3. Trade payable turnover days are calculated based on the average trade payables 3. EBSEMNFEASBXHIIRFEHE S EMKIER U

divided by the cost of sales for the relevant year multiplied by 365 days. ERFERHEERABEIAGEKRTH -

4. Current ratio is calculated by dividing current assets by current liabilities and 4. RBLEERETHEERURDEBEFEMBETIN
multiplying the resulting value by 100%. 100%&T& °

INVENTORY TURNOVER DAYS FERAEXE

During the year, the Group's inventory turnover days were 98 days, FRN - AEENFERABRERZISK - B
which was the same as compared to 2021. 2021FWMFEAEREER -

RTSHE () BRAOF 202255 23
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

B E LT (8)
TRADE RECEIVABLE TURNOVER DAYS

During the year, the Group's trade receivable turnover days were
54 days, representing an increase of 4 days compared to that of
2021, which was mainly attributable to the increased sales to
domestic customers of the Group with credit period ranging from
60 to 90 days. Such trade receivables are still within the normal
credit period.

TRADE PAYABLE TURNOVER DAYS

During the year, the Group's trade payable turnover days were
57 days, representing a decrease of 5 days when compared with
that of 2021, which was mainly attributable to the decrease in the
Group's procurement as a result of the decrease in the orders in
hand and thus a decrease in the balance of trade payables.

CURRENT RATIO

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's current ratio was 219.1%,
representing a decrease of 1.6 percentage points when compared
to that of 2021.

ASSETS PLEDGED

Details of the assets pledged as at 31 December 2022 are set out
in note 26(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group mainly operated in the PRC and was exposed to foreign
currency risks arising from various currency exposures, mainly with
respect to US dollar, Euro and HK dollar. Exchange rate fluctuations
and market trends have always been a main concern of the Group.
Foreign currency hedging of the Group has been managed by the
Group's financial controller, and overseen by the Group’s chief
executive officer. In accordance with the Group’s hedging needs
and the then foreign exchange situation, the Group’'s financial
controller would collect and analyze information regarding various
hedging instruments and determine hedging ratio, and the Group's
chief executive officer would then evaluate and make a decision
as to whether to enter into the relevant hedging agreement. The
conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the rules
and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the
PRC government.
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The Group's cash and bank balances were primarily denominated
in RMB, US dollar, Euro and HK dollar. Its operating cash inflows
and outflows were primarily denominated in RMB, US dollar, Euro
and HK dollar. The Group is closely monitoring the exchange rate
movements and regularly reviewing its gearing structure so as to
mitigate the expected exchange rate risk.

RMB EXCHANGE RATE RISK

The Group's major revenue is principally denominated in US dollar,
Euro, RMB and HK dollar, and the Group’s major expenses are
principally denominated in RMB. The Group has not entered into
any agreement for RMB hedging purpose.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

There was no change in the capital structure of the Company
during the year, and the Company’s capital included ordinary
shares and other reserves.

PLANS FOR MATERIAL CAPITAL INVESTMENTS

The Group will invest in capacity expansion and investment
projects to capitalize the potential growth of the Group’s business
in the coming years in the manner set out in the section headed
“Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the prospectus of the
Company. Future funding source is mainly from internal resources.

STAFF POLICY

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had 3,313 full-time employees
(31 December 2021: 3,641) and 321 workers dispatched to us from
third party staffing companies (31 December 2021: 543).

The Group's remuneration policy aims to offer competitive
remuneration packages to recruit, retain and motivate competent
directors and employees. The Group believes the remuneration
packages are reasonable and competitive and in line with market
trends. The Group has put in place a share option scheme
and a share award scheme for its directors and employees in
a bid to provide a competitive remuneration packages for the
Group’s long term growth and development. The Group also
provides appropriate training and development programmes to
its employees to enhance the staff's work ability and personal
performance.
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The Group has implemented training programmes for the
employees to meet different job requirements. The Group believes
that these initiatives have contributed to increasing employees’
productivity.

As required by the PRC regulations, the Group makes contributions
to mandatory social security funds for the benefits of its PRC
employees which provide pension insurance, medical insurance,
unemployment insurance, work-related injury insurance, maternity
insurance and housing funds.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group has made no
material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries (2021: Nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities (2021: Nil).

PROSPECTS

The prospect of economic growth was overshadowed by the
continuation of Russia-Ukraine war and escalation of geopolitical
risks. Nevertheless, the pace of recovery of global economy is
expected to accelerate and the economic activities will resume to
normal following the effects yielded from the measures adopted by
various countries to contain inflation and the relaxation of stringent
epidemic control measures adopted by the Chinese government
over the past three years. It is reported in World Economic Outlook
of International Monetary Fund (IMF), as updated in early 2023,
that the growth rate of global economy is revised upward to
2.9% while the economic growth of China is expected to raise
10 5.2% from 4.4% in 2023. Facing the uncertainties of business
environment, the Group has benefitted from unique advantages
brought by its diversified development strategy. The Group
also implemented the business strategy of seeking progress
while maintaining stability, and continued planning new growth
businesses despite economic fluctuations. In the past few years,
the Group kept exploring new direction of business development
and consolidating its edges in the industry. The Group remains
optimistic to the five-year development plan to double the sales of
the injection molding business on the basis of 2020.
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The Group's operations in Suzhou and Huizhou have grown
to varying degrees, and the Group managed to have its plan
on relocating some production base to overseas progress as
scheduled. The first phase of injection molding plant in Vietnam
has successfully commenced operation by the end of 2021, and
the construction of the second phase has been progressing and
the production capacity will continue to expand. The Vietnam
plant mainly serves electronics customers, and this helps the
Group explore new customers from Southeast Asia as well as
from Europe and the United States, and also provides supply
solutions outside of the PRC for its existing customers. The
Group continues to develop new products that integrate silicon
and traditional plastic injection technologies, offering diversified
product solutions and a rich portfolio of products to customers.
In 2022, the Group has completed the development of molds of
new products for various customers, and mass production had
been made. The Group’s new plant in Huizhou has enhanced its
production capacity of silicon products to satisfy the growing
demand of customers. Liquid silicone is highly abrasion resistant,
light-transmitted, highly temperature resistant and highly elastic,
and such outstanding features allow it to be used in the application
of various optical products, medical supplies and consumer
electronics and in different settings. The Group's newly developed
technology has allowed it to strengthen its unique competitive
edges and consolidate its position as the world’s leading one-stop
supplier of integrated injection solutions. Liquid silicone rubber
(LSR) injection molding has greatly increased the room for future
business growth.
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The Group will vigorously develop the precision mold business.
The Group is capable of fabricating MT1 molds of the highest
precision as defined in the National Standard GB/T14486-2008 —
Dimensional Tolerances for Moulded Plastic Parts of the People’s
Republic of China, which renders the Group's competitiveness
in expanding the Mainland market. At present, consumers have
higher requirements on product appearance, and the application
of dual-colours or multi-colours mold injection technologies to
products has been the trend of industry development. The Group's
expertise in the application of multi-colours materials and its
portfolio of high-precision molds with multi-cavity have allowed it
to produce custom-made and cost-effective products as required
by customers. With the continuous growth of China’s economy
and consumption upgrades, the demand for high-quality and high-
efficiency molds with multi-cavity has ushered in an inflection
point, and the multi-cavity precision mold business will drive the
continuous growth of the mold business. The development focus
of automobile industry has turned to new energy vehicles which
have rigorous requirements on rationalized structure and light-
weight design. The Group's all-in-one injection technologies,
together with customers’ design on rationalized settings, have
made light-weight components possible and effectively reduced
the production time and saved production costs, thus realizing
benefits to customers. The Group will continue to pursue
excellence through demonstrating the edges of precision molds,
proactively riding on the trend for acquiring business opportunities,
exploring potential customer base, and promoting long-term
business development.
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Benefitting from the cancellation of epidemic control measures
in the PRC and the relaxation of related policies, the economic
development has gradually resumed while the Chinese central
government has asked the community to consolidate and further
propel the rising momentum of economic development under
concerted efforts. The state’s strategy of enlarging domestic
demand will create huge potential for market development. In line
with the state’s policies, the Group focused on the development
of medical and health care, smart home and Metaverse in its
domestic expansion. As stated in the “QOutline of the Strategic
Planning in Expanding Domestic Demand 2022-2023" (#&X A 5 &k
& AR E 40 2 (2022-2023)), China will expedite its pace of cultivating
the new mode of consumption and research and development of
smart products, including smart home. The Outline advocates the
promotion of service consumption and the provision of different
levels of medical and health care services. Driven by the favorable
policy and demand, the Group will actively tap into the market
opportunities of smart home and medical and health care. The
emergence of the concept of Metaverse, and the integration of a
new generation of technologies, such as 5G, artificial intelligence,
Internet of Things, and virtual reality, on consumer electronic
products, shall expedite the replacement of wearable devices.
The Group is currently discussing the development of Metaverse-
related products with certain leading enterprises for laying a strong
foundation for mid-to-long term development. In addition, the
Group’s electronic atomizers mainly offered to overseas customers
of leading brands and the business will achieve rapid growth after
making efforts in establishing its presence over the past two years.
For the domestic market, the policy of regulating e-cigarettes has
been promulgated in 2022 and the market will enter into a stage
of steady development with the legalization of the industry. The
Group will be more active in exploring the domestic market.
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Looking forward to 2023, there are risks of recession in the
economies in Europe and the United States; nevertheless,
it is expected that mild growth will be achieved in the global
economy due to the full resumption of normalcy and the
multiple measures taken in revitalizing domestic demand in
the PRC. The Group will maintain its strategy of diversification,
strengthen the development of its business segments with
edges, proactively explore new directions for engaging in new
and promising businesses with a view to maintaining mid-to-
long term growth of its business. Meanwhile, the Group will
ensure its technological lead and keep pursuing the integrated
enhancement of its operation capacity, from mold technique,
product innovation, production efficiency to internal management,
to upgrade its overall competitiveness and consolidate and expand
its stronghold. The management will keep identifying appropriate
targets for acquisition or investment to accelerate its pace in the
establishment of the Group’s business presence while optimizing
the diversified business layout for the purpose of laying a solid
foundation for long-term business development and persistently
creating values for customers and shareholders.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Pui Leung, aged 63, is the chairman of the Group. Mr.
Li is one of the founders of the Group and was appointed as an
executive director on 28 March 2013. He is also the chairman of
the Board and the chairman of the Nomination Committee of the
Company. Mr. Li is responsible for the overall management and
strategic planning of the Group. He has accumulated more than
39 years of professional experience in plastic mold fabrication
and plastic injection molding and also experience in business
management in manufacturing industry. Mr. Li together with Mr.
Lee Leung Yiu, a substantial shareholder and an executive director
of the Company, established Tung Kong Machinery Moulding FTY
in Hong Kong in 1983, and have since expanded the Group’s mold
fabrication business into the Mainland China in 1992 and relocated
the operations to Shenzhen.

Mr. Li was elected the “"Winner of Young Industrialist Awards
of Hong Kong” in 2003 and “QOutstanding Person of Shenzhen
Machinery Industry” in 2004, and awarded “Shenzhen Person of
the Year” by Southern Metropolitan Daily in 2013. Mr. Li holds
several social titles, including serving as a committee member and
the convenor of Hong Kong of Shenzhen Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference, the President of Guang Ming General
Chamber of Commerce (Industry and Commerce), a committee
member and honorary president of Hong Kong Young Industrialists
Council Foundation, the Chairman of Kowloon City District Road
Safety Campaign Committee, the vice chairman of Federation
of Hong Kong Shenzhen Association Limited, the vice president
of Shenzhen Overseas Chinese International Association, the
executive director of Shenzhen General Chamber of Commerce,
the vice chairman of charity committee of Shenzhen Guangming
District and the president of Rotary Club, Tsuen Wan, Hong Kong
in 2000. In July 1974, Mr. Li graduated from Yuanzhou Gongshe
Lulan Primary School in Boluo, Guangdong in China, and obtained
a middle school graduation certificate. Mr. Li is also the controlling
shareholder and director of both Eastern Mix Company Limited
(a controlling shareholder of the Company) and Lead Smart
Development Limited (a substantial shareholder of the Company),
and the elder brother of Mr. Lee Leung Yiu.
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Mr. Yung Kin Cheung, Michael, aged 61, is an executive director
and the chief executive officer of the Group. He is also a member
of the Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Yung has
over 30 years of experience in plastic mold fabrication and plastic
injection molding. He was appointed as an executive director of the
Group on 28 March 2013. Mr. Yung is responsible for formulation
and implementation of the business plans of the Group. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Yung acted as a buyer in National
Semiconductor Hong Kong Ltd. from May 1985 to August 1987. He
was promoted to Component Engineer in May 1987. From August
1987 to February 1989, Mr. Yung served at AST Research (Far
East) Ltd. as a procurement engineer. Mr. Yung joined the Group
in 1989 as the general manager and was primarily responsible
for operation management for the injection molding business.
He has been serving as the managing director of the Group since
2000, and is mainly responsible for business development and
the daily operations of the Group’s business. Mr. Yung graduated
from the Department of Industrial Engineering of the University of
Hong Kong with a bachelor’'s degree in Engineering in November
1983. He also graduated from the Centre of Buddhist Studies of
the Faculty of Social Sciences of the University of Hong Kong
with a Master's Degree in Buddhist Studies in November 2008.
Mr. Yung is also the shareholder and the director of Eastern Mix
Company Limited (a controlling shareholder of the Company),
and the controlling shareholder and the director of Cheer Union
Development Ltd. (a substantial shareholder of the Company).

Mr. Lee Leung Yiu, aged 62, is an executive director of the Group.
He is one of the founders of the Group and was appointed as an
executive director of the Group on 28 March 2013. Mr. Lee has
approximately 39 years of experience in plastic mold fabrication
and plastic injection molding. Mr. Lee alongside Mr. Li Pui Leung
(a controlling shareholder, the Chairman and an executive director
of the Company) established Tung Kong Machinery Moulding
FTY in 1983. He has been serving as the manager whose major
responsibility is the procurement for the Group. From August 2009
to October 2010, Mr. Lee completed the EMBA training classes
of Graduate School of Tsinghua University, China, and obtained a
certificate of completion. In June 2013, Mr. Lee obtained a degree
of master of business administration from the University of Wales,
the United Kingdom. Mr. Lee is also the shareholder and the
director of Eastern Mix Company Limited (a controlling shareholder
of the Company), the controlling shareholder and the director of
Normal Times International Limited (a substantial shareholder of
the Company), and the younger brother of Mr. Li Pui Leung.
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Mr. Cheung Fong Wa, aged 60, was appointed as an executive
director and the chief financial officer of the Group on 27
November 2013. Mr. Cheung joined the Group in July 2002, as
a corporate financial controller and was mainly responsible for
the finance, taxation, audit and investment of the Group. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Cheung had served at Deloitte Ross
Tohmatsu (currently known as “Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu”) and
served as a financial controller for a FORTUNE 500 manufacturing
company, as well as those manufacturing companies listed in
Hong Kong and the U.S.. He has accumulated over 30 years of
experience in the field of auditing, accounting and corporate
finance. Mr. Cheung graduated from Hong Kong Polytechnic (the
predecessor of Hong Kong Polytechnic University) department
of accounting in November 1987. He is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants since January 1996
and a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants since September 1990.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy, GBS BBS JP, aged 70, was appointed
as an independent non-executive director of the Company on 27
November 2013. He is also the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee, and a member of each of the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee of the Company.

Dr. Chung obtained a PhD in Engineering from the University of
Warwick, the United Kingdom in May 2010. In September 2012 he
achieved a PhD of Business Administration from City University
of Macau. He was re-appointed as an Industrial Professor by the
University of Warwick, the United Kingdom in December 2020.
He was awarded a doctorate degree of business administration
honoris causa by the University of Macau in November 2019,
an honorary doctorate degree of science by the University
of Warwick, the United Kingdom in July 2019, an honorary
doctorate degree of business administration by the Lingnan
University in November 2015, an honorary doctorate degree of
business administration by the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
in December 2007 and an honorary doctorate degree of the
University of Newcastle, Australia in July 2006 respectively. He
was awarded by the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
Government (“HKSAR Government"”) the Gold Bauhinia Star (GBS)
on 30 June 2017, the Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS) on 1 July 2011,
and was appointed as Justice of Peace on 1 July 2005. Dr. Chung
was granted the Hong Kong Young Industrialists Award in 1997,
and was further awarded the Industrialist of the Year in November
2014.
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Dr. Chung was the Chairman of the Federation of Hong Kong
Industries from July 2011 to July 2013 and has been serving as the
Honorary President of the Federation since 5 July 2013. Dr. Chung
was appointed as the Chairman of the Vocational Training Council
from January 2018 until December 2019. He is also the Founder
and Chairman of Bright Future Charitable Foundation.

Dr. Chung is a co-founder and currently a non-executive director
of Techtronic Industries Company Limited (stock code: 669), a
company listed on the Stock Exchange, and an independent non-
executive director of Vitasoy International Holdings Limited (stock
code: 345), a company listed on the Stock Exchange, since 24 June
2017. Dr. Chung has been an independent non-executive director
of Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited (stock code: 927), a company
listed on the Stock Exchange, since 1 April 2014 until 22 June
2021.

Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong, aged 70, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 27
November 2013. He is also the chairman of the Audit Committee, a
member of both the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Mr. Tsang is a former partner of
PricewaterhouseCoopers in Hong Kong and China who has over
30 years of experience in auditing and providing support for initial
public offerings and acquisition transactions. Mr. Tsang received
a bachelor’'s degree in business administration from Chinese
University of Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a member of the Chinese
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of
the Chartered Association of Certified Accountants.

Currently, Mr. Tsang is an independent non-executive director of
the following companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange: China Merchants China Direct Investments Limited
(stock code: 133), Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd.
(stock code: 460) and Shirble Department Store Holdings (China)
Limited (stock code: 312). He is an independent director of HUYA
Inc. (a company listed on the New York Stock Exchange, stock
code: HUYA). Mr. Tsang was an independent non-executive
director of Ping An Securities Group (Holdings) Limited (listed
on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 231) from February 2016 to
March 2020, he was an independent non-executive director of
CA Cultural Technology Group Limited (stock code: 1566) from
November 2014 to November 2022.
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Ms. Christine Wan Chong Leung, aged 42, was appointed as
an independent non-executive director of the Company on 20
December 2019. She is also a member of each of the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee of the Company.

Ms. Leung has practiced as a Barrister in Hong Kong for over 15
years. Ms. Leung obtained her PCLL from the University of Hong
Kong in 2005. She was called to the Bar in Hong Kong in 2006.
Ms. Leung has a broad-based civil practice, undertaking work in
all aspects of contractual and commercial disputes, personal injury
and family law. From 2007 to 2012, Ms. Leung has been a part-
time Lecturer of Company Law for the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountant (HKICPA) Practising Certificate Law
Examination and a part-time Lecturer of Corporate and Business
Law for the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Ms.
Leung is also contributing editor of Archbold Hong Kong and
Company Law of Hong Kong Insolvency.

Ms. Leung is serving on various HKSAR Government advisory
committees and has actively participated in many social services
and public offices. She has served a Member of Hong Kong
Clinical Research Ethics Committee from January 2020, as a
board member of the Hong Kong Dance Company from October
2020, Co-opted Member of the Audit Committee of the West
Kowloon Cultural District Authority from January 2021, Member
of the Committee on the Promotion of Civic Education from
April 2021, Member of the Advisory Committee on Post-service
Employment of Civil Servants and Member of the Communication
and Innovation Committee UNICEF from July 2021, Appeal
Tribunal Panel (Buildings) Chairman from December 2021, Agency
for Voluntary Services — Planning & Services committee from
December 2021.

SENIOR MANAGMENT

Mr. Yue Yiu Chung, aged 56, joined the Group in July 2014
as corporate financial controller, and is responsible for the
management of finance, customs declaration and shipping,
information technology, human resources, administration, and
environment, health and safety (“EHS") of the Group. Prior to
joining the Group, he worked for a company listed in the U.S. and
was responsible for the entire Asia Pacific region finance affair.
He has over 30 years of experience in auditing and finance. He
obtained a bachelor’s degree in accountancy from City University
of Hong Kong. He has also been a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants since August 2000.
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Mr. Lu Gong Shan, aged 43, is the general manager of the mold
fabrication segment of the Group. Mr. Lu joined the Group in May
2002, and was appointed as the deputy general manager of the
Group in January 2009, who is responsible for the development
of the mold fabrication business, project management and the
management of affairs in respect of technology, quality and
sourcing management. In October 2013, Mr. Lu was appointed as
the general manager of the standard mold business units of the
Group, and the responsibility is for the overall management of the
standard mold business units. Mr. Lu graduated from Zhengzhou
University of Light Industry in July 2000 with a diploma of high
molecular material machining specialised in mold design and
manufacturing. In May 2013, Mr. Lu obtained a degree of master of
Business Administration in Executive Management from the Royal
Roads University.

Mr. Yim Cham Sum, aged 57, joined the Group and was
appointed as the Operations Director of the plastic components
manufacturing division of the Group in December 2017, whose
responsibility is for the operation management of the plastic
components manufacturing division. He was appointed as the
general manager of the plastic components manufacturing division
of the Group in January 2019 and responsible for the overall
management of the plastic components manufacturing division.
Mr. Yim obtained the Degree of Master of Business Administration
(MBA) from the University of Strathclyde in the U.K. in July 2002.
He had worked in the manufacturing operation management for
over 10 years and has worked of Nypro Plastics & Metal Products
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.

Mr. Lok See Yuen Samuel, aged 46, is the chief marketing
director of the plastic components manufacturing division of the
Group. Mr. Lok joined the Group in August 2009 and was appointed
as the chief marketing director of the plastic components
manufacturing division of the Group. He was mainly responsible
for sales and marketing affairs of the plastics components
manufacturing division. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Lok had
approximately 8 years of experience in Plastics industry. Mr. Lok
previously served as the application development manager of GE
Plastics Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Lok graduated from The Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology with a bachelor’s
degree in mechanical engineering in November 1998.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Cheung Fong Wa, aged 60, is the company secretary of the
Company. Please refer to “Directors and Senior Management
— Executive Directors — Mr. Cheung Fong Wa" for further
information.
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COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE

The Company believes that good corporate governance practices
are very important for maintaining and promoting investors’
confidence and for the sustainable growth of the Group. The Board
sets appropriate policies and implements corporate governance
practices appropriate to the conduct and growth of the Group’'s
business. The Board is committed to strengthening the Group's
corporate governance practices and ensuring transparency and
accountability of the Company’s operations.

The Company has applied the principles as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Part 1 of Appendix
14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). The Company regularly reviews its
corporate governance practices to ensure compliance with the CG
Code.

The CG Code has been revised with effect from 1 January 2022.
As such, this Corporate Governance Report and all the corporate
governance principles and code provisions mentioned herein refer
to those stated in the revised CG Code.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with
all the code provisions as set out in the CG Code during the year
ended 31 December 2022. Key corporate governance principles
and practices of the Company are summarized below.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code"”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct
regarding Directors’ dealing in the Company's securities.

Having made specific enquiry of the Directors, all the Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2022 save for a single
one-off non-compliance incident to acquire 100,000 shares of the
Company conducted by Mr. Li Pui Leung through Eastern Mix by
inadvertent mistake in January 2022 during the blackout period
for the publication of annual results announcement for the year
ended 31 December 2021. In order to avoid similar non-compliance
incident in the future, the Company has reminded all Directors
again the dealing restrictions during the blackout period and the
importance of complying with the Model Code and the Listing
Rules in their dealings of the shares of the Company. Further,
subsequent to the non-compliance incident, Mr. Li Pui Leung has
undergone training on directors’ duties, the Model Code and the
Corporate Governance Code as contained in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules provided by the external legal counsel.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE WRITTEN GUIDELINES
FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY THE
RELEVANT EMPLOYEES OF THE COMPANY

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less
exacting terms than the Model Code (the “Employees Written
Guidelines"”), governing securities transactions by employees
(including directors or employees of a subsidiary or holding
company of the Company) who are likely to possess inside
information of the Company and/or its securities. No incident
of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by the
employees was noted by the Company.

In case when the Company is aware of any restricted period for
dealings in the Company’s securities, the Company will notify its
Directors and relevant employees in advance.

THE BOARD
Board Composition

The Board currently comprises 7 members, consisting of 4
executive Directors and 3 independent non-executive Directors.

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Pui Leung (Chairman)

Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Lee Leung Yiu

Mr. Cheung Fong Wa

Independent non-executive Directors
Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy

Ms. Christine Wan Chong Leung

Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company from time to time
pursuant to the Listing Rules. The independent non-executive
Directors are expressly identified in all corporate communications
pursuant to the Listing Rules.

The biographical details of the Directors are set out under
“Directors and Senior Management"” section in this annual report.
Save that Mr. Li Pui Leung and Mr. Lee Leung Yiu are brothers,
none of the members of the Board is related to one another.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Company fully supports the division of responsibility between
the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer
to ensure a balance of power and authority. The positions of
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are currently held by Mr.
Li Pui Leung and Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael respectively.
Their respective responsibilities are clearly defined and set out in
writing.

The Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for the overall
management and strategic planning of the Group and the effective
functioning of the Board in accordance with good corporate
governance practices, whereas the Chief Executive Officer
focuses on the day-to-day management of the Group's business
and implementing objectives, policies, strategies and business
plan of the Group approved and delegated by the Board.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board has at all
times met the requirements of the Listing Rules 3.10 and 3.10A of
having three independent non-executive Directors (representing at
least one-third of the Board) with at least one of them possessing
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

The independent non-executive Directors bring a wide spectrum
of business and financial expertise, experience and independent
judgment to the Board for its efficient and effective functioning.
They are invited to serve on the Board Committees of the
Company. Through active participation at Board and Board
Committees meetings, taking the lead in managing issues
involving potential conflict of interests, all independent non-
executive Directors have made various contributions to the
effective direction of the Company and provided adequate checks
and balances to safeguard the interests of both the Group and the
shareholders.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each of the independent non-executive Directors of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all independent non-executive Directors to be
independent in light of the independence guidelines set out in the
said Listing Rules.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TERERME(E)

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS
AND NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All Directors are appointed for a specific term, subject to renewal
upon expiry of the existing term. Each executive Director is
engaged on a service agreement for a term of 3 years, which
may be terminated by either party by not less than 3 months’
written notice. Each of the independent non-executive Directors is
appointed for a term of 3 years.

The procedure and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of Directors are laid down in the Company’s Memorandum
and Articles of Association (the “Memorandum and Articles of
Association”). The Nomination Committee is responsible for
reviewing Board composition, monitoring the appointment of
directors and assessing the independent non-executive Directors.

According to the Memorandum and Articles of Association, one-
third of the Directors for the time being (if their number is not a
multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than one-
third) shall retire from office by rotation at each annual general
meeting provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement
at an annual general meeting at least once every three years. In
addition, any new Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy in the Board shall hold office only until the first general
meeting after appointment, and any new Director appointed by the
Board as an addition to the Board shall hold office until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company. The retiring
Directors are eligible for re-election by the shareholders at the
respective general meetings.

RESPONSIBILITIES, ACCOUNTABILITIES
AND CONTRIBUTIONS OF THE BOARD AND
MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company
and oversees the Group's businesses, strategic decisions and
performance. The Board is also responsible for implementing
policies in relation to financial matters, which include risk
management and internal controls and compliance, if applicable.
In addition, the Board reviews the financial performance of the
Group, approves investment proposals, nomination of Directors
to the Board and appointment of key management personnel.
These functions are carried out either directly by the Board or
through Board committees such as Audit Committee, Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee.
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All Directors are aware of their collective and individual
responsibilities to the shareholders of the Company, the duties
to act honestly and in good faith, in compliance with applicable
laws and regulations and in the interests of the Company and its
shareholders at all times and to avoid conflicts of interests.

All Directors have timely access to all relevant information as well
as the advice and services of the Company Secretary and senior
management, with a view to ensuring compliance with Board
procedures and all applicable laws and regulations. Any Director
may request for independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company's expenses, upon reasonable
request made to the Board.

The Board has delegated to the Audit Committee the responsibility
for performing corporate governance functions set out in the code
provision A.2 of Part 2 of the CG Code.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee has reviewed
and monitored the Company’s corporate governance policies and
practices, the training and continuous professional development
of Directors and senior management, the Company's policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
the compliance with the Model Code and the Employees Written
Guidelines, and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.
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The Board gives clear directions as to the powers delegated to the
management for the management and administration functions of
the Group, in particular, with respect to the circumstances where
management should report back and obtain prior approval from the
Board before making decisions or entering into any commitments
on behalf of the Group. Matters which are specifically reserved to
the full Board for decision are those involving a conflict of interest
of a substantial shareholder or a Director, material acquisitions
and disposal of assets, corporate or financial restructuring, share
issuance and distribution of dividend, and approval of financial
results and corporate strategies. The Board will review those
issues on a periodic basis to ensure that they remain appropriate to
the needs of the Group.

CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF
DIRECTORS

Each newly appointed Director shall receive induction on the first
occasion of his/her appointment to ensure he/she has appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company and
he/she is fully aware of Director’'s responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Pursuant to code provision C.1.4 of Part 2 of the CG Code,
all directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
The existing directors are continually updated on changes
and developments to the Group's business and on the latest
developments in the laws, rules and regulations relating to
Directors’ duties and responsibilities. Directors’ training is an
ongoing process. All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant
training courses at the Company’'s expenses. Directors are
requested to provide their training records to the Company for
records.
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During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Directors have
complied with the code provision C.1.4 of Part 2 of the CG Code on
participation in continuous professional training as follows:

Name of Director

EEgE

Executive Directors: HITEF -

Mr. Li Pui Leung FMREE

Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael SEMNGLE

Mr. Lee Leung Yiu TRBEE

Mr. Cheung Fong Wa RS ESLA
Independent non-executive Directors: BUFNTEF -
Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy EEFEL
Ms. Christine Wan Chong Leung PB4

Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong BEN KA

a: Directors attended a training session conducted by the Company relating to
directors’ duties and responsibilities under Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
the Listing Rules and other applicable laws and regulations.

b:  Directors received regular briefings and updates from the Company Secretary/
the Company’s management on the Group’s business, operations and corporate

governance matters.

G Directors attended seminars/forums, which are relevant to their duties and

responsibilities, organised by professional firms/institutions.

d: Directors read technical bulletins, periodicals and other publications on subjects
relevant to the Group and on their responsibilities and obligations under the
Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.
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DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE RECORDS

The attendance records of each Director at the Board and Board
committees meetings and the general meeting of the Company
held during the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out below:

Name of director Board
BEfE Egg
Executive Directors: HITEE :

Mr. Li Pui Leung FHREE L
Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael SEALE 77
Mr. Lee Leung Yiu FRBEE 77
Mr. Cheung Fong Wa REERE 7
Independent non-executive Directors: BUIRTEE

Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy ELTET 7
Ms. Christine Wan Chong Leung 2EUL+ 17
Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong BELTE 17

In addition, the Chairman of the Board held one meeting with the
independent non-executive Directors without the presence of the
other Directors during the year under review.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board established three committees, namely, the Nomination
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee,
for overseeing particular aspects of the Company's affairs. All
Board committees of the Company are established with defined
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The
terms of reference of the Board committees are posted on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange's website and are
available to shareholders upon request. All the Board committees
should report to the Board on their decisions or recommendations
made. All Board committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.
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The Nomination Committee currently comprises 4 members,
namely, Mr. Li Pui Leung (Chairman), Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy,
Ms. Christine Wan Chong Leung and Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong, the
majority of which are independent non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee is responsible to review the structure,
size and composition (including skills, knowledge and experience)
of the Board at least once in any financial year and to make
recommendation on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy.

To ensure changes to the Board composition can be managed
without undue disruption, the Company has adopted a Director
Nomination Policy. The Policy includes a formal, considered
and transparent procedure for selection, appointment and
reappointment of Directors, as well as plans in place for orderly
succession (if necessary), including periodical review of such
plans.

During the identification of suitable individuals, to ensure the
effective carrying out of the responsibilities by the Board, the
Nomination Committee will consider criteria set out as below,
including but not limited to:

e the integrity, experience, skills and professional knowledge;

e a balance of skills, experience and diversity appropriate to the
requirements of the Company’s business;

e adequate amount of time and effort devoted to the Company;

e contribution to the diversity of the Board;

e participating in Board meetings to bring an independent
judgment on issues of strategy, policy, performance,
accountability, resources, key appointments and standards of
conducts;

e taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests arise;
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e bringing a range of business and financial experience to
the Board, giving the Board and any Committees on which
he or she serves the benefit of his or her skills, expertise,
varied backgrounds and qualifications and diversity through
attendance and participation in the Board/Committee
meetings; and

e scrutinising the Company's performance in achieving agreed
corporate goals and objectives, and monitoring the reporting of
performance.

The Committee identifies suitable individual qualified to become
Board members and makes recommendation to the Board on
relevant matters relating to the appointment of a new Director
(to be an additional Director or fill a casual vacancy as and when
it arises) or any re-appointment of Directors. External recruitment
professionals might be engaged to carry out selection process
when necessary.

The Company believes that diversity underpins the successful
operation on an effective Board and embraces diversity as a
means of attaining its strategic objectives. According to the
diversity policy of the Board adopted by the Company, the
Nomination Committee is also responsible for reviewing the policy,
developing and reviewing measurable objectives (including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service)
for implementing the policy, and monitoring the progress on
achieving the measurable objectives set to ensure the continued
effectiveness of the Board. The Board aims to appoint at least
one Director of different gender at any given time to join the
Board when selecting and making recommendation on suitable
candidates for Board appointments. Going forward, the Board will
continue its efforts in ensuring that appropriate balance of gender
diversity is achieved with reference to stakeholders’ expectation
and international and local recommended best practices, with the
ultimate goal of bringing additional female to the Board where
suitable opportunity arises.
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During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company has
achieved measurable objectives including (i) at least one-third of
the Board shall be independent non-executive Directors; (ii) at least
one Director is female; (iii) at least one Director shall have obtained
accounting or other professional qualifications; and (iv) at least
one Director shall have relevant experience in the mold fabrication
and plastic manufacturing industry. As at 31 December 2022, the
ratio of male and female in the Company’s workforce (including the
Directors and senior management) is 58% and 42 %, respectively,
representing a male-to-female ratio of 1.4:1. As such, the Board
considers that the Company’s workforce has achieved gender
diversity between males and females.

To ensure the effectiveness of this Policy, the Nomination
Committee will, as appropriate, review the Nomination Policy,
discuss any revisions that may be required and recommend any
such revisions to the Board for consideration and approval. The
Company believes that greater diversity of Directors is good
for corporate governance and is committed to attract and retain
candidate(s) for Board with a combination of competencies from
the widest possible pool of available talents; and to increase
diversity at the Board level as an essential element in maintaining
the Company’s competitive advantage. The Board will review the
implementation and effectiveness of the Nomination Policy on an
annual basis in accordance with code provision B.1.3. of Part 2 of
the CG Code.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Nomination
Committee has held 1 meeting (the attendance records of
each Committee member are set out in above section headed
“Directors’ Attendance Records”) and performed the following
major works:

— Review of the policy for the nomination of Directors;

— Review of the structure, size and composition of the Board to
ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience
appropriate to the requirements for the business of the Group;

— Recommendation of the re-election of the retiring Directors
standing for re-election at the 2022 annual general meeting;
and

— Assessment of the independence of all the Company’s
independent non-executive Directors.
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The Remuneration Committee currently comprises 4 members,
namely, Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy (Chairman), Mr. Yung Kin Cheung
Michael, Ms. Christine Wan Chong Leung and Mr. Tsang Wah
Kwong, the majority of which are independent non-executive
Directors.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a year. The
primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s remuneration
policy and structure and reviewing and approving remuneration
proposals of all Directors and the senior management. The
Remuneration Committee is also responsible for establishing
transparent procedures for developing such remuneration policy
and structure to ensure that no Director or any of his associates
will participate in deciding his/her own remuneration, which
remuneration will be determined by reference to the performance
of the individual and the Company as well as market practice and
conditions.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Remuneration
Committee has held 2 meetings (the attendance records of
each Committee member are set out in above section headed
“Directors’ Attendance Records”) and performed the following
major works:

— Review of the remuneration policy and structure of the Group;
— Assessment of the performance of executive Directors;

— Review of the remuneration package of Directors and senior
management; and

— Consideration of the bonus payable to Directors and senior
management for the year 2021 and the proposed salary
increment for the year 2022.

The Remuneration Committee also reviewed matters relating
to share schemes under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules and
the grant of awards pursuant to the share award scheme of
the Company (the “Share Award Scheme”). Award shares are
granted to selected participants after having taken into account
the performance of the Group and the selected participant’s
contribution for the relevant financial period, such that relevant
performance targets have already been met before any grant is
decided to be made. Accordingly, there is no performance target
stipulated as a condition to vesting of the awards granted to the
senior management of the Company. The purpose of the Share
Award Scheme is to enable the Company to grant awards to
selected participants as recognition of the contribution by the
Group’s personnel and to provide them with incentives to retain
them for the continual operation and development of the Group.
The Remuneration Committee is of the view that the grant of the
awards will provide incentives to the senior management to make
contribution to the growth of the Group, and the vesting period
of the awarded shares can safeguard the interest of the Group
to allow the Group to retain contributing personnel and make the
grant of the award shares align with the purpose of the Share
Award Scheme.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

The Remuneration Committee has adopted the recommendation
model described in provision E.1.2(c)(ii) of Part 2 of the CG Code.

Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of Part 2 of the CG Code, the
annual remuneration of the members of the senior management,
including those members of senior management who are also
executive Directors, by band for the year ended 31 December 2022
is set out below:

Remuneration band (HK$)
AR (B oT)

2,000,001-2,500,000
2,500,001-3,000,000
3,000,001-3,500,000
3,500,001-4,000,000
4,000,001-4,500,000
4,500,001-5,000,000

Details of the remuneration of each Director for the year ended 31
December 2022 are set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee currently comprises 3 members, namely,
Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong (Chairman), Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy and
Ms. Christine Wan Chong Leung. All of them are independent non-
executive Directors.

The responsibilities of the Audit Committee are:

— To review the financial statements and reports and consider
any significant or unusual matters raised by the external
auditor before submission to the Board.

— To review the relationship with external auditor by reference
to the work performed by the auditor, their fees and terms of
engagement and make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditor.

— To review and supervise the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company's financial reporting system, risk management and
internal control systems and internal audit plan.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TEERRE(E)

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Audit Committee
has held 3 meetings (the attendance records of each Committee
member are set out in above section headed “Directors’
Attendance Records”) and performed the following major works:

— Review and discussion of the annual audited financial
statements, results announcement and report for the year
ended 31 December 2021, the related accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group and the relevant audit
findings, the report from the management on the Company's
review of the risk management and internal control systems,
and recommendation of the re-appointment of the external
auditor;

— Review of the Group's continuing connected transactions and
the compliance of the non-competition undertaking provided
by the Company’s controlling shareholders;

— Review of and monitoring the Company's corporate
governance policies and practices, the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and
senior management, the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the
compliance of the Model Code and the Employees Written
Guidelines, and the Company’'s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report;

— Review and discussion of the interim financial statements,
results announcement and report for the six months ended 30
June 2022, and the related accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group;

— Review and discussion of valuation processes and results of
unlisted equity investments;

— Review of the annual audit plan of PricewaterhouseCoopers,
including the nature and scope of the audit, the fee payable to
them, their reporting obligations and their work plan; and

— Review of the effectiveness and performance of the
Company's financial reporting system, risk management and
internal control systems and internal audit plan.

The external auditor attended meetings to discuss with the Audit
Committee members on issues arising from the audit and financial
reporting matters.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee regarding the appointment of external auditor.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is Mr. Cheung Fong Wa, who fulfils
the qualification requirements laid down in the Listing Rules.
Biographical details of Mr. Cheung are set out under “Directors and
Senior Management” section in this annual report. During the year
ended 31 December 2022, Mr. Cheung has taken not less than 15
hours of relevant professional training.
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR AND AUDITOR’S
REMUNERATION

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities for the Company’s financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2022 is set out in the Independent

Auditor's Report on pages 141 to 147.

The fees paid/payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers, the Company’s
auditor, in respect of audit and non-audit services for the year

ended 31 December 2022 are analysed below:
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Type of service provided by the external auditor IEZ IR ENREEE Fees paid/payable
e ENEA
HK$°000
FHEx

Audit services — audit fee for the year ended 31 ZERTE — & 22022912 HA31H
December 2022 IEFEMIZEER 3,238
Type of service provided by related entities of INEZ M ETAH R E R Fees paid/payable
the external auditor RENBREESE gt ENER
HK$’000
F#ExT
Tax advisory services BB AR 220

Environmental, Social and Governance RIE g RERBHRRE

advisory services 232
Total: et 452

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE EERUBHRRARBENELE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the %%%ﬂ?&?&%ﬁﬁ&#ﬁ%1ﬁﬁﬁ¢§ﬁf§
preparation of the financial statements for each financial year, N b 2 B D B M AN B E AR B AR
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the ’ElmEiifm%iiﬁﬁﬁmiﬁ’]ﬂﬁf%iﬁ
Company and the Group and of the results and cash flows of o UREBFHBEENR EmRBEER
the Group for that year and in compliance with relevant law and TE o RIRBEE2022F 12 A31 B IEFERE
disclosure provisions of the Listing Rules. In preparing the financial ?r“i&i%ﬂ—ir CEBEEEERGEE MY ETBURIZ M
statements for the year ended 31 December 2022, the Directors INERER - (ERFEBERE B FIE R (EET
have selected appropriate accounting policies and applied them LA R fim BUBS 21 & 38 2E 1 9 7K 55 B B A AR O 3
consistently, made judgments and estimates that are prudent and TBEF -

reasonable, and have prepared disclosure of the financial position

of the Group with reasonable accuracy at any time.

EEWTANEABEMAIREE AR B MFE
BRERNTFEERRBNEFIGIRRNE
A EXRTHARE -

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board believes that sound risk management and internal
control systems are essential to the achievement of the strategic
goals of the Group, and confirmed that the Board is responsible
to set up, maintain and review the effectiveness of such systems.
Management is responsible for the design and implementation
of the Group's risk management and internal control systems
to manage the risk. Good risk management and internal control
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk
of failure to achieve business objectives and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance.

The Group’s risk management framework

In order to improve the risk management and internal control
systems, as well as enhance the level of management and risk
prevention capabilities, the Group established its risk management
framework in 2016. The risk management framework includes
the Board and its Audit Committee, senior management and
subsidiary managements, in three levels (details refer to the below
framework).
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

The Group has commissioned a professional risk advisory body
to help build risk management framework, develop the Risk
Assessment Manual, and conduct risk assessments to determine
the nature and extent of the risk. In the risk assessment process,
the management and the Internal Audit Department, have
identified the major risks faced by the Group and ranked these
risks according to the likelihood and the severity of the impact on
the Group, as well as further development of risk management
measures to maintain the risks at an acceptable level.

The Company also has an Internal Audit Department, which is
responsible for performing independent review of the adequacy
and effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems.

The management and the Internal Audit Department would
report to the Audit Committee and the Board on all findings and
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems. The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading the
management and overseeing the design, implementation and
monitoring of the risk management and internal control systems,
and makes recommendations. The Audit Committee also ensures
that an overall review of the effectiveness of such systems is
conducted at least annually and put forward to the Board for
consideration.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in
achieving the Company’s strategic objectives; and acknowledges
its responsibility for the risk management and internal control
systems and reviewing their effectiveness.

The Company has also developed its disclosure policy which
provides a general guide to the Company’s directors, officers,
senior management and relevant employees in handling
confidential information, monitoring information disclosure and
responding to enquiries.

The Board and its Audit Committee reviewed the effectiveness
of the Company’'s risk management and internal control systems
for the year 2022, as well as taking into account the resource,
adequacy of staff qualifications, training and experience of the
Company’'s accounting and financial reporting and internal audit
functions. Based on the reports submitted by the Internal Audit
Department and the management, the Board considered that the
Company's risk management and internal control systems are
effective and adequate.

The Group has its risk management and internal control policies
and procedures reviewed, to ensure compliance with the new
requirements, and explore opportunities for improvement.
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SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Memorandum and Articles of
Association, any one or more members holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meeting of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary at the principal
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong, to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition, and such
meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred
by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall
be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company. The objects
of the meeting must be stated in the written requisition. As
announced by the Company on 3 April 2023, the Board proposed
to amend the Memorandum and Articles of Association pursuant
to the amendment to Appendix 3 of the Listing Rules in relation
to the Core Shareholder Protection Standards and resolutions
will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company to adopt the second amended and restated
Memorandum and Articles of Association. For further details,
please refer to the announcement and circular of the Company
published on 3 April 2023 and 28 April 2023, respectively.

If a shareholder wishes to put forward proposals at a shareholders’
meeting, the shareholder, who has satisfied the shareholding
requirements set out in the above paragraph headed “Procedures
for shareholders to convene an extraordinary general meeting”,
may follow the same procedures by sending a written requisition
to the Board or the Company Secretary at the principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong. The shareholder should
state his/her proposals in the written requisition and submit the
written requisition as early as practicable to enable the Company
Secretary to make necessary arrangement.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

If a shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a retiring
Director for election as a director of the Company at a general
meeting, pursuant to Article 85 of the Memorandum and Articles
of Association, the shareholder (other than the person to be
proposed) should prepare a written notice duly signed by him/
her of his/her intention to propose a person for the election and
a notice duly signed by the person to be proposed of his/her
willingness to be elected. These notices should be lodged at the
Company's principal place of business in Hong Kong or its share
registrar at least 7 days prior to the date of the general meeting.
Where the notices are submitted after the dispatch of the notice
of the general meeting, the period for the lodgment of the notices
should commence on the day after the dispatch of the notice of the
general meeting and end not later than 7 days prior to the date of
the general meeting.

Shareholders are welcome to send enquiries to the Board to the
Company'’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at Workshop
No. 19, 9th Floor, Block B, Hi-Tech Industrial Centre, No. 491-501
Castle Peak Road, Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investors’ understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Company also recognizes the importance
of transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information,
which will enable shareholders and investors to make the best
investment decisions.

The annual general meetings and twice-yearly business
performance conferences of the Company provide a platform for
communication between the Board and the shareholders. The
Chairman of the Board as well as the chairmen of the Nomination
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee or,
in their absence, other members of the respective committees,
and, where applicable, the chairman of the independent Board
committee are available to answer questions at shareholders’
meeting.
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TERERWE(E)

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a
website at www.tkmold.com where up-to-date information and
updates on the Company’'s business operations and development,
financial information and other information (such as interim and
annual reports, notices, circulars and announcements) are made
available for the shareholders and public access in a timely
manner.

Following the annual review on the implementation and
effectiveness of the measures relating to shareholders’
communication as set out above, which enables the Company to
carry out effective two-way communication with its shareholders
by way of regular meetings and timely updates of the Company's
financial results and operational developments, the Company
considered that multiple communication channels were in place
and was satisfied that the implementation and effectiveness of the
measures relating to shareholders’ communication was effective.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year under review, the Company has not made any
changes to its Memorandum and Articles of Association. An up-
to-date version of the Memorandum and Articles of Association is
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
As announced by the Company on 3 April 2023, the Board
proposed to amend the Memorandum and Articles of Association
pursuant to the amendment to Appendix 3 of the Listing Rules
in relation to the Core Shareholder Protection Standards and
resolutions will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to adopt the second amended and
restated Memorandum and Articles of Association of the
Company. For further details, please refer to the announcement
and circular of the Company published on 3 April 2023 and 28 April
2023, respectively.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ABOUT THE REPORT

This is the seventh Environmental, Social and Governance Report
(the “Report”) issued by the Group. It will continue to facilitate the
understanding of stakeholders towards the environmental, social
and governance (ESG) performance of the Group by updating them
on the Group’s performance in aspects of ESG. The Report is in
Chinese and English, and has been published on the websites of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
and the Group (www.tkmold.com).

The reporting scope of the Report covers the ESG performance
of the Group’'s production bases in its Shenzhen headquarters,
Suzhou, Huizhou and Dongguan for the year from 1 January 2022
to 31 December 2022 (the “year”). Due to the relatively low
revenue share of the overseas business, it has not been included in
the scope of disclosure for time being.

The Report is prepared in accordance with the four reporting
principles of Materiality, Quantitative, Balance and Consistency
set out in the "ESG Reporting Guide"” (the “Guide”) contained in
Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

e "Materiality”: During the preparation process of the Report,
important stakeholders have been identified, and stakeholder
communication and materiality assessment have been
included as a basis for determining the material ESG issues
taking into consideration of the development strategy, industry
and business conditions of the Group.

e “Quantitative”: The Report sets forth the measurable key
environmental and social performance in the past three
years, and provides comparative descriptions for individual
key quantitative data. The Report discloses the measurable
objectives in relation to the environment and society, so as to
assess and validate the effectiveness of the Group’s work on
the environment and society.

e "Balance"”: The Report follows the principle of balance and
objectively displays the current status of ESG of the Group.

e "“Consistency”: In the Report, the Group has adopted the same
statistical methods as in previous years, and compared certain
ESG data of the year with the data of previous years. For
details, please refer to the section headed “Overview of Key
Performance Indicators”.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RIE e MERWRE ()
RECOGNITION AND APPROVAL

The Group has undertaken to make every endeavour to guarantee
the accuracy and reliability of the materials and information
presented in the Report and strengthened management by
establishing the internal monitoring and formal review procedures.
The Report has been recognised and approved by the Board on 31
March 2023.

COMMENTS AND FEEDBACK

Comments or recommendations of stakeholders in aspects of the
Group's ESG performance are greatly valued by the Group. Please
feel free to contact us by the following means:

Group Headquarters 7< £ [@4 28

Ak

BRRAE

AEEAFENRRABEMZRANER K
ERIGMERR 5 - WA ABPEERIE
ABERFMNERE - ARECR_FT_=
FoA=t—REE=SWEIARIAE -

RRKREE

AEEE ORI TELRSUFNERLARE
REE e RERTENKRRRLEAE
R - FEBUATHRBEAER

PERYITAAEREREEREREER IR TIRE

Address: TK Technology Park, Tangjia Community, Fenghuang Sub-district Office, Guangming

District, Shenzhen, the PRC
Tel: E 5% | +86-755-2369 0328

Hong Kong Office FEMNRER

ok :

ERF AT EE LEA91-5015 5% 0 TEHOBEIE195

Address: Workshop No.19, 9th Floor, Block B, Hi-Tech Industrial Centre, 491-501 Castle Peak

Road, Tsuen Wan, N.T., Hong Kong
Tel: &5 - +852-2411 3628

ESG GOVERNANCE
STATEMENT OF THE BOARD

TK Group is committed to improving sustainable development
practices, establishing a sound ESG mechanism and actively
undertaking environmental and social responsibilities, with an aim
to create long-term and stable corporate value for its customers,
brand owners and partners.

Pursuant to the relevant provisions set out in Appendix 27 to
the Listing Rules, the Board has issued a statement on the
following matters. The Board of the Group has attached great
importance to the significant impact that ESG risks may have on
the Company. The Board receives reports from the management
on economic, environmental and social issues every year. The
Board is responsible for supervising and ensuring the effective
implementation of the Group’s ESG-related work, and considers
ESG-related issues when determining the Group’s future business
direction and goals.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

As a leading enterprise in China's injection molding and
mold industry, the Group has continuously improved its
ESG management system, enhanced its ESG management
mechanism, and promoted the integration of ESG concepts into
its routine management and operation. To this end, we have
established a top-down sustainable development management
structure, in which the Board is responsible for supervising ESG-
related work and strengthening corporate governance and ESG
risk management. In addition, the Board has authorised the
establishment of the ESG Management Committee, chaired by
the chairman of the Group, to identify, assess and determine the
priority of ESG-related issues. Members of the ESG Management
Committee are selected among relevant employees of the
Group based on the consideration of the Board, and are regularly
reviewed by the Board to ensure that the members have different
expertise and experience, thereby enhancing the diversity and
balance of the committee and ensuring the full implementation
of ESG work. The ESG Management Committee holds regular
meetings to discuss ESG-related issues and gives feedback to the
Board.

In order to further implement responsible manufacturing, in
compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, ethics
and norms, taking responsibility for the environmental and social
impact of the product lifecycle, the ESG Management Committee
of the Group bases itself on the current operation of the Group and
focuses on future corporate development to assess sustainable
development risks at the Group level and review ESG-related
issues that may be related to the Group's business operations
and development, so as to ensure that the Group’s operations are
fully in line with the industry’s sustainable development trends. In
terms of work implementation, the ESG Management Committee
guides each working group to ensure that each business unit
formulates and implements work guidelines and action plans in
accordance with the Group’s sustainable development goals, and
provides guiding recommendations on risk appetite, risk exposure
and relevant goals related to sustainable development risks.
In addition, the ESG Management Committee supervises and
reviews the initiatives and performance of each business unit in
terms of promoting sustainable development, and monitors the
implementation and progress based on the existing goals. In order
to disclose the Group’s ESG contributions and achievements in a
more comprehensive and specific manner, the ESG Management
Committee is responsible for preparing the sustainable
development report in accordance with domestic and international
sustainability reporting standards to enhance the readability and
comparability of the report.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIE g NE RS (E)

Framework of the ESG Management Committee
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

The Group regularly reviews its ESG performance indicators,
covering key issues such as safety management, human
resources, chemical management, resource consumption,
pollutant discharge, anti-corruption and compliance management.
During the year, the Group responded to the survey of the CDP
Global Environmental Information Research Center, and submitted
data on the Group's greenhouse gas emissions and risk response
plan for climate change.

In addition, the Group formulates quantitative routine targets
year by year, and has set mid- to long-term management targets
for emissions and use of resources during the year. The Group
conducts an annual performance appraisal with the EHS working
group every year, and has incorporated ESG performance
indicators such as production safety, energy conservation,
environmental protection and compliant operation into the
Company's appraisal system for key management personnel and
members, so as to facilitate the achievement of the Company's
ESG goals.

The Group is committed to establishing an effective ESG
governance structure and ESG reporting policy to assist the Board
and the ESG Management Committee to identify and assess the
Group's ESG risks (including climate risk) in accordance with the
Group's strategic objectives. In order to identify relevant risks,
the Group's risk management structure consists of three parts:
the Board and its Audit Committee, the senior management and
the management of its subsidiaries. In addition, the Group's
Internal Audit Department regularly assesses the adequacy
and effectiveness of the risk management structure. In order
to manage possible ESG risks, the Group has formulated and
continuously revised its internal policies and guidelines on
environment, health and safety (EHS). Our specific commitments
are as follows:

BRI g hEamE(E)

AEBETEHRMANESCERIER BELEE
BANER LEREE  BRER 5
2B RBRERERSZIEZR - K
FE - AEEL2ETCDP 2HRFEESHE
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RER P EIE MR R 2L r R R R T EH S

goN - AEEZEFHEELCNERBER - X
RAFEHEHFRMERERRE TP RB
EEAR FESFHREHSTHENEARRS
BEREZ  BRE2LEE  SHERRFE A8
REZESCHRUMEERMARRIEEEASR
KRR EEZEZBERSD - HBATESGRRERX o

AEBRNORNELAMHESGEAREB R
ESGEH T - AMEFEE MESGERZ
BeRABEAKENERE RS 25 Kath
AEEMESCGAR(BRRERAR) - AEE
RRERRBHEEERAERZES &
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIE e LERTmE(E)

EHS Policy of TK Group
FISBEHSH &t

Comply with relevant laws, regulations and other requirements on EHS;

MFEMOERS  ZRRMRENER ERREMES |

Provide safe and healthy working conditions to prevent work-related personal injury and damage to health;

REHTERENASGSEENREBSTRER MR TIEEM

Eliminate sources of hazards in the activities of facilities, equipment, products and services, in order to
reduce occupational health and safety risks;

HERERHE - R B RBBETZEDNERIR  RERXEEZZRAR

Reduce the use and discharge of toxic and hazardous materials within reasonable and practicable limits, in
order to reduce risk and prevent pollution;

ERERTHER - BMAOERMEERES - Rt - [RERR - BHISR

Respond to global climate change, assess carbon footprint, pursue activities to reduce carbon dioxide and
other greenhouse gas emissions, increase the development and utilisation of renewable energy processes
and equipment, and facilitate the enhancement of corporate green and low-carbon development models;
FEX 2R IR 1L, - MEE}%EEB‘B CBRRS AR E MR EREBYRAES AN - MARBENFABERR
WIEMZE  HBTECEGEERRERERN

Maximise the utilisation, reuse and recycle of environmental protection resources and energy, and reduce
the consumption of water, gas, electricity, oil and raw materials;

RANEMA - EEANA - DARERERMER - BAK R BB REEDER

Communicate EHS concepts to relevant parties and encourage them to comply with relevant regulations and
requirements;

ARESTEERENBELZES - Bt fIETRIMER

Encourage everyone to participate in EHS activities, and cultivate a corporate culture in which everyone
conducts safe production;

BEAANGRSERERELEEY  BEAAETREEENGEXL

Constantly enhance EHS performance, and continuously improve the working and living environment of
employees.

FESERE  RENZE2ER  THNZE8 T TENERRE -
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIR - g hERWmE(E)

In addition, the Group has adopted the following specific BN - ANE B ST BB ESGE R F I8 HFEUA
countermeasures for key ESG risk issues, in order to reduce TEEMELHEE - ARERERE -
relevant risks.

Category of ESG Risk Countermeasures

ESGaE K5 B8 i

Exhaust emissions e Engage a third-party institution to monitor the concentration of exhaust gas from non-fugitive
BER R and fugitive emissions every quarter
BEEIEEE = ME A AT EASHE R ERREEITER

Climate change e |dentify the risks and opportunities brought by climate change with reference to the Guidance
RIzE 1L on Climate Disclosures of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
DEREBRZ G (RMKEREERS) #AIRIEE R RR RS

Energy management e Establish energy management goals
BRERE T BEREIE B 1R

Safe production e Engage a third-party to conduct occupational health and safety inspections every year

REEE BFEFE = DETRERERL2RE

Business ethics e Build a framework for monitoring anti-corruption

BREE B S EIEER

STAKEHOLDER COMMUNICATION EhEERE

The Group has always focused on the sustainable development AEBBREUFHER EINIFEREZE
issues that stakeholders are concerned about and the social MR ENCEREEATIFES - &
responsibilities that companies are expected to undertake. PER FREZRYER > BEAZEHFNET
We maintain close communication with all parties through BB WERNEUAEEAFELRE
various means, and collect stakeholders’ opinions on the FEHMNER  THEOHEHAEBEMNEE
Group's sustainable development to understand stakeholders’ 2o EMARRKMNIES REBERHE
concerns about the Group. We adjust our work direction and oL ERZGENREMENR  BReRME
policy correspondingly to fully respond to the expectations and ESGHEHK TEM KRR - ABT(E
requirements of stakeholders and improve our work efficiency and FEEHTE

overall performance in terms of ESG. The table below sets out our

specific work:

RTHRE () BRAR 202253 63



SESEEN., N

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIE (g NERWmE(E)

Key stakeholders
FEFMGE

The government

R F

Investors and
shareholders

REERRR

Regular communication

Customers
eSS

Employees
8T

Suppliers
HRERS

The public and
communities
N Lo

Concerns and expectations

BxERE

Compliant operation
BRLE

Transparent information
disclosure

ERWEER

Response to climate change

iF gz -did

Sustainable development of the
Group
SEAFHERR

Risk management
2B B 3

Shareholders’ rights and
interests

IR

Greenhouse gas emissions

R %= R B HE R

Customer privacy and
information security

EFRALEEFEERE

Product quality

ma g

Employees’ career
development

BTHEERE

Employees’ occupational health
and safety

BTRERFEERZ S

Guarantee of employees’ rights
and interests
IRE B T

Responsible supply chain

B EEtEE

Green procurement

RERE

Community development

[ 3

Improvement of community
environment
HRIRRHE
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Means of communication

BEARX

Work meeting
TiFE=

Material submission

P 3R

Information disclosure

ERRE

Special report

HREEWR

General meeting

BERAE

Investor communication

conference

REERRAE

Site visit

AEER

EHER

Satisfaction survey

MBERE

Labour union
Ty

Suggestion box
BERMA

Employee activity
BIES)

Open recruitment

NGRS

Supplier conference

HEFAE

Community activity

HEES)

Charitable donation
mERE

Volunteer service

HRRE RS

Our response

EMHEE

Comply with PRC laws and
regulations

EFBEZOARER

Increase information disclosure
channels and means
LEEEEBERERER

Assess the risks brought by
climate change

AR AR LT R e

Improve the ESG governance
structure
TEEESGE AR

Strengthen risk management
HnaE e i 7R

Set goals for carbon reduction
il E Rk B 1%

Optimise customer services

BIEEP RS

Set production yield targets
RUIEERERR

Broaden career development paths
for employees

hRETREHRRE

Improve the working environment
of employees
WEET TERE

Enhance communication channels
with employees
EEETEBRE

Establish a fair and transparent
supplier assessment process

B AT - BHAM R AR

Procure green and
environmentally-friendly materials

SRERAR BRI R

Participate in community charity
projects
S R A mIEE

Improve the system for
community investment

TEMLREARE



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

The Group conducts materiality assessment every year to
determine the key interests of stakeholders and the key issues
related to the Group's business. Based on the order of materiality,
we review the direction and focus of the Group’'s ESG work
and make corresponding adjustments, so as to respond to the
concerns of stakeholders for ESG management, thereby enhancing
the communication between the Group and stakeholders.

During the year, we collected opinions and data from stakeholders
of the Group by distributing online questionnaires, and carried out
materiality assessment correspondingly. Our main stakeholder
groups gave feedback on the materiality of ESG issues related
to the Group’s operations by replying to the questionnaire. Such
topics are organised according to their priority and shown in the
materiality assessment matrix below. The topics in the upper
right corner of the matrix are defined as the most relevant to
the Group's business operations and the most concerned by
stakeholders.

Crucial
BEEE

B

=,
=

EIESEECYS0)

Impact on stakeholders
¥

RIR - g keamE(E)

AEESFETERENMG  SEEERD
ENRARNSMNEAREXGHEBANERZ
B REBEEZMHRF - RAKHANEEESG
THEITMEEFHETESR  LRBERMH
B WNMAESGER T EHFHERINME
RMETTOIE - DUBBAREERFNENEE -

AREFRMBBENR EHEREHTAM
KAKEERNENTREE  EMATE
ZUFE - RPN ERFNEHEBBBLOE
M5 HEAKEEZHBNESGEENE
EUHRETRE - WEEERETRFHI
ERTXHEZEFEEETET - A
FANTERAEREAREXHLERD
HEARFNEZSBIIHER -

@ Environmental
RIS

Social
el

@® Governance
ERERS

Impact on business

HEBHZE

Very material
FFEEZE

Occupational health and
safety
BEERERET S

Emission management

PR E R

En@rgy management
BERER

Climate risks and
opportunities

RRERR K8

Employee development
and training
8 THREE

@ Corporate governance
RNENRE

Information security and
privacy protection
EEL L HEBTLIRE

Greenhouse gas emissions

BEREHER

Employee diversity and
equal opportunities
BIZt R FE#KE
Intellectual property
AR EE

Business ethics
[SESELS

Customer service and
communication

BEP IR AR

Anti-corruption
REA

Crucial

BESR

@ Environmental
compliance
RIEEH

Employees'’ rights and
interests
BT H#H

Prevention of child
labour and forced
labour

DylbE T Rog|ss T

Responsible supplier
management

BEENHREREE

Product technology
innovation

E i el

RIE® (=A%) BRAR] 2022F H
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

B HERE

/1—/1—\

/m#&tt(/\‘/\)

The Group actively responds to the sustainable development
goals (SDGs) of the United Nations, and is committed to taking
sustainable development as the goal, further promoting the
innovation of production methods and facilitating inclusive and

sustainable industrialisation. Based on our own circumstances and

from the perspective of practical actions, we identify and respond
to SDGs that are closely related to the Group's business, so as
to support and contribute to sustainable development. The table
below sets out our specific goals and practices:

Sustainable development goals (SDGs) of the United Nations
B S B A& % R B 4Z(SDGs)

GOODHEALTH
AND WELL-BEING

GENDER
EQUALITY

DECENT WORK AND
ECONOMIC GROWTH

QO

13 oror

4

R#F
SR

12 3a5se

QO

13 RETH

4

Goal 3: Good health and well-being

BiR= © RIFfEEREARAL

Ensure healthy lives and promote well-being for
all at all ages

EREENEETR @ RESFHRERAFARIL

Goal 5: Gender equality

BiEER : ERITE

Gender equality is not only a basic human
right, but also a cornerstone of a peaceful,
prosperous and sustainable world
MBIFETER—BHEARAE  MEARFMT - &
LMA AT RNER

Goal 7: Affordable and clean energy
BiEt : KEERERER

Ensure access to affordable,
sustainable and modern energy for all
BRAANEFEESEDN  AEMATFENRR
BEIR

reliable,

Goal 8: Decent work and economic growth
B\ BEIENMQEER

Promote sustained, inclusive and sustainable
economic growth, full and productive
employment and decent work for all

REFA  BEMAFELCELER  REXHH
EEMEREMAAZGEEIE

Goal 12: Responsible consumption and
production

BE+— BEEHBENEE

Ensure sustainable consumption and
production patterns

BR PR A 548 0 B 0 2 A

Goal 13: Climate action

BiE+=: RIx1T8

Take urgent action to combat climate change
and its impacts

KREZESTHEAREZCREZE
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AEEEBERBARTREZRAE R
(SDGs) * AR AIFKBEERB BT - #E—
FHELTESANEF  LREARFETMN
MARHETELL - HMIEEEFTER  RE
RTBNAEHE  FHEARERBEE
HENAREERBBAMHEOE  BREL
EHARKEEROFERR - AR BERA
STE :

BES

Our practices

B ERE

Ensure the health and safety and improve the
working environment of employees
RESETREEEZS  HEETIERE

Pursue a compliant and diversified employment
system, implement equal pay for equal work,
and care for female employees

HTEHR  ZRENERSE  BTRIRB -
BAELEET

Build photovoltaic power generation facilities in
our factories in the future, and plan to use clean

energy
R R R R A R BB BRI » sHEIERIFRAE
IR

Protect the legitimate rights and interests of
employees, and improve remuneration and
benefits

REBET&xER - TEHFMENFE

Set goals for environmental protection and

resource efficiency, and implement the concept

of energy conservation and emission reduction

in production

%‘Jmiai“&ﬁﬁxﬁl B
BEREEIE R

FEEERBRE

B

|dentify climate-related risks and opportunities,
and formulate response measures for climate
change

B pl RAR A A B R e 38 - HIE SRR LR BT
it}



CARING FOR EMPLOYEES

GOODHEALTH
AND WELL-BEING

GENDER
EQUALITY

DEGENT WORK AND

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RiE - g RERWmE(E)
BEET

Goal 3: Ensure healthy lives and promote well-being for all at all ages

BR=: REENDESIR @ RESFREARNBEL

Goal 5: Gender equality is not only a basic human right, but also a cornerstone of a peaceful,
prosperous and sustainable world

BER : ERIFEMER—REARARE - MERMT - ERMAFEERNOER

Goal 8: Promote sustained, inclusive and sustainable economic growth, full and productive

ECONOMIC GROWTH
employment and decent work for all

The Group has attached great importance to the protection of
employees’ rights and interests and the career development
of employees, and has improved the system for protection of
employees’ rights and interests by formulating relevant measures
for employment, recruitment, dismissal, training and career
development of employees.

The Group has strictly complied with relevant regulations such
as the Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China ( (A& A
RAMBIZE)EL) ), the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Protection of Minors ( (R ZEAREFEIARKF AREE) ) and the
Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labour ( {Z|F{#F B =
T#R7E) ), and has formulated institutional documents such as the
Administrative Measures for Recruitment ( (REEEIRHE) ) and
the Administrative Regulations on Child Labour Remediation ( (&
THMEEMTE) ) to standardise the mechanism for protection
of employees’ rights and interests, establish a harmonious
relationship and effectively protect the rights and interests of
every employee. The Group has improved the employment system
to fully protect the basic rights and interests of employees, and
is committed to creating an inclusive, equal and fair working
environment.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had 3,634 regular employees,
130 temporary employees and 24 interns.

L Including full-time employees and outsourced staff

BEREN (REFA  BRMAFELELR  REXDHEEEREMAAESEE T

AEEREERETIREREUARE TR
BR - BEHIEEIRRE  HEE - f#E 5
Il BEZEREBGE TEEIEDRRE

X

AEERBET(PEARKNBEEEE) -
(PEARKMBRKEARESL) - (BELEE
RETRE)SHEERE - BUECRBEEH
B) (ETMBEERE)FHEXM - R
LB THBREES - B MERE  E
mEE BTN AREZZER
B ZAORBEIRBAELED - IR
HE—EEE - FF AFNIESH -

M2022F 128318 AEBHERXE T
3,634'% - BERE T 1304 @ EEA24% o

T BEERBEIRIMIKEAR
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
IR  mwgkERmE(E)

Total number of employees & T 42 3,634

Total number of employees by gender Total number of employees by position
R RIE 5 H) 8 TR REBREI DB THEE
2,104
58%
B Female & Male 55 B Management M General staff Production staff
BIEAB —AREET HEET
Total number of employees by age group Total number of employees by geographical region
RIEFRERE De 8 THEE iR E S B THER
29

M 18-30 W 31-45 Over 45 B Mainland China Other regions
18-30/3% 314555 4558 A F IR H At 5
e Diversified recruitment e Z{LiEE

The Group firmly upholds the principle of fair, just and open AEEEFAF QF - 2AMNHBER
recruitment, strictly prohibits discrimination against race, A BRSEBILEHBARTE - EFE - -
skin colour, region, age, gender, sexual orientation, ethnicity, Fhe - MERI - MEEUA - ER - BR - E
disability, pregnancy, religion, political affiliation, association Z (=0 - BUAIRE - #EE R B s
or marital status, and promotes meritocracy and merit- RAEFTHEER  REBAES @2
based recruitment. At the same time, the Group encourages BEEE - A NEEHEIEETRH
the employment of employees with different nationalities, # TRARKE - TRES - Tﬂ%ltib
ethnicities, skin colours and educational backgrounds to =SEREMNET  REE2EETINE
promote the diversified development of all employees. 3=

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2022



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

e Compliant employment

The Group strictly prohibits the employment of forced labour
and child labour. In order to ensure compliant employment,
according to the Age Verification Procedures ( { FEER#ER
FF) ) and the Administrative Regulations on Child Labour
Remediation ( CZETHMEIEHETE) ), the Group requires
recruitment staff to check the identity card and identity
information of applicants, who may only be admitted upon
confirmation of identity. At the same time, the Group randomly
inspects front-line production employees every quarter.
Through remedial measures for child labour, the Group
maintains smooth and effective channels for reporting child
labour, so as to prevent the inadvertent recruitment of child
labour and identify the inadvertent recruitment of child labour
in time. During the year, there was no incident of forced labour
or child labour within the Group.

e Employee retention

The Group has attached great importance to personnel
retention. The Group reviews the turnover rate of its
employees every month, analyses the reasons for abnormal
turnover and puts forward recommendations for improvement.
At the same time, the Group has implemented annual dividend
incentives for key personnel through the virtual equity
incentive mechanism, and is committed to strengthening the
retention of senior employees through measures such as
providing extra holidays and other benefits to long-term service
personnel.

The Group has paid great attention to personnel training, and has
formulated the Measures for Training and Development ( {33
EABHEHIE ) ), the Administrative Measures for Trainers ( {353l
FEEIEHEE) ) and the Administrative Regulations on Promotion
and Training ( (BFHEEEEEETFE) ) with reference to the
Group's development strategy and employees’ demand for career
development. The Group has improved the employee training
system by building career development channels, so as to assist
employees in determining career paths and promote employee
growth.

BRI g hEamE(E)
. ARER

AEBBEELBISTHRASE &
BEIEFTR  REREGHAER R
BAFRBERRF) M(ETHREER
E) BERHBBAEHEEABNSNE
REMEMETRE - HRERRET
BRLAR - A AEESFEHEE
—RETETABHE  BRETHNY
it REETIRRREGEBR B
LREET U RBHERRCORBEET o
REE  AEBARZELRALHNER
BETHEM-

e BIRHE

AEESEERATRE - SAETH
BiRime  DWEERSERELIE LK
BEE o R - NREBEE RN
Bis  HERATETEFEREDAMN
B YEsmRBREABRKEIMR
HIERNERERE AR MEEETH
BiE -

AEBISEASEE  BELEEHRE
METREZERF R  HE T OFHIEFHEH
E) (B EERGIE) (EHEEEE
BRE) WEBKEBRFEELRAE =
ZETHEIRR  HHETHUTHRERSR -
REETKE -
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

IRE e NERRE(E)

Employee Promotion and Development

The Group upholds the business philosophy of “common
development and common improvement”, practises the
employment concept of “ensuring merit-based employment
and making the best use of talents”, and offers employees
with diversified career development channels in fields such as
management, technology and marketing according to their roles
and responsibilities.

In order to establish a sound personnel flow and deployment
mechanism, the Group has provided a job rotation internship
programme for prospective candidates for management positions,
thereby creating a platform for employees to broaden their
horizons, cultivate new ideas and develop multiple talents. At
the same time, the Group has set a two-year coaching period for
personnel upon internal transfer, requiring superior managers to
conduct regular coaching and assessment based on employees’
performance and make targeted training programme to assist the
continuous development of employees. For prospective candidates
for technology, market and project personnel, we offer vocational
training in which the corresponding departments formulate a
mentorship programme and arrange mentors for training.

The Group has established a transparent and feasible employee
promotion and personnel selection mechanism. In order to
encourage the enthusiasm of members within the organisation,
internal employees are prioritised for promotion whenever
vacancies arise, and external recruitment is only considered when
there is no suitable internal candidate. Putting personnel as the
first priority, the Group comprehensively considers the morality,
professional skills and management potential of employees in
the promotion system, and select personnel fairly based on
comprehensive review, potential assessment and interview.

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2022
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Employee Training

The Group has continuously improved its employee training
system, and provides employees with abundant and diversified
employee training through a combination of online learning
platform and offline on-site training. The Group has actively
promoted the digital personnel training platform. During the year,
the Group introduced the online e-learning platform to make
full use of the good compatibility of online training channels
and provide employees with a flexible, comprehensive and
personalised training platform. During the year, the Group achieved
remarkable results in terms of employee training. Our employees
received a total of 70,760.3 hours of training, representing an
increase of 67.6% as compared to 42,228.5 hours in 2021. The
average training hours per employee was 19.5 hours, representing
an increase of 93.1% as compared to 10.1 hours in 2021.

Employee training & TZ &R

RIR - LREaRE(E)
AT

AEEFETEETHEIER  UBRLEEE
FaEgTEMBEIEEENEIER - &
ETRFEEEZTMEIEI - AKREE
BHEEBRTASEETR RFESIAT
E-learningfZ L2 E Y & - &0 FM AL LIS
RERONERY - BETIRME T AIAE

ZS2 A BAEEEINTEES KEE
AEBEETHIITERS TEEXK - B
T 523 42 R 804 70,760.3/M 8 - FHE R 2021
F(42,228.5/\)I2F T767.6% : BHEE
FH IR EA19.5/NE - AR 20214
(10.1/ 0B $RF T 93.1% ©

Total number of employees B T 425

3,634
|

I
Number of trained employees =3Il A2

2,687

Percentage of trained employees by gender (%)

BURB D WZINEDLE (%)

B Female &

Male 2

B Management
EEAE

Percentage of trained employees by position (%)

ZEESREABDNZINEDL (%)

Production staff
HEET

General staff

—RBT
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RIR e kEnwE(E)

Average hours of training completed per employee

BEEETHZIN TR (D)

Management

BEAE

By position General staff

brd=E Vil — AR T

Production staff

HEET

Male

By gender 5
R RIkE R

Female

In addition, every year, the Group formulates an annual plan, which
is divided into general, technology and leadership training, covering
multiple fields such as corporate culture, information security,
technology, marketing and leadership. At the same time, during
the year, we promoted the “OKR Agile Goal Management” (OKR&
EHZEEE) and “College Student Training” (FTIREHFE) activities,
and continuously explored innovations in terms of employee
training.

TK’s OKR, must be OK

On July 18 and 19, 2022, the Group launched the two-day “OKR
Agile Goal Management” (OKR&(}E E 2% %) learning workshop
to promote the thinking model of cooperation among employees
and teams through the personal goal setting of and communication

among the enterprise, its teams and employees.

18.0

21.9

178

21.8
- I

AN AEEESFREFENE  XDO/E
A B RENEI REREXE &
Mz B 178 BENFZEEM -
R > REERMED [OKREERFE
B [RRARE IFIES  THRRET
B3I 77 E e Bl

HIOKR » —EOK

2022F7H18-198 ' A&EEHRRE T AH2X
®“OKREFZEBEEER " 2E TIEY - BEd
¥ B - EI@AABERTHEER  2E
BTHBEBRBRTIENBEER -
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Dreaming with ingenuity, shaping the future

From July 5 to 12, 2022, the Group organised an eight-
day induction training to help new employees quickly get to
know about, understand and accommodate to the Group, and
successfully transform from a student to a professional.

RIR - g keamE(E)
EOES  BERR

202267 A5B 27128 - "EBEAZHRRE
TEBNROABSI - EEHEITINER
B THIUBMALRNER - JBFISEAEREA
FHs ARERBE S -

RSHE FARA

EETEHN +BaieniE

SAFE PRODUCTION

The Group insists on the leadership policy of putting safety first
and being people-oriented, regards safe production as the top
priority in management, and profoundly promotes the concept
of production safety, thereby continuously enhancing the
management mechanism.

ZEEE

AEEBRRLZER/E  MARETNELET
oo SZ24EERREEIFEFNERZ
B ORABEREEERS  THZER
Wl o
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

R e MEamE (E)

In order to implement health and safety risk management for
employees and ensure the minimisation of hidden safety risks
of employees in the work and production process, the Group
has continuously optimised the management system, improved
the management mechanism, and established the Environment,
Health and Safety (EHS) Committee at the Board level. The
committee is chaired by the Group's chief executive officer, under
which positions such as vice chairman, person-in-charge of EHS
supervision and management and standing committee members
are established. The committee has conscientiously carried out
the key measures for safety risk management and implemented
national policies related to work safety, so as to firmly prevent
major safety risks and strictly comply with safety requirements.
During the Reporting Period, the Group has obtained the ISO
45001 occupational health and safety management system
certification. The Group has formulated measures and policies
such as the Administrative Regulations on Chemical Storage ( {1t
BREEIEIRFE) ), the Administrative Regulations on Hazardous
Waste Storage ( {fEEEREIEIE) ) and the Measures for Dust
Control ( (M EEFEH|$EHE) ) to further standardise employees’
operations, clarify management responsibilities and eliminate
hidden dangers that may damage employees’ health in the routine
production process. In addition, the EHS Committee holds regular
meetings to discuss issues related to EHS, and updates relevant
safety management documents and conducts workplace safety
inspections in response to the issues in a timely manner.

During the year, the committee held a total of four meetings
to discuss issues such as the environmental impact of relevant
parties, safety management of external construction companies,
continuous promotion of energy conservation and emission
reduction projects, improvement of occupational health
management and establishment of TK's EHS culture. For the
handling of work-related injury and the reporting, investigation and
handling of incidents, the committee updated the Measures for
Treatment of Work-related Injury and Occupational Disease ( { T
BRBEREBROAEZEESIE) ) and the Reporting, Investigation
and Handling Procedures for Incidents ( { EiRE - HATHEERE
) ), and conducted four workplace safety inspections.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

The Group has formulated relevant administrative measures
such as the Safety Policy ( (% &7 &) ) and the Safe Production
Responsibility System ( (ZZ2 4 ESEHIE) ). The Group has
also formulated safe production standards, and required the EHS
Management Department to be on duty 24/7 and regularly conduct
special safety inspections, in order to timely identify and rectify
the issues to ensure the elimination of major safety hazards and
profoundly promote the safe production policy. In addition, the
Group has further strengthened the protection of employees’
occupational health through measures such as providing
labour protection equipment to employees, organising regular
occupational health examinations and checking the frequency
of employees’ use of protective equipment. At the same time,
the Group engages a third-party to conduct annual occupational
health and safety inspections and issue corresponding reports.
In order to ensure meticulous safety management and prevent
unexpected accidents or emergencies, the Group has issued
documents such as the Operational Guidelines for Emergency
Preparedness and Response ( (BT EEIRE{EIES]) ) and
the Procedures for Treatment and Handling of Work-related Injury
and Occupational Disease ( { TE B EREERARIEREF) )
to stipulate emergency preparedness measures, so as to ensure
that, whenever an emergency occurs, the Company can respond in
time and minimise the impact and loss on the life and property of
employees, product quality and the environment.

Safe Production Targets

In order to implement the occupational health and safety
management policy, the Group has formulated safe production
targets based on the occupational health and safety risks in the
routine operation process. The following are the safety targets
and certain management plans formulated by the Group during the
year:

e REaHRE(E)

IREE -

AEBHIECZ 2T ) (2 EEREH
B)SHAEENE  AREENEL2LE
R - HEEHSE E AR 24/ N EILKE M E
HZ2HBEREHE @ stHREFEMIIK
RERT =HEN  BREEALZRSE

MEREEREEERR 1IN AEEER
BABRTRESSHRER R  EHBERR

Bl REBINERARERAERSHREE
—HIRE TRERENRE - Hh QS
li%;ﬁ%*HLTT%%&%%Eﬁk1$
L UHARE -  RERLEEEITEEN
EE B REBNZ2ERNHESNRMN
RE B MRS ERME BERIERESDMCT
GRBERGERARERF)FXM - RE
RS EEEN  REARBLERESBRKE
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RIR e kEnwE(E)

Safe production targets
RELERRE

Management plans

EEAR

Reducing the
occurrence of work-
related injuries

BETESIHE

Conduct routine and quarterly EHS inspections, timely rectify the issues identified, and
achieve a 100% improvement and response rate to the issues

EHSHERZFERES @ EHRHBRFER - HENRE - BE1EX100%

The Business Department conducts a comprehensive EHS self-inspection on the production
site every two weeks

EXDOMEAHEERSHET —AEHSE2HEEER

Maintain all equipment and facilities according to the maintenance programme

R~ RIBRMERETEI100% 81T

Eliminating fire
incidents

HEE SR E

Conduct special inspections on electrical safety every six months
BERLEHERZ(EXF)

Conduct annual safety inspections on electric equipment (including power lines, electric
devices and electric heating devices)

BEN(RE)FELE2RA(EENZE  AEmRE  SNARZE)

Conduct regular inspections and regular maintenance on special equipment

FRERENENRE L EHEERE

Ensuring “six zeroes” in
safe production

BRZELEE[AEZ]

Personal Protective Equipment (PPE)

In order to ensure equipment safety and the health and safety
of employees, the Group requires employees to strictly comply
with safe operation procedures during the production process,
so as to make sure that employees are protected by PPE if any
accident is to occur. Through the Protective Equipment Distribution
Standards ((P7 &M AEER%)), the Group records the quantity
of PPE distributed to regulate the use of PPE such as earplugs,
rubber gloves and protective glasses by employees, and stipulates
the types of PPE distributed to employees to ensure that the

Monitor the health of employees in positions with occupational hazards (pre-job, on-the-job
and post-job physical examinations for occupational diseases)
BEEEMUMNEREE(BERER EE  £H - BBk

Maintain all equipment and facilities according to the maintenance programme

R~ RIBRMERETEI100% 81T

Improve the treatment of wastewater from air compressors

= R R K R R B =

Fully implement the three levels of safety education

ZRBR2HEHITI00%

The emergency team participates in EHS inspections, training and drills
EEBALHEEHSERE « FIELR

Distribute personal protective equipment to all employees and ensure that all employees
wear their equipment correctly

8 T Ao 2 & IE W fm R (8 A B 7 B an 100 %

Achieve a 100% coverage rate of EHS training for all employees (training programme
attendance rate)

2 BEHSIEFIEZX100% (Bt EI L E %)

PPEfE A & 2 [ ERE

AEESRERELZERETRERLZE
ERETHEAEBETHERETRE2RER
BN ROREBEARZDERBIERRE
—BIRE B THRE - ~AEEEBC(HER
ARERE)HSLEZNHE  UWRERT
HEE BFE DERRFBEARZMHE
RENER  TRESEEALZZHER
BT REMISR - ARKRE TEEMH &R
BRENAEAKEHENREEENIRE -

protective equipment distributed to employees meets the Group's

standards for safe production.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIR - g hERWmE(E)

AEERMBEETIZ2EH  ERZ2H#E
M RE - HPIE AT 2B B
BB CEHSTEEY - R ERFEREMITIE
RE - AEBRBEHSERZESREX R
HEREH  E—FEENEHRARANRE
HTEZER UTAAFERETRHNER
REEEEBMIFI

In order to strengthen employees’ safety awareness and
popularise safety knowledge and skills, the Group regularly
organises safety training, fire drills and EHS-themed activities to
create a healthy and safe working environment. The Group has
implemented the safe production responsibility system through
the EHS Management Committee to further manage and promote
the development of safe production within the Company. The
following are the key safety publicity activities and training

provided for employees during the year:

Safety publicity
activities and training

ZEEFEDRIEI

Training on the
management, storage
and use of hazardous
chemicals

et i B E A7 B AL A £

Content
EIRE

Educate employees about the hazards of hazardous chemicals, and explain the classification
and labelling of chemicals, safety data sheets for chemicals and emergency measures
MEITERERIEZERZHRBE  WHELERHBNERE (2R 2RMFAE  BSREE
117 i

Examination on safety
training for employees

ETIR2EIEHR

Conduct relevant knowledge assessment on employees in terms of safety management
guidelines, use of chemicals and waste management, so as to improve employees’
awareness of safety precautions

HUZ2ERFH  (CEREA  BFEVEEHE TETHEBMHSEZ  URSEILXEMHER
)

Al

Basic knowledge and
raising awareness of
safety management

REEEERNBRESA

Assist production managers in improving their ability to identify safety risks and manage safe
production

HOAEEERASRABNRERARE  ERLEEENESN

Fire safety drills
HFZ2ER

CARING FOR THE ENVIRONMENT

The Group regularly conducts fire safety drills to improve employees’ awareness of fire
safety, create a good fire safety environment and enhance employees’ ability to escape, self-
rescue and fight fire in fire accidents

AEBTEHAREVNLZE2EE  URSEINEVNLZE2EH  BIERFRENLRE2IRE - 888
T7E KK EB AR H) b A 0 B Rusk 0 A R R K BER B

FAERER

Goal 7: Ensure access to affordable, reliable, sustainable and modern energy for all

Bt BRAAESEEFEN  ASEMAFENRKER

Goal 13: Take urgent action to combat climate change and its impacts

BE+=: KRESTHREREECRETE

13 Jotov

13 RIZATE

4

L 4

RTHRE () BRAR 202253
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RIR e kEnwE(E)

The Group actively responds to the sustainable development
goals (SDGs) of the United Nations, and has always pursued the
concept of green production in its operations. We have established
a refined environmental management system, in which we
systematically review the production process, sort out processes
that involve substantial energy consumption and pollution
discharge, and take a number of energy-saving and emission-
reduction measures in a targeted manner on the basis of compliant
emissions, with an aim to reducing the negative impact of our
business on the environment. At the same time, we plan to launch
environmental protection projects to reduce the consumption
of environmental resources, continuously improve our own
environmental protection performance and create a sustainable
production model. In addition, the Group has identified climate-
related risks and opportunities with reference to the disclosure
recommendations of the Task Force on Climate-Related Financial
Disclosures (TCFD), and formulated response measures for climate
change, with an aim to create a green and low-carbon operation
model to promote green and low-carbon development.

The Group has formulated an internal EHS policy to implement
the concept of valuing environmental protection, health and safety
management from top to bottom. In addition, we have set the
following quantitative environmental targets with 2022 as the base
year and 2025 as the target year:

Category Target by 2025
Al 2025F B2

Pollutants .
TRY RRFRBERRTE T 2%

FEZE MR B AR E T FE2 %
e Zero discharge of industrial wastewater

TR7E TRBEKT R

AEEEROERSEUFERRE R
(SDGs) - HEEBRETHRBEIRELE
B BMEYTEENRREERR X
FHEGSEERRE  MEEMFEEMPESE
B EAMRPREER A SRS
THENRERBEIE IE - RO R R EEBEIRFE
KB EZE : R - LA EHETRERE
B ORAHIRBEEROER - TERABE S
BRRRBR - TEAUHELEEEN - B0
AEE2ERRBBYFEEEKETEA
(TCFD) & 4% 78 22 5% 5 ) R, 1 48 2 /o e B 4
B RMEREBEETER  BHITERE
EixmBEEER - EEARBERER -

REBRETRIFPEHSHE - A EETER
ERER ERENEZE2EEMNES B
BAIA2022 BEAEF » [L20258 B IZF - &
ETE(CHRFEERZR - BEMT :

Total intensity of air pollutant emissions to decrease by 2%

e Total intensity of waste generated to decrease by 2%

Water resources

KXEIR

Energy
BEIR

Packaging materials

a%

Greenhouse gases

BERE

Total intensity of water consumption to decrease by 2%
KREREFEBEE T 2%

Total intensity of energy consumption (such as fuel and electricity) to decrease by 1%
AR B 1 SR IREFE R TR 1%

Total intensity of packaging material consumption to decrease by 1%

BEMEDEEERE THE1%

Total intensity of greenhouse gas emissions to decrease by 1%
BERBHRAEE TRE1%
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

The Group has established a refined environmental management
system and obtained the ISO 14001 environmental management
system certification. In order to ensure that our production and
operation meet the government’s environmental protection
requirements, we assess the environmental impact for all
reconstruction and expansion projects in their early stage; and
establish complete waste treatment facilities, handle pollutant
discharge in a compliant manner, receive government supervision
and obtain pollutant discharge permits during the operation of
projects. Meanwhile, the Emergency Plan for Environmental
Emergencies ( (REREEHESTEZR) ) issued by the Group
has been filed with the Environmental Protection Bureau to
ensure emergency preparedness and response to environmental
emergencies in relation to water, air pollution, human health or
ecological damage that may occur or arise during the production
and operation of factories. During the year, there was no incident
of major pollution to the environment within the Group.

The Group has formulated a series of environmental management
measures such as the Procedures for Identification and
Assessment of Environmental Factors (3R 35 A % 4 5l A1 F (B 72
Fr)), the Procedures for Control of Air Pollution, Noise and Waste
(Z=RBH - BE - BEEYIEFIFEF)), the Procedures for Operation
of Wastewater Treatment Device ((EE/KEIBHEBERIERE)) and
the Operational Guidelines for Emergency Preparedness and
Response ((EEZEFEAERERIEFES])) to clarify the environmental
protection responsibilities of internal employees, understand
the pollution discharge of each process and strictly regulate the
pollutant treatment process, so as to ensure that all kinds of
environmental pollutants are discharged in a compliant manner,
and also minimise the possible losses caused by unexpected
environmental incidents.

Air Pollutants

Environmental target - Air pollutants

REEE - KRSEY

Target
BE as the target year)

Initiative .

RIR - g keamE(E)

AEBEREY TREMNRETEEBR  WERS
TISO 140013RE BB RARE - RERE
EEERABRNRREX - £1BE ATHYFT
BEREZEEHARRESVETE  £BEE
EHRET TENBEEYRERE - SRR
SRR - BRBUTES WIS S TR
F ARAEEBEGH(REREEHESTE
R)EERRBHBR REHHBEEELE
AIEAP A B B AE S AT BE SRR UK BB « KRUR
B NBREESNERRENRERES
HHRITESEENERE - AFE - AEEX
BREHIRBENERNSENEM -

AEERE T CREAZMBIMFAERT)
(ZRBR - RE - BEMEGIERF) - (X
RRIERERERR) (BEEMEEERIE
BEDE—RIRREEFE - ARETAHNE
THRFEBE  ZESTEREASREENE
0o BRABISRMERRE  RESHER
BSRMAGHREN - AFRARERER
BIRBEMF A REER AR -

o
a

|
%
§

Total intensity of air pollutant emissions to decrease by 2% (with 2022 as the base year and 2025
JA2022 REESF - LA2026R B 1REF - RRITAYNHHEEE TF2%

Continuously optimise the production process to reduce air pollution, and collect and treat

T8 exhaust gases generated from production workshops in a centralised manner

SEBLEETERORRSE

ML =TT RIRE LR

HRWEREEESFER

e Use secondary treatment process to purify exhaust gases generated from production, and
regularly maintain exhaust gas treatment devices
FRM-_ARRBTEFEERR  THREEERREBERE

e Regularly engage a third-party to monitor the concentration of exhaust gases

BTHEE (%) BRAR 2022F 3k
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

R e MEamE (E)

The Group regularly updates the List of Exhaust Gases ( (EEq)E
%) ), and identifies and assesses the sources of emissions for
exhaust gases within such list. The sources and types of exhaust
gas emissions of the Group mainly include:

e Organic exhaust gases: Exhaust gases and dust generated
from spraying, printing and injection molding in the injection
molding workshops, the main components of which are
benzene, toluene, xylene, volatile organic compounds (VOCs),
non-methane hydrocarbons (NMHC) and particulate matter
(PM)

e General exhaust gases: Exhaust gases generated from the
burning of fossil fuels in stationary and mobile sources, the
main components of which are nitrogen oxides (NOx), sulphur
oxides (SOx) and particulate matter (PM)

For the exhaust gases generated from the injection molding
workshops, the Group has adopted compliant collection, treatment
and monitoring measures. The organic exhaust gases are mainly
collected by the gas collection hood, and then treated by the
secondary device of “UV photolysis purifier + activated carbon”,
and then discharged through chimneys to high up in the air.
Every quarter, a third-party institution is engaged to monitor the
concentration of exhaust gases from non-fugitive and fugitive
emissions, so as to ensure that the concentration of emissions
meets the relevant local air pollutant emission standards in the
areas where the factories are located. The activated carbon used
to adsorb organic matters in the exhaust gas treatment process
is replaced regularly, and the waste activated carbon is treated as
hazardous waste.

AEBEREHRCERFE)  LHHZFE
o BE S B R BEUR BB B AR A THE - A&
EH R RBEURME R BT EREE ¢

o BHEES IPEMELNEEES -

ENRIEER « ZBERRME  EFEK
DAERBR . —BX . EREFH#L
AW (VOCs) + JEF kT 48 & (NMHC) 7 58
L) (PM)

o EHER: BTERMBEBRMRENLAK
HELEHNER  EXExs>R481Y
(NOx) * W& ¥ (SOx) FFERLY) (PM)

HIOTRERER > AKECRRAROK
& REREAERE BHERIZHER
BRE  BRETUVARFSR+EMER ] =R
KEREBRABEEIIHRESN  BFE
RHE =T IE S B AN B A BB RE
ROREEITER - AIREFBOREN & BR
= I AR BE B KSR P AR - BERR IR
TERRHERBREEREERNER - &
REMERIERERERE -

Hazardous waste treatment device in a factory

BEERERERE
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIE - e hEamE(E)

The emissions and total emission intensity of the aforementioned it & FERE EHE R = A0 EE R AR HE A R 0

exhaust gases are shown in the table below: TEAR :
Exhaust gas emissions Unit
BEREFEK By 2022 2021 2020

Stationary sources

[E] 7R BE SRR

Benzene kg

ES T 60.1 36.9 333

Toluene kg

Gk T 126.6 116.4 230.6

Xylene kg

—HRX T 131.4 122.7 151.0

Volatile organic compounds (VOCs) kg

B AR A H(VOCS) T 1,985.6 1,742.7 636.2

Non-methane hydrocarbons (NMHC) kg

FEF L K (NMHC) TR 1,586.6 667.8 2,616.5

Particulate matter (PM) kg

AR ASRZRLF (PM) = 500.3 346.1 643.3

Mobile sources

BRRRAKR

Nitrogen oxides (NOx) kg

A ALY (NOX) T 11.0 3.7 3.6

Sulphur oxides (SOx) kg

FREE%(SOx) T 0.2 1.3 1.1

Particulate matter (PM) kg

AR ASRIFRLF (PM) T 0.8 0.5 0.4

Total exhaust gas emissions kg

RERAETNE T 4,402.6 3,038.1 4,316.0

Total exhaust gas emission intensity kg/million HKD

RN EE T/ BEBY 1.9 13 2.1

Note:  No NMHC or VOCs testing was carried out at the exhaust outlets of the H: 2021 EFYIBEER RO E—NE —FERET

Shenzhen factory in the first and second quarters of 2021, but testing was NMHCHIVOCs#8l - 2022 HE 2 E408 : A
carried out throughout 2022. In addition, the products and processes in 2022 202F EEMEMRIZE F—FEMHEAEME
changed as compared to the previous year. As such, exhaust gas emissions b WA EEERIERER -

increased during the year.
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82

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RIR e kEnwE(E)

Waste

Environmental target - Waste

REEE - BEREY

2025 as the target year)

Initiative °
T8 classification training to employees

dispose hazardous waste

The Group has identified processes that generate waste, and
formulated the List of Waste ( {EE#)/E2) ). The business lines
that generate hazardous and non-hazardous waste and the specific
substances mainly include:

e Hazardous waste: Waste ink, waste paint residue, waste
gloves and rags, waste packaging barrels, waste activated
carbon and wastewater from spray paint generated from the
injection molding business, as well as oily iron filings, waste
resin, waste filter, waste cutting fluid and waste mineral oil
from the mold business

e Non-hazardous waste: Domestic garbage generated from
canteens and dormitories, paper and packaging bags
generated from offices, etc.

For hazardous waste, the Group collects and disposes them in a
classified and centralised manner according to the regulations. The
Group collects hazardous waste in a classified manner according to
the waste treatment procedures and stores them in the hazardous
waste storage rooms. At the same time, the Group has taken anti-
leakage measures and posted corresponding warning signs. The
hazardous waste are regularly handed over to qualified institutions
for recycling and disposal, and are recorded in the hazardous waste
record book for management. Meanwhile, the Group has installed
air concentration alarms and fire protection and ventilation facilities
in the hazardous waste storage rooms to ensure the safety of the
waste storage rooms.
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=53]

Total intensity of waste generated to decrease by 2% (with 2022 as the base year and

LA2022 BEESF + PA2025 B ERF - BREVNBEMERE TH2%

Collect hazardous and non-hazardous waste in a classified manner, and provide waste

DHEREREREEERY 0 ME THREYDRE

e Set up hazardous waste storage rooms, and regularly engage third-parties to recycle and

EVEENEE - AEEEYERAE =B EE
e Recycle non-hazardous waste and implement the Zero Waste to Landfill (ZWTL) certification

A REEERY  RREZRNTHERE

AEECDBRNEVELRBLET(EDS
) EXRENETERVNRTRMAR
MEEZEHE

s AEERY: IEXBELNEME
BEHRE BFERM BEEKW E
AEREEREK  IREBELENS
HEE - B ERIRES - BEYE
R~ BEREY)H

s BERRY: REBSELAMARN
T J|AEELENMBEBERBERSE

HRAZEREY  ARERAESRREHE
F—mE ARERSBEREREYEERF
DRWERRFREEREE - B M
BIRERLRMEEETE  ERXBEEE
MEEL KRR - WEBBRERY BRE
TRCER B - A - AREELETEET
EREZERRERES B MBRRE © A
REBEDEFEBNRZ 2 -



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

For non-hazardous waste, the Group further classifies them into
recyclable and non-recyclable waste. Recyclable waste such as
paper and packaging materials are collected and sold on a regular
basis by the Logistics Department, which shall then make record
for the transfer of such waste. Non-recyclable waste such as
domestic garbage are cleaned up on a daily basis by the Logistics
Department, which shall then hand over such waste to garbage
dump services for centralised treatment.

The total amount and intensity of the hazardous and non-hazardous
waste generated by the Group are shown in the table below:

Waste generated Unit
BRI HE R By
Hazardous waste tonne
BEEEY NI
Non-hazardous waste tonne
mEREEY) NI

Intensity of waste generated

BERUFRBE

tonne/million HKD
UN PR Y 1

Hazardous waste

BEERY

tonne/million HKD

AW B EBE

Non-hazardous waste

In addition, the Group actively promotes the Zero Waste to Landfill
(ZWTL) certification programme, which is a new standard in
corporate environmental compliance and focuses on the proper
management of garbage and the validation of waste conversion
rate of landfill sites. The expectation of the ZWTL mechanism is to
achieve the goal of “zero” landfill through “waste reduction”.

ZWTL mechanism
ZWT L2 AR )

RIR - g keamE(E)

HREERRY  AKEE—FRAEYK
TR EKEEY D ERE - &85 - BEEA
ClUEEZY) - MR B0 E A SR B B aF
BRRE  LENRETAOKEREY - &
RYAFRBFELTRXHRFUR —BRIE

AEEELNEERETERYBRERE
WRRMAR -

m

2022 2021 2020
402.6 494.6 364.3
1,896.9 2,257.3 1,740.5
0.2 0.2 0.2

0.8 0.9 0.9

SN REBEBRHEITEEYZIEIE (Zero
Waste To Landfill + @ ‘ZWTL ") REBE IR

B @2t XERBEHEHN —EMTE
BRI IRNEE TIEWRE N RIAEES
HIERYELE - BEEYTIEIB(ZWTL)#E
i) 2 HAE R B R E ERK T PRIB B R o

Reuse

EEEA

Recycle

AR

Convert waste
to energy
EEYNREIREE L
Landfill
Hi8

e  Generation of power from waste
REEMIEE

e Anaerobic digestion
[BREHEE

e Biofuels
A WREL

e Composting

HERE

FTEE (BR) SRAR2025% 83
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RIR e kEnwE(E)

The Group has transformed waste management into resource
management through the compliance management, inspection and
audit of flows of waste as well as the feasible transfer of waste,
with an aim to achieving a virtuous resource cycle of “production —
consumption — recycling”.

e Reduce waste: Change ink pad printing machines to pad
printing machines to reduce ink consumption; use large
barrels for purchasing paint to reduce the amount of empty
barrels; reduce the frequency of mold cleanings and use stain-
removing paper as much as possible to reduce the use of
cleaning agents, etc.

e Reuse: Control the use of chemical rags and require the use of
both sides of rags for multiple times

e Recycle: Recycle waste cloth for washing light-coloured
screens or relatively clean waste cloth to clean dark-coloured

screens

Wastewater

Environmental target - Wastewater

REEE - BEX

Target Zero discharge of industrial wastewater

B TRiE TR BRI

Initiative ©

T8 B BEKEITRIS D
TREKEWERE - ZRTHER

TEHiRE I I B A S 7K BE TR R Bt

The Group strictly controls wastewater discharge. The drainage
pipes in factories separate rainwater and sewage, and the
types of wastewater generated can be divided into industrial
wastewater and domestic wastewater. Industrial wastewater
is generated from the ultrasonic cleaning production line, and
domestic wastewater is generated from offices. The Group has
achieved zero discharge in terms of industrial wastewater, and the
domestic wastewater generated from offices is discharged into the
municipal pipe network in a centralised manner.
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AEBBEAHMBEBERYRAETERIEE
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RERAE  BARNRBEEBEBRR R
LEBAE  RAOEEBRIRNE - &R
BEFEAESHER BB EEAER
%

e HEMH: EHIAELBERHEMAE

A BREMZE - ZIRER

o MRIRMEM : MUWERLZE MR RED
HEREOFNRES - BRBNREER

Bk

Implement rainwater and sewage separation for the drainage of factories
e Recycle industrial wastewater to achieve zero discharge

e Regularly inspect and timely maintain water treatment facilities

AREEEREBIERER - MEIIKEER
B EEMBEKEBEAN S S TEENK
KATEREK » TR BEKIIRN R BB RE
AR ERBKRERMARE - AEETE
FEKTHER - AR AETEREKSR — AT
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

The Group collects all industrial wastewater and reuse them in the
workshops and production lines after the “MBR + reverse osmosis
(RO)" treatment to meet the industrial washing water standard,
thereby achieving the goal of zero discharge. The Group's
Production Department ensures that industrial wastewater is
collected separately from domestic wastewater and rainwater.
The EHS Department supervises the separate collection of
industrial wastewater, and engages a third-party institution every
quarter to test whether the recycled water meets the standard.
The Equipment Department inspects wastewater collection and
treatment facilities on a daily basis, so as to ensure that the
wastewater pipes are leak-free and the treatment devices operate
normally.

The Group has incorporated the concept of resource conservation
into the entire production process, and has adopted various
measures to save water resources and reduce energy
consumption, so as to reduce the impact on the environment
and natural resources while lowering production costs. On the
basis of formulating water-saving and energy-saving targets in the
factories, the Group has used production facilities with low water
consumption and energy consumption, applied water-saving and
energy-saving production processes, used online control systems
to improve equipment operation efficiency, and conducted facility
inspection and maintenance in a timely manner, in order to feasibly
and reasonably reduce consumption of resources in its business.
At the same time, the Group has also reduced the consumption of
resources in its business by recycling and reusing environmentally-
friendly packaging materials. The areas where the Group's
factories are located have abundant water resources and matured
water supply system and facilities. As such, there is no difficulty in
obtaining water sources.

Water Resources

Environmental target - Water resources
BEBRRE - KER

Target
BZ the target year)

Initiative °
178 BlLEETIE  RIOKERRE
SRR KEL A EE R D

pE-ASRE VI viifz o 2tk

RIR - g keamE(E)

HRIXEK ASEGHEHZEEE &
[MBR+R 2% | TE 512 2% 5 T 2R RAKX
RER - 2R AN EMERMZED TIEE
MBI - REEEERERTEEKE LI
& TEAEBRKNBEIOES  EHSHEE
TREKBELMERER  BFEMRE=7
BERADBKEEER  RIBEMBEALR
FEKWER BB IR BRI - REEREKE BEIRIR
NERIEE B IEFEET ©

AEEBERBOETBRALERBIE - &
REBREFEHAKERMETERE - ERFE
EERANRERESRBNRRAE RN
& AEBE LS EMESKEE R EER
t - EAEKFEREERNLEERE - &
KSR EETE - FRERIEN RGRES
REETRE  MBERRREBREEESTF
BHBAaEMRIEFHERNRE  F
&R BRI BRERRFERFRIEW
EEXBHERIERE - NEE XK MR TS
wEKERTER HOKERERETE - &
SKERKR E N ER 2 -

KER

Total intensity of water consumption to decrease by 2% (with 2022 as the base year and 2025 as
JA2022 REAESE » PL2025 % B IRE - KERMNBFELZTE 2%

Optimise production processes to reduce water consumption

e Replace existing facilities with water-saving production facilities

e  Strengthen the maintenance and management of ordinary water facilities

BTHEE (%) BRAR 2022F 3k

85



86

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

R e MEamE (E)

The Group is committed to reducing the consumption of water
resources. During the year, the Group set water consumption
targets for the injection molding business in the factories,
implemented appropriate water-saving measures in production
and office areas, promoted water-saving awareness among
employees, and monitored monthly water consumption
to compare planned water consumption with actual water
consumption.

During the year, the injection molding factory of the Shenzhen
headquarters set internal water-saving targets, and achieved the
water-saving targets through measures such as upgrading water
equipment and optimising water processes. For example, it:

e changed the open cooling tower to a water-saving closed
cooling tower to significantly reduce the amount of water used
in the cooling tower

e controlled the use of on-site washing water guns according to
the production schedule, and limited the number of cleanings
for each product to two times and the amount of cleaning
water to b5 kg/time

e conducted daily inspections to reduce leakage of pumps,
pipes, valves, etc.

Case example

The Group has replaced the obsolete open water tower with a
high-efficiency, energy-saving and water-saving closed cooling
tower. Upon modification, the entire pipeline system has become a
closed circulation with cold water as circulating water. The closed
circulation of cooling medium can prevent debris from entering the
cooling pipeline system and avoid evaporation loss of production
equipment. The modified cooling water can improve the quality of
molds and save a significant amount of water. Before modification,
the annual water replenishment volume was 21,600 m®. Upon
modification, there is no need to replenish water, and the water
consumption is negligible.

REBRAOROKERERE  AEETBE
BEETHREEKEE ELEERPARESE
HITEROEKERE  EEE8TREHKE
o BESARKER  HertslAkER
BEERAKE -

ARYIEEBE T2 MR AN FERE T AEREIK
BiR  BBTARAKRENELAKIZSE
BIFEKEKBAR - g :

% B % Al 7KE B R BT K B B A% A
K - RER AL ANERIKE

o WAEEBEIESIESEKENER R
EFREMBEXNE2K  BHENKEAESD
kg, I}

o ETHEKR  URIKR BB W
FERERRER

=4

RAGUESENEKEARSAERELE
MR KIS  BEREEERRGER/HMAR
BIR - BRKRAK  RAONEEHEAR
RADIEEDEANSNEBRRGEMEER
R BIER - WERMNSAKAIARFER
BWmE - WARBEUK  BUERTN 2 FHKE
2168 77K  HEUEREFTBERMEK -
& &K FE 8 A BRETET

Closed circulation cooling tower
HEARERSL AKE
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
BRI g REREME(E)

The Group's total water resource consumption and intensity are RNEB/KEBREFEENTENTNRAR -
shown in the table below:

Water consumption Unit

KEREFE By 2022 2021 2020

Total volume m?

we LK 233,779 247,847 252,636

Intensity m?3/million HKD

HE SR BEBE 102.6 103.1 124.2
Energy BE IR

Environmental target - Energy

REEE - R

Target Total intensity of energy consumption to decrease by 1% (with 2022 as the base year and 2025
BZ as the target year)
LA2022 BEESF - JA2025 8 B 1R @ BEREVAHEEEE TF1%

Initiative e Promote energy-saving production and operation processes

78 HITEREEEEIT IS

e Replace existing facilities with energy-saving production facilities
RGN A 4 E R

e Strengthen the maintenance and management of ordinary energy-consuming facilities
hnag B # A AL AR i Y A R AN B IR

The Group is committed to reducing energy consumption REBRONBREEERE  SETRTEY
in production. The main energy consumption in the Group's BeESHIE AN ERS  ANEETBERET
production is electricity consumption of equipment. During the THEESEE  ELXERBAREHS
year, the Group set power consumption targets for the injection WHETERE N WRBERLRETEZRS
molding business in the factories, implemented effective power- TEEREITRERE DT o

saving measures in production and office areas, and regularly

conducted energy consumption analysis through the energy and

equipment management system.

During the year, the injection molding factory of the Shenzhen ;%ﬂ”ﬁ@qgg@?;#aﬁ@$¢ﬁ%\]i7 NZLEE

nwes B
headquarters set internal electricity consumption targets, and BiZ  RBEREALEERRESEES S
rationally consumed energy by using the public energy and B EETE AR ET S ERNEEEESE X
equipment management platform to adjust equipment operation AEFNBRLR - il -

modes or implementing equipment modification projects. For
example, it:

e promoted the energy-saving project of public facilities and o %&;&ﬂ}ﬂ%&ﬁ@%&ﬁﬁﬁaglﬁa PRI E

equipment, and launched and operated the automatic control R S B E R IR TSR E
system for air compressors to improve the operating efficiency ﬁﬂ% CERABREBEHEHAKNEE
of air compressors and implement the power-saving operation BT

mode of automatic shutdown and start-up during holidays

e upgraded the cooling water tower with frequency conversion o WMAAUKEFARASIEAEIES - B
automatic control to reduce the power consumption of water KRETHS
pumps

RIE® (=A%) BRAR] 2022F H
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RE g kERmE (&)

e adjusted the cooling time of central air conditioning according o HEATHMREE(LARDREFAMSE
to changes in local temperature, shortened the cooling time on M R TIEERARRE  HUKEE
working days, and stopped cooling at other times =593

e strengthened equipment maintenance and manual o MEREGHREBHATITE  FHBEXE
intervention, and regularly cleaned heat exchangers and other HRERE  REABEME

equipment to improve electricity efficiency
Case example Z 41

Without affecting production, the Group has set air conditioning ETEELERNBLT  BEARERER
temperature between 27.5~28°C whenever possible; cleaned TEAE27.5~28T 2 M EFBERE A M
the filter screen of air conditioners in time every month; checked EIR xRN ELESTE AR -
the air supply belt of air conditioners in time, and replaced it FRITBERAI A ER B EENMEE
immediately if it is loose, rolling and slipping, so as to reduce THER R BERIE K o

energy loss from clogging and aging parts.

In addition, for other energy consumption such as fuel used by BN R RBESRERASEMEERE -
vehicles or equipment, the Group will consider introducing new EBARKeEES|EFHRLRER > UWHDE
energy vehicles in the future to reduce fuel consumption of AR o

vehicles.

The Group's various types of energy consumption and total energy AREBSEEEREEE NELREZRE IS L

consumption intensity are shown in the table below: T :
Energy consumption Unit
BERIHFE By 2022 2021 2020
Direct energy consumption
BERER
Gasoline GJ
FUH HE 566.5 538.8 457.9
Coal gas GJ
j ) HE 2.1 2.4 3.1
Liquefied petroleum gas GJ
AR aE 3.7 3.8 1.9
Total direct energy consumption GJ
BERLRER HH 572.3 545.0 462.9
Indirect energy consumption
R RER
Electricity MWh
EW)) JKFL B 70,762.3 80,158.0 68,956.7
Total energy consumption MWh
REEFE JKEL B 70,921.2 80,309.4 69,085.3
Total energy consumption intensity MWh/million HKD
BELRERE KEE,B8EEE 31.1 33.4 34.0
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIR g kERsmE (@)

Packaging Materials GELIES

Environmental target - Packaging materials

REBE - BREYH

Target Total intensity of packaging material consumption to decrease by 1% (with 2022 as the base year
BE and 2025 as the target year)
LA2022 BFAESE - [A20256 5 BIRGE - BRAEMEEEE THE1%

Initiative e Use environmentally-friendly materials as alternatives to reduce environmental pollution
78 BERERRRM BB D IRE S
e Recycle and reuse packaging materials to reduce waste

[ 45 F 1B 3R 2 F B MR A PR EOR B

The Group has regulated the use of product materials, and reduced AEERBE TEMYENER  BBEFEHR
environmental burdens and natural resource consumption by using RE R ENE R DIREAEME
environmentally-friendly materials and recycled materials. RERIEFE o

The Group has gradually increased the use of environmentally- N E B X A1 IR R R & B U R e E B
friendly materials and recycled materials. The specific measures el - BEEE T -
are as follows:

e For the mold business, 274 kg of oil-based paint was replaced o THREKA274 kghERE B AIRIRK
with environmentally-friendly water-based paint, the utilisation 1R - KMERFE A EEI2.9%
rate of which reached 92.9%

e For the mold business, the proportion of recycled copper o T iEZEF(E O Ok e &L Fl = 3
materials used reached 79.0% 79.0%

e For the injection molding business, 2,988kg environmentally- o EF¥BZERSH(E AIRIRKIEZR2,988kg ¢ A]
friendly water-based paint and 65,575kg recycled PCR material Bl Y7 PCR# #165,575kg

were used

e The containers used for product shipments were recycled and o HWERMEERFERNFEEMMEITRE YW
reused BEFA

The Group's total consumption and intensity of packaging REE  NEEBEMEEHEEELZEWN

materials during the year are shown in the table below: TRAR :
Packaging material consumption Unit
BEMEEFE By 2022 2021 2020
Total volume tonne
we NI 1,961.0 2,127.7 2,011.2
Intensity tonne/million
BE NmE B EEE 0.9 0.9 1.0

RIE® (=A%) BRAR] 2022F H
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RIS e hEawmE (&)

Climate change is an issue that companies across the globe need
to combat together. The Chinese government is also actively
implementing the goal of “carbon peaking and carbon neutrality”
to promote green and low-carbon transformation of enterprises.
The Group has been deeply aware of the various risks that climate
change will bring to its business, and has complied statistics
and disclosed carbon emission data related to its operations. In
order to ensure sustainable business development, the Group
has preliminarily identified and assessed climate-related risks
and opportunities related to its business with reference to the
disclosure recommendations of the Task Force on Climate-Related
Financial Disclosures (TCFD). In addition, the Group is actively
formulating plans to reduce the negative impact of greenhouse gas
emissions, so as to reasonably respond to the impact of climate
change.

Greenhouse Gas Emissions

Environmental target - Greenhouse gas emissions

REER-BRERE

Target
BE as the target year)

Initiative o
T8 energy-saving and emission-reduction

saving facilities
HETRRRE R BE A BE T2 AN A AR AE R -

RRETBISI SN B BRI

The Group's greenhouse gas emissions mainly arise from the
greenhouse gas emissions from electricity used in production
facilities (Scope 2) and, to a lesser extent, greenhouse gas
emissions from equipment or system operation (Scope 1).
At the same time, in order to more effectively observe the
Group’s greenhouse gas emissions, in addition to monitoring the
greenhouse gas emissions from the daily production and operation
process, we also took into account of the indirect greenhouse gas
emissions from air business travel of employees (Scope 3) during
the year.
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MEBZERERBHMIBRIL R E TS AR
e Promote production processes for energy-saving and emission-reduction and use energy-

REZEERRECEFTHRAEENZRSE - B
BBt EEEREE (SR BIE - RERE
e EREE - AKRED R B ZIRE
B eHEBTRELERR  MERTILE
BEL $HEEE’JE}TIT3FESZ§5(TF Al B R AR R 7%
WA HEERE  AEE2EREBAMKE
,%\T&E?I{’E/J\%H(TCFD)E’H&?Ei%%%  IE R
I I 37 B2 B 5 2 75 A0 R ) SR 1R [ B DA K 4

B e BRI ARE ERBEE S| AR ER
ERBERSENEETE - SEEHRRK
BERNEE

BEREBHER

Intensity of greenhouse gas emissions to decrease by 1% (with 2022 as the base year and 2025

LA2022 BREESF + L2025 B ERF - BAEREBNBEREE TE&1%

Compile and verify data for greenhouse gas emissions and set quantitative targets for

/WHFE E *T '

e  Plan to introduce photovoltaic power generation facilities in the future

AEELEREFREZRFENEERER
%E’Jfﬂ mEHFR(BE=) HRXEXBERN
RELERRETELNAERBIHR(BE

—) R REAMMEEARENAER
BEMBEL REZRFLEEELRRETE
FEVREREBENIN - NRERERFUEREING

SFTEIREEIREENEEREEREHER
(#l5=) -



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

The detailed data of the Group’s greenhouse gas emissions during
the year are shown in the table below:

Greenhouse gas emissions Unit
BERBHK B

Scope 1 - Direct greenhouse gas emissions

- - ERREREHER

Fossil fuel combustion — stationary sources tCOe
e BB B - EEIR AHE A LiRE &
Fossil fuel combustion — mobile sources tCO,e
e BB B - BEIR A S LirEE
Equipment and system operation tCO,e
R R R BB B RS birEE
Greenhouse gas reduction — trees tCOe
R E TSR - B ABE =S LiRE S
Total Scope 1 emissions tCOe
SE—Hes A =S LiRE =

Scope 2 - Indirect greenhouse gas emissions from energy use

HE— - REEREREHER

Purchased electricity tCOe
HMEE /Aﬂmﬁ fitixgE

Scope 3 - Indirect greenhouse gas emissions from the value chain

HiE= - EEEBEAZREIHEN

Air business travel of employees tCO ,€
8 TR E IR ﬂ@ altixE=
Total emissions tCO ,€
B = umﬁ aitirg s
Total emission intensity tCO ,&/million HKD
B EE u@ SULiRE S
BEBEK
Notes:

1)  Scope 2 and total greenhouse gas emissions in 2021 changed due to the update
of the National Grid Emission Factor used for calculation in 2021;

2) In 2022, Scope 3 greenhouse gas emissions increased due to the increase in the

number of international business travel of employees.

Risks and Opportunities from Climate Change

Based on business characteristics, the Group has identified the
following short-term (1~3 years), medium-term (3~5 years) and
long-term (5~10 years) physical risks and transition risks related to
climate change. Physical risks refer to the economic loss caused
by more frequent and severe natural disasters (e.g. typhoon,
flood), and the impact of changes in long-term climate pattern (e.g.
ocean acidification, sea level rise). Transition risks refer to the

RE e keamE (@)

AEE AEEBEREAEEREIENT
FRATR :

2022 2021 2020
0.4 0.4 0.3
44.2 36.6 31.1
105.9 526.1 148.8
(9.9) / /
140.6 563.1 180.2
41,112.9 46,571.8 42,070.5
94.8 55.2 55.2
41,348.3 47,190.1 42,305.9
18.1 19.6 20.8

1) HEEF 021 FAEFEANEZEERHERET - &
2021 FREREHE —MEFREGEL

2) 2022F B TREIFRZHROREUEN - SOREREHEE=
BERE LM -

RixEBRREB

AEBEEREBEFHBNHATER(1-3
F) - PHI(3~55F) » KRHI(5~10F) BR IR
ZEAANERRRIEERER - BEE
?EEIEAE%*}E%E%DJﬂiﬂ’UQ?f‘“%(ﬁﬂﬂaﬂ
HAROEHLBEIRL - AR RHNRIEER
B (K BRL - B E LT FTE R
£ - BRERERBRETEREESIM

RIE® (=A%) BRAR] 2022F H
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
REE - g LEAmE(8)

uncertain economic impact brought by the overly rapid transition EROTNEENLCEZE  BREEEMER
to a low-carbon economy, including changes in policies and laws, Bk RHERHRHERE - TSR FEE
technological breakthroughs or restrictions, changes in market £

preferences, etc.

Category Timespan Climate-related risks Potential impact relevant to us
oE i 8 &5 RIZEBEN RS BEERMEENEESE
Physical risks %8 & k&
Acute Medium- to long- Frequent occurrence of e  Reduction of production capacity due to power
= term extreme weather events shortage
R AR such as heat wave, typhoon BN HRERAERE N T
and flood e Increase in operating costs due to insufficient water
=08 BB - K E R KR supply in the circulation pipe network
ES L BIRE@AMKT B EBUE L K AFIL
”””” | [ ts due to d t ducti
Chronic Long-term Intensification of changes * nc_r(_egse N costs cUe 1o camage fo proddction
(=4S K in climate pattern such as facilities
- - N A EE AR B R SR S BB AR Y FT 1
ocean acidification and sea
level rise
KL BT E EAERE
e BoAmRER
Long-term Average temperature rise
. L= =
Transition risks & E & k&
Policy and legal ~ Short-term Increase in pricing on e [ncrease in compliance costs
TS FsE o 1A greenhouse gas emissions BRI
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, ERREREMER
Short-term Increasing requirements on
EH disclosure obligations for
emissions
L TnEBEREREER
Short- to Supervision on existing
medium-term products and services
. EEmER - WRARRNERBEE
Technology Medium- to long- Costs of transition to low- e FEarly phase-out of energy-intensive facilities
Rl term emission technologies = FERE AL B MY T2 AT VAR
REM REERBPGRERRA
Long-term Use of clean energy with low e  Expenditure on new facilities such as solar power
R HA greenhouse gas emissions ABGRe B EEH R MBS E
to replace existing electricity ¢  Costs of adoption/deployment of carbon capture and
sources storage technologies
FRZEREHRIEDNS R RAEE R EMFET R AR A
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, RERRBOEN .
Market Short-term Increase in raw material e Increase in production costs due to changes in price of
Mm% EH costs raw materials (e.g. purchased plastics and metals)
R RLBE AN RT3 HREME (NELEBNSE) BRNELEREERK
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, AR .
Medium- to long- Increase in stakeholders’ e |ower profitability due to the negative impact on
term interest or negative personnel management and planning (e.g. outflow of
R H feedback personnel)
Fiin & S 5k A T IR 88 00T AT EBNRENBEFZE (LI - AT RKR)EHAF
i BRI N TR

e  Shareholders may abandon investment in mold/
injection molding related business

IR AT RE & MR E T+ AR 75
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Based on our business development goals and plans, with active

reference to the recommendations of the Task Force on Climate-

Related Financial Disclosures (TCED),

we have identified the

following climate-related opportunities in five aspects: resource

efficiency, energy sources, products and services, markets and
business development resilience.

Category
=l
Resource efficiency

BIRBE

Climate-related opportunities

RIZHEREANKE

tEkERmE(E)

IRIE

BMERESFEBEREZHERE - BB
=R T T IE/) 48 (TCFD) fy 22
#EERME  ERRR  EMERS -
MBUAREFRERIERE S @R L TN
TRIRIBEMS -

Potential impact relevant to us

e  Use of circulating water

TBER KA A
Optimisation of energy-saving equipment

figERR R

BERMEBNEESR
e  Reduction of operating costs
P IE & PR AR

Improvement of production efficiency

R A

Energy sources

BEIR AR

Use of clean energy such as solar power
ERBREER - PIAI5EES
Government financial support for use of
clean energy

BT $9 5 FR B2 B IR 80 B B S 75
Participation in carbon markets

2 EfR T 5

Reduction of risk of increase in future fossil
fuel prices

B R IRALARREHES EFREY b
Reduction of greenhouse gas emissions
and risk of incremental carbon costs
AR EREEHER - PR EHRAK AT A [
Increase in capital attractiveness (e.g.
preference of investors for low emission
manufacturers)

HINEARES| (a0 - REESHRIEHERAE

Products and services

2 S AR 7%

Development of low-carbon production
technologies through R&D and innovation
iR BT AN BT B BHE AR A E R
Preference of customers for suppliers with
low carbon emissions

B P AR S 6 R R0 (L e i

Acquisition of new customers and increase
in revenue by promoting low-carbon
production technologies and using clean
energy
i 38 HE

R A EE R AN 68 F 0B IR BE TR #7 48

Markets
M5

Taking advantage of the incentives granted
by the government

£ AT 4a T 60 B Eb 1 B

Increase in revenue by entering into
emerging markets through cooperation
with local governments

338 BRI 5 BT & VR AT BT 35
3= pill|

BEIREA

Business development
resilience

FEERI ML

Participation in renewable raw material
development programmes and adoption of
energy-saving and consumption-reduction
measures

2 EA A 5 AE JROR) G 35 51 81 3F SR ER &
i)

Increase in product diversification

EINERNZE

BEFF FETE

Increase in revenue by using advanced
green raw materials/low-carbon production
technologies to ensure resilience in our
business development

T et v IR MR A E R R R
MR EBERIDE - UERKABEM

RIE® (=A%) BRAR] 2022F H
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

00 |7 \ PaxasNYANE = =
R g kERTmE(E)
Response to Climate-related Risks

In order to reduce the risks that climate change may bring to
its business in the future, the Group is now gradually reducing
greenhouse gas emissions from its own operations by formulating
extreme weather response policies and promoting production
measures for energy-saving and emission-reduction. In the
future, the Group also plans to increase the use of clean energy
and conduct research on production-related carbon-reduction
mechanism to pursue the national goal of “carbon peaking and
carbon neutrality”.

In response to physical risks (e.g. extreme weather events such
as heat wave, rainstorm and flood), the Group has formulated
relevant emergency plans, including but not limited to distributing
heatstroke prevention medication for employees and placing
sandbags for flood prevention.

In response to transition risks, the Group has followed the principle
of procuring materials from the nearest location and limited the
transportation distance of material purchases within the scope of
business. Except for materials specified by customers, the driving
time for transportation of purchased materials shall be no more
than one hour. In addition, the Group will add solar glass curtain
walls to new construction projects in the future as photovoltaic
power generation facilities, and expects to carry out technological
research related to energy conservation and emission reduction
with colleges or suppliers in the future to reduce CO, emissions in
the heating procedure and the conversion of toxic and hazardous
organic substances in the production process.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

SUSTAINABLE OPERATION

The Group has adhered to the concept of maintaining honesty and
compliant operation, and has continued to improve the integrity
of our management system, optimised the internal supervision
process and strengthened cooperation with external suppliers, so
as to jointly explore a sustainable business ecosystem.

Code of Business Ethics

Integrity, honesty, fairness, justice and moral business conduct are
the core values of the Group. We strictly comply with relevant laws
and regulations such as the Company Law of the People’s Republic
of China ( (P ZEARKEMBE N EE)
Law of the People’s Republic of China ( {FZEARKEMBERFNEE
#S%) ) and the Interim Provisions on Prohibition of Commercial
Bribery ( (FARZEIFEXEBERRITAMNEITRE) ), and are committed
to establishing a corporate culture of honesty, trustworthiness
and fair competition through the commitment to compliance and
ethics. In an increasingly complex business environment, in order

), the Anti-Unfair Competition

to foster correct business conduct among all employees of the
Group, we have formulated the Administrative Measures for Code
of Ethics and Business Conduct ( (ZEEREBMEEITREEFIE) )
based on the Group's values and applicable laws for business, and
made revisions and additions to such code during the year, so as
to refine the details of product compliance, conflict of interest,
anti-money laundering and anti-terrorist financing compliance. In
addition, the Group has required all subsidiaries to conduct audits
on key compliance areas through self-inspection, special audits
and internal independent audits to ensure the effectiveness of
compliance management.

Anti-corruption and Advocacy of Integrity

The Group has attached great importance to the necessity of risk
management and internal control for the compliant operation and
sustainable development of the enterprise. In order to improve
the process and ensure the effectiveness of the internal control
system, the Group's Internal Audit Department is responsible for
assessing the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’'s risk
management and internal control system, and shall make reports
thereon to the Board and management.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

R e MEamE (E)

During the year, the Group formulated the Anti-Corruption Policy
( {mEJ5HEK) ) and established an anti-corruption monitoring
framework to prevent possible corruption risks through
three stages, i.e. assessment and monitoring, training and
communication, and review.

e Assessment and monitoring

The Group regularly identifies and assesses corruption
risks, and has implemented corresponding internal controls
to reduce risks. The Group's anti-corruption monitoring
framework requires the Directors, senior management and
employees to avoid any actual or potential conflicts of interest
whenever possible when conducting the Group's business,
and to disclose any conflicts of interest where appropriate. At
the same time, in order to provide clear guidance on conflicts
of interest to all employees, the Group has incorporated
matters such as solicitation or acceptance of benefits,
charitable donations and recruitment into the Administrative
Measures for Gifts ( (FEmEIRFIE) ) and the Administrative
Measures for Code of Ethics and Business Conduct ( {ZEfE37
HMEETAEESIE) ) of the Group.

e Training and communication

The Group provides extensive anti-corruption training courses
for the Directors, senior management and general employees
to minimise corresponding risks. The Group has formulated
a mechanism for grading the sensitivity of employees, in
which employees are graded by sensitivities according to their
responsibilities, and anti-fraud training requirements are put
forward based on their sensitivities. During the year, the Group
required newly recruited employees and current employees in
sensitive positions at grade B and above to participate in the
WeChat online training — Corporate Anti-Fraud Training ( {13
R EEBEZS) ), and recorded such training course as a video for
sharing on the Company’s online training system platform for
other employees to participate in the training according to their

own needs.
Number of personnel
that should be
Content of course trained
RERE FEEINAE

Corporate WeChat online real-time training
EMER EEREI 204
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

e Review

The Group considers the risks of fraud and corruption in its
annual audit plan, and conducts risk-based audits on business
processes and areas that may have higher risks of fraud and
corruption. At the same time, the Board of the Group reviews
the Anti-Corruption Policy ( (P &5 ) ) at least once
every two years, and any revision or update to which must be
considered and approved by the Board.

During the year, the Group conducted 12 fraud investigations,
and no corruption incident with complete chain of evidence
was identified. The Group has implemented improvement
measures for management gaps and risk issues, and included
such conduct in the Measures for Handling Disciplinary
Negligence and Malpractice ( GEAZ B KR TR TIERIFERIE S
J£) ) of the Company to prevent the reoccurrence of similar
incidents.

Complaint Management

The Group has formulated the Administrative Measures for
Complaints ( (#&FFEEFIE) ), which aims to establish an open,
transparent and efficient supervision mechanism within the
Group to ensure that reasonable complaints from employees
are handled in a timely and fair manner, and to promote the
sustainable development of the Group. The Group has established
a Complaint Handling Committee composed of four Directors to
oversee how the Group handles complaints, and the Internal Audit
Department is responsible for investigating complaints involving
fraud. During the year, the Group refined the specific clauses in the
Administrative Measures for Complaints ( (#ZsFEEHIE) ) on the
investigation process and protection of whistle-blowers, so as to
better guide the complaint management process.

e Complaint channels

In order to maintain diversified complaint channels, the
Group has established a WeChat complaint platform and the
chairman’s mailbox to provide online and offline complaint
channels for whistle-blowers. Our WeChat complaint platform
accepts anonymous complaints to ensure that the whistle-
blowers’ information cannot be traced. Meanwhile, the
chairman’s mailbox collects paper reports and are placed in
locations where internal surveillance cameras do not cover,
such as canteens, shipping counters and restrooms, so as to
ensure that there is no risk of disclosure of confidentiality in
the complaint environment.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RE g kERmE (&)
e Protection of whistle-blowers

The Group has formulated the Administrative Measures for
Complaints ( (IZFEEHIE ) ) to clearly stipulate that the
respondent is prohibited from taking any form of retaliation
against the complainant. If the complainant is questioned or
retaliated against, he/she may report to the Internal Audit
Department, which shall implement necessary intervention
measures according to the actual circumstances.

e Acceptance procedures

The Group has strictly implemented the complaint acceptance
procedures stipulated in the Administrative Measures for
Complaints ( (IZFEEFIZE) ). The Group has divided
complaints into three types: complaints that require tracking,
complaints with unclear information and invalid complaints,
and has handled complaints in the manner stipulated in the
measures. Employees who have no conflicts of interest
with the complaints are responsible for investigating the
complaints. If necessary, the Group will engage external
independent personnel for investigations.

As stakeholders have increasingly stringent requirements
for public information disclosure of suppliers and review of
supply chain, the Group is fully aware of the importance of
preventing environmental and social risks in the supply chain
to the Group's sustainable development. The Group has strictly
complied with applicable laws and regulations in the process
of supply chain management, and has adopted policies such as
the Supplier Management Procedures ( {(ftfEREIEIZF) ), the
Supplier Management Process ( {({£EREHERIE) ) and the
Comprehensive Review Report for New Suppliers ( (it 4R
AFFEIRE) ) to incorporate elements such as environmentally-
friendly products, environmental management, social responsibility
and occupational health and safety into supply chain management,
with an aim to strengthening the sustainability of the supply chain
and achieving joint development with suppliers. During the year,
the Group had a total of 2,650 suppliers, all of which implemented
the practices.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Admission of Suppliers

The Group has assessed potential suppliers in strict accordance
with the Comprehensive Review Report for New Suppliers ( G
HEFLGZAFTERS) ), and has established a review team
composed of representatives from the procurement, quality,
technology and production departments to carry out document and
on-site review, so as to facilitate the assessment for admission
of suppliers. In addition, the process of review for admission of
new suppliers of the Group includes the assessment performed
by the review team on elements such as factory environment and
safety management, quality management and social responsibility,
covering key matters such as the certification of ISO 9000, ISO
14000, OHSAS 18000 and others systems, labour safety in the
production process, and whether child labour or forced labour
is used. During the year, 180 suppliers for the injection molding
business of the Group passed the review and became members of
our supply chain ecosystem.

Responsible Procurement

The Group has conscientiously implemented the principle of
responsible procurement and conveyed the Group's concept of
social responsibility to the upstream and downstream of the supply
chain.

e Principle of procurement from nearby sources

The Group has actively adopted the principle of procurement
from nearby sources to reduce energy consumption,
greenhouse gas emissions and possibility of chemical leakage
during the transportation of materials, with an aim to reducing
the negative impact of operating activities on the environment.
At the same time, in order to cope with the interruption of
the supply chain as a result of pandemic control, in the event
where suppliers did not have any response plan, the Group
selected nearby suppliers to ensure the sustainable operation
of its supply chain. In addition, the Group has proactively
selected local suppliers for procurement of components,
so as to actively assume the social responsibility entrusted
by the community and contribute to the steady economic
development of the community.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RIF - mwg LERmE(E)
e Conflict minerals

The Group strictly prohibits the selection of suppliers which
purposely use conflict minerals (thallium, tin, tungsten, gold
and cobalt). From the initial procurement process, the Group
strictly prohibits the inflow of minerals from conflict areas and
high-risk areas, and requires suppliers to sign the Business
Cooperation Agreement ( (B EEMRL) ) to ensure the
commitment of suppliers on the fact that the products they
manufacture are free from conflict minerals, and further
strengthen the control of conflict minerals. At the same time,
the Group keeps updating the list of controversial minerals to
facilitate the identification of potential risks of conflict minerals
and take remedial measures in a timely manner.

e Green procurement

In order to fully implement green procurement, the Group
gives priority to green and environmentally-friendly products
when purchasing materials and processing components.
During the procurement process, the Group checks whether
the supplier has compliance documents such as the material
safety data sheet (MSDS) or third-party certified test report,
and conduct review in accordance with the environmental
protection requirements in the Supplier Review and
Assessment List ( (HHERFTIEEZEE) ). At the same
time, the Group requires suppliers to understand the Group's
Environmental Substance Control Standards ( {ZR3E¥)E 24|
Z4E) ) and sign the Environmental Substance Compliance
Statement ( GREMEFEEET) ), so as to implement the
concept of green procurement. During the year, for the mold
business, the Group procured 295 kg of paint, including 274
kg of green and environmentally-friendly water-based paint,
the utilisation rate of which reached 92.9%. Meanwhile,
for the injection molding business, the Group procured and
used 2,988kg environmentally-friendly water-based paint and
65,575kg recycled PCR material.

Supply Chain Management

The Group seeks to manage suppliers in a responsible manner,
and promotes its concept of sustainable development by
facilitating the sustainable development of existing suppliers,
thereby realising the Group's vision of common development with
suppliers. The Group has further strengthened its relationship with
suppliers by conducting supplier reviews and establishing supplier
communication channels, with an aim to building a responsible
supply chain management system.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

e Supplier reviews

The Group conducts a comprehensive annual review of
suppliers every year to ensure the competitiveness of the
Group’s supply chain. The content of the Group’'s annual
review covers quality control, safety management, labour
standards, environmental management and business ethics,
with an aim to more effectively assess the performance of
suppliers in terms of environmental and social responsibilities.
At the same time, the Group regards the results of the annual
review as an important reference for procurement decisions in
the next year to encourage suppliers to continuously improve
their capabilities. During the year, the Group conducted a
comprehensive assessment for 36 key suppliers who meet our
supplier requirements.

e Supplier communication

The Group regularly conducts supplier satisfaction surveys
to objectively and effectively assess the performance of
suppliers, and provides integrity training to suppliers in the
supplier conference organised every year to strengthen the
promotion and implementation of integrity awareness among
suppliers.
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PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

The Group is committed to providing high-quality products,
improving customer service quality control, standardising
intellectual property management, and creating a product
responsibility system that prioritises quality and satisfies
customers.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

IRE e NERRE(E)

Product Quality

In order to effectively control the quality management of the
product production process, the Group has formulated measures
and documents such as the Management Process for Substandard
Products ( {T&#MmEEMIE) ) and the Quality Control
Process for Supplied Materials ( {AREHRBEIEHRIE) ) to fully
implement product quality management. The Group’s Injection
Molding Business Department has passed the ISO 13485 and
ISO 90001 quality control system certifications, and the Group's
Suzhou factory has passed the IATF 16949 automotive quality
management system certification.

e Quality management system

The Group has established a sound quality control system
covering each production cycle such as inspection of supplied
materials, manufacturing, and monitoring of shipments. The
Group conducts preliminary on-site guidance and acceptance
before receiving supplied materials to avoid returns due to
substandard quality. In the product manufacturing process,
the Group adopts four steps, i.e. first article sampling, first
article confirmation, patrol inspection and pre-warehousing
inspection, and focuses on promoting precise control
to prevent substandard products from entering into the
workshop. Prior to the delivery of products, the Group
conducts scientific mold testing to ensure the quality of molds
by simulating customer’s production conditions. In addition,
the Group has set production yield targets and conducted
product pass rate inspections for key workshops with high
production volumes, so as to continuously promote the
improvement of product quality.

e Training on quality management

In order to strengthen the awareness of quality management
among employees, the Group regularly organises quality
management training, with an aim to improving the quality
management ability of employees through the education of
quality management knowledge.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Lean Six Sigma Training and Practice Project

During the year, in order to enhance the awareness of quality
control among the management and technical personnel and
improve the quality process management of the enterprise to
achieve the ultimate business pursuit of “zero defect”, the Group
launched the Lean Six Sigma Training and Practice Project ( {#&2%
SNPERIEIEE N ERIEE ) ) for low- and middle-level management
personnel.
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Control of Hazardous Substances

With reference to the European Union Restriction of Hazardous
Substances Directive (“RoHs"”) and Registration, Evaluation,
Authorisation and Restriction of Chemicals (“REACH") regulation,
the Group has formulated the internal Environmental Substance
Control Standards ( CGREMEZEFIZELE) ) to strictly control the
hazardous environmental substances in raw materials, auxiliary
materials and products, and has required suppliers to comply with
relevant standards. The Group has set the maximum concentration
limits for chemical substances such as heavy metals, refractory
organic substances and halogens that are more harmful to the
environment in different materials. In addition, the Group requires
suppliers to sign the Environmental Substance Compliance
Statement ( GRIEMEFAIEZERT) ) to ensure that the materials
supplied meet the environmental substance standards stipulated
by the Group.

Premium Services

The Group has continuously improved its customer service
system, with an aim to protecting the rights and interests of
customers and providing premium services.

e Customer communication

In order to standardise and manage the customer feedback
process and ensure the effective and efficient handling
of customer feedback, the Group has formulated the
Management Procedures for Customer Communication and
Feedback ( (BFBBREEIERIE) ), which is applicable to
customer feedback, customer complaint, customer claim and
customer satisfaction surveys designed by the Group.
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The Group has strictly made it clear that recall and replacement
services will be provided when customers identify defective
products. On the premise that customer’s production and
operation are not affected, the Group will respond within 8
hours, take control measures within 24 hours and deal with
relevant issues within 7 days upon receiving customers’
feedback, and will follow up three batches of the same product
in a row to ensure that the possible defects of the same
product are under control. In addition, the Group conducts
customer satisfaction surveys every six months, performs gap
analysis on areas where satisfaction is lower than expected,
and monitors product delivery quality by compiling data on
product recalls and complaints every month. During the year,
the Group received a total of 3 product and service complaints,
and no products were recalled due to safety and health
reasons.

Customer privacy

In order to effectively control the risk of disclosure of customer
privacy that may occur during the operation process, the Group
has formulated the Measures for Confidentiality Management

( CREEEHIE) ), which efficiently regulates processes that
involve customers’ privacy information, such as production and
operation, maintenance of information security of IT system,
scientific research and technology exchanges. In addition, the
Group classifies the business cooperation-related agreements,
code and other related materials provided by customers as
the highest level of confidentiality of the Group. By stipulating
confidential content control authority, providing special
information security training and requiring all employees
to sign the Employee Confidentiality Agreement ( { & T{%
ZHaE) ), the Group has comprehensively implemented
confidentiality control measures to protect customers’ privacy
and security.

Responsible marketing

The Group has strictly complied with laws and regulations
related to compliant marketing such as the Advertising Law of
the People’s Republic of China ( {(FZEARKEMBEESZE) )
The Group pursues the principle of fair trade, avoids misleading
relevant parties, and adopts vicious competition approaches
such as price wars to ensure that the sales and advertising
approaches and contents conform to recognised competition
standards. In addition, in order to ensure the authenticity
and accuracy of the Group’'s external publicity content, the
marketing director organises review meetings for the planning
and implementation of marketing advertisements to review the
legality of sales planning approaches and advertising content.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Intellectual Property Rights

The Group has attached great importance to the creation,
management and protection of intellectual properties, and has
strictly complied with laws and regulations such as the Patent Law
of the People’s Republic of China ( (FFZEAREFBEZF)7%) ) and
the Enterprise Intellectual Property Management Specifications
((DEMBE#EETE) ). The Group rewards employees who
obtain patent certificates related to their job nature during
their employment, and encourages employees to participate in
innovation to enhance product and technology development.
In order to enhance employees’ awareness of intellectual
property management and protection, the Group has provided
comprehensive intellectual property training to department heads
and project leaders. Meanwhile, the Group has also committed not
to infringe the intellectual property rights of any partners in the
process of cooperating with them.

CARING FOR THE SOCIETY

The Group is committed to fulfilling corporate social
responsibilities, actively exploring community co-establishment
and sharing, and practising the concept of caring for the
community. In order to ensure that the Group uses resources in a
more strategic and effective manner, the Group has formulated the
Administrative Measures for Community Investment, Donation and
Sponsorship ( (iE@&&E - BEREBEIEFIE) ), which regulates
the administration process of community investment, donation and
sponsorship.

The Group gives back to the society and promotes the
sustainable development of the community through donations
and sponsorships, exchanges and cooperation with schools,
organisation of employee volunteer services, participation in public
welfare organisation activities and other channels. During the year,
the Group donated a total of HK$2,719,000.

RIE - g LERmE(E)
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

R e MEamE (E)

Donated pandemic prevention materials to support the fight
against the pandemic

Since the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, TK Group has
responded quickly and donated over HK$2.5 million of money
and more than 200,000 pieces of protective materials to the
Guangming District General Chamber of Commerce, Guangming
District Charity Association, Federation of Associations and
hospitals in Hong Kong. In March 2022, TK Group donated 55,454
antigen test kits in an amount of HK$1.22 million to the Hong Kong
Police Headquarters to support the frontline work of pandemic
prevention and control.

Made donations to facilitate the healthy and comprehensive
development of teenagers and children in underdeveloped
areas

In order to support teenagers and children in underdeveloped areas
in realising their sports dreams, TK Group donated RMB100,000
to the Jeremy Lin-Li Qun Sports Foundation (ERA&AEZZ 38
BEEXNREEE) during the year. Such donations will be
used for constructing schools and community sports facilities
in underdeveloped areas and organising sports-related activities
and charity events such as charity sports training for children
of poor families and migrant workers, with an aim to providing
an environment where children can exercise happily and grow
up healthily, and promoting the healthy and comprehensive
development of teenagers and children in underdeveloped areas.

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2022
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

OVERVIEW OF KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS?

Key performance indicators (KPls)

Air emissions

237 €7)

Unit
B

Exhaust gas emissions from stationary sources

] E i B R BE AR

IRE - e NERRE(E)

FAREANERAE?

GiFS

Volatile organic compounds
(VOCs)
BEZ AR S Y(VOCs)

Non-methane hydrocarbons
(NMHC)
FER KA E(NMHC)

Particulate matter (PM)
Ak ASBFRL T (PM)

Exhaust gas emissions from mobile sources

BERBERIER

Nitrogen oxides (NOx)
RE(HERE

Sulphur oxides (SOx)
memEEE

Particulate matter (PM)
A R A SRZ T (PM)

Total exhaust gas emissions

FERAETFNE

Total exhaust gas emission
intensity

FE RABHE IR E

kg/million HKD
T/ aBEEE

2022 2021 2020
60.1 36.9 33.3
126.6 116.4 230.6
131.4 122.7 151.0
1,985.6 1,742.7 636.2
1,586.6 667.8 2,616.5
500.3 346.1 643.3
11.0 3.7 3.6
0.2 11:3 1.1

0.8 0.5 0.4
4,402.6 3,038.1 4,316.0
1.9 1.8 2.1

2 The timespan of key performance is from 1 January to 31 December 2022.

The scope of data collected covers the production bases in the Shenzhen

headquarters, Suzhou, Huizhou and Dongguan.

BRERNEHIBEER-S__F—A—HE+=
A=1—0: BBRUEHEEFZRINEE - &M
BMNAR R EEEM
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
REE - g LEAmE(8)

Key performance indicators (KPls) Unit
ARENIER By 2022 2021 2020
Greenhouse gas
emissions Scope 1 - Direct emissions tCOe
B E R FE——'EBEN UN ¢E atixE= 140.6 563.1 180.2
Scope 2 - Indirect emissions tCOe
#i[E = — R AE=—EiEE 41,112.9 46,571.8 42,070.5
Scope 3 - Indirect emissions tCOe
HE=—REHFR AL E B 94.8 55.2 55.2
Total greenhouse gas emissions tCOze
AERBAYNE RS REE 41,348.3 47,190.1 42,305.9
Greenhouse gas emission tCO L,e/million HKD
intensity Al @ fiLiREE
= RS E BEEE 18.1 19.6 20.8
Hazardous waste Total hazardous waste tonne
BEERY BEREEYES NI 402.6 494.6 364.3
Hazardous waste intensity tonne/million HKD
BEEEENEE UNUPAER-y 3 0.2 0.2 0.2
Non-hazardous
waste Total non-hazardous waste tonne
EERERY BEEEYES N 1,896.9 2,257.3 1,740.5
Non-hazardous waste intensity tonne/million HKD
BEEEYEE R BEEE 0.8 0.9 0.9
Energy
consumption Direct energy consumption GJ
BEIRfE A HixAEE HE 572.3 545.0 462.9
Gasoline GJ
i HE 566.5 538.8 457.9
Coal gas GJ
R, HE 2.1 2.4 3.1
Liquefied petroleum gas GJ
RALEHR HE 3.7 3.8 1.9
Indirect energy consumption MWh
EELE A KBS 70,762.3 80,158.0 68,956.7
Electricity MWh
ESW))| JK FLBF 70,762.3 80,158.0 68,956.7
Total energy consumption MWh
REREE = JKEL B 70,921.2 80,309.4 69,085.3
Energy consumption intensity MWh/million HKD
BERERE KR, BB S 31.1 33.4 34.0
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIE - e hEamE(E)

Key performance indicators (KPls) Unit
ARENIER By 2022 2021 2020
Water consumption  Water consumption m?3
RKkE k& SR 233,779 247,847 252,636
Water consumption intensity m3/million HKD
FA7KE8E MK EEEE 102.6 103.1 124.2
Packaging material Total packaging material
consumption consumption tonne
BEFER BEMBEE N 1,961.0 2,127.7 2,011.2

Packaging material consumption

intensity tonne/million HKD
AR ETE NNy 3 0.9 0.9 1.0
Description of environmental information and coefficients RIBE R R E A
1. The timespan of environmental information is from 1 January 1. REANNNEBEA_S__F—A&
to 31 December 2022. The scope of data collected covers —HBE+ZA=1+—H: EBRKkE&HE
the production bases in the Shenzhen headquarters, Suzhou, BERINBI - &M - BNARRER
Huizhou and Dongguan. AEEEEM o

2. According to the Emission Standards for Volatile Organic 2. RIFEDRIFT B ZE B #E W UR

Compounds for the Printing Industry (EDRITT BB EA#LE # (DB44/815-2010) @ & R &) #8 3 14
YIBEIEXE) (DB44/815-2010), common VOCs include but are EHEEMBERER BE . ZFX .72
not limited to benzene, toluene, xylene, acetic acid, methyl % RO ERE - OB OB R OB
ethyl ketone, isopropanol, ethyl acetate and butyl acetate. No TBEE © 2021 RV = EERBER O F
NMHC or VOCs testing was carried out at the exhaust outlets —MEZZFERETNMHCHVOCsi
of the Shenzhen factory in the first and second quarters of Al - 2022 FHEZ SR 0 H20224F
2021, but testing was carried out throughout 2022. In addition, AEMEMRIZE E—FEMHEER
the products and processes in 2022 changed as compared to b - MAFEEREMEE N -

the previous year. As such, exhaust gas emissions increased
during the year.

RTHRE () BRAR 202253 109
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Scope 1 greenhouse gas emissions are generated from
stationary sources, fuel combustion of mobile sources, and
equipment and system operation. Scope 2 greenhouse gas
emissions are generated from consumption of purchased
electricity. Scope 3 greenhouse gas emissions are generated
from employee travels. The sources of data are payment
slips of relevant expenses and administrative ledgers. The
greenhouse gas emission coefficient of purchased electricity
is determined with reference to the Notice on Implementation
of Key Tasks Related to Reporting and Management of
Corporate Greenhouse Gas Emissions in 2022 (B M 572022
FhERERBEMREEEEEERTENBEA)) issued by
the Ministry of Ecology and Environment, and other energy
emission coefficients are determined with reference to the
Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs issued by the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Greenhouse gas emissions from
employee travels are calculated using the International Civil
Aviation Organization (ICAO) Carbon Emissions Calculator.
In addition, Scope 2 and total greenhouse gas emissions
in 2021 changed as compared to the report in the previous
year due to the update of the National Grid Emission Factor
used for calculation in 2021 during the year. In 2022, Scope 3
greenhouse gas emissions increased due to the increase in the
number of employee travels.

The types of energy consumed by the Group in 2022 include
direct energy consumption and indirect energy consumption.
Direct energy consumption includes gasoline, coal gas and
liguefied petroleum gas, and indirect energy consumption
refers to purchased electricity. The sources of data are
payment slips of relevant expenses and administrative
ledgers. The energy consumption conversion coefficients
are determined with reference to the conversion coefficients
provided by the International Energy Agency and the General
Rules for Calculation of Comprehensive Energy Consumption
((EREREFESTERAID) (GB/T2589-2020) of China.

Hazardous waste includes waste ink, waste paint residue,
containers and gloves stained with waste engine oil, waste
toner cartridges and ink cartridges, etc.

Non-hazardous waste refers to office waste and domestic
waste, etc.

The water consumed by the Group is from the municipal pipe
network, and the sources of data are financial records and
administrative ledgers.

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2022

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIE g NE RS (E)
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIE - e hEamE(E)

B1: Employment

B1 {Ef&
Employee distribution Number of employees Turnover rate3 (%)
BIABA BIAB(A) BT 5 2(%)
By gender Male 2,104 4.4%
ZMRIE S 3
Female 1,530 5.2%
z
By position Management 188 0.9%
RBAAE D EEAE
General staff 2,107 1.5%
—RRET
Production staff 1,339 9.4%
HEEET
By age group 18-30 905 9.0%
REBRARIE S 18-30/3%
31-45 2,389 3.1%
31-455%
Over 45 340 0.5%
453 A |
By geographical region Mainland China 3,605 4.8%
e & 5o A A
Other regions 29 4.6%
E b3 &
Total number of employees* 3,634 4.8%
BT HE
B2: Health and Safety
B2 #EHEZE
KPIs
ARENIER 2022 2021 2020
Number and rate of work-related fatalities 0 0 0
ELTHH AR E
Number of work-related injuries ) 2 5
ELREAE
Lost days due to work injury 246 98 157
ATBEERTIERH(R)

3 Tumnover rate refers to the average monthly turnover rate for the 12 months of 2022; the formula for 3 BT RARAE2022F12ANFEHAERRE : A
calculating the monthly turnover rate is: monthly turnover rate = total number of resigned employees per ERAENFEARNE  AERAER=AEBHBRAZK
month/total number of employees per month. &Git/ BEATIAZAR -

4 The employee distribution covers Mainland China, Vietnam, Germany and Hong Kong. 4 BTAESHMREFRAN - HEm  EREEESH

& o

RIE® (=A%) BRAR] 2022F H



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIE g NE RS (E)

B3: Development and Training®
B3 #E Kk iEIIs

Number Percentage Total Average
of trained of trained training hours  training hours

Employee distribution employees employees (%) IZIARE I R
EI 5 FIAEN) FHlE 2 (%) (/NBF) (/VBF)
By gender Male 1,485 5.3 37,382.4 17.8
RIERIBIH =

Female 1,202 44.7 33,377.9 21.8

z
By position Management 164 6.1 3,358.3 17.9
RBAZE D EIRAB

General staff 1,084 40.3 38,025.5 18.0

— MR T

Production staff 1,439 53.6 29,376.5 21.9

HEET
Total number of trained employees 2,687 73.9 70,760.3 19.5
- EEEUN
B5: Supply Chain Management
B5 fitAEdEEE
Location of suppliers Number of suppliers
HEBRELE HERHE
Mainland China 2,204
FR B A3
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan 209
AR
Vietnam 81
2]
Other regions/countries 156
Hfthih [, BIR
Total 2,650
A
=1
Percentage of suppliers who implemented the practices 100%
AT 18 B {3t FE RS Eb i

g Percentage of trained employees is calculated by dividing the number of trained 5 EIL Bt E R R AT EREE ZIAE 2
employees of the specific category by the total number of trained employees. EE -

12 TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2022



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RiE - g RERWmE(E)

B6: Product Responsibility
B6 EmEE

Percentage of products subject to recalls for safety and health reasons (%)
A% % B2 RIE R ARWE E 5 (%)

Number of product and service related complaints received
EmMRSHIRFTE A OR)

B7: Anti-corruption
B7 RES

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the issuer or its employees
REEITASEEESREWE &N S 5FARMGNER (18)

Total hours of anti-corruption training completed by employees
B B e R 25157 M B R 8 (/)

Number of employees who completed anti-corruption training

R RESEHIESEE (A)

Percentage of employees who completed anti-corruption training (%)
FERRESEIIEEES B S (%)

Number of executive Directors who completed anti-corruption training

SRR EISIFIIMATESABCA)

Percentage of executive Directors who completed anti-corruption training (%)
TR RESHIINRTEEE (%)

B8: Community Investment

B8 HERE

Donations (HK$'000)
AR (FE7T)

0

BTHEE (%) BRAR 2022F 3k 113



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIE g NE RS (E)

CONTENT INDEX TO THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE R HERERREESIRNETES

Disclosed

ESG indicator or not Page/Remarks
ESGIER HEBER HEZRSfEE
A1: Information on the policies and compliance with relevant laws Disclosed 79-85
General and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer EHE
Disclosure relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into
A1 water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous
—REE waste.

BRABERIMBERBEN - MAKRTHOHET  EERESEEY

MWESSHER RETHETAGERZENEREZRRIINE

o
A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Disclosed 81, 83, 91,

HER iR R M ARRRBE IR E R EHE 107-108
A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas Disclosed 91, 108

emissions (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per EHE
unit of production volume, per facility).

B (BE1) RpREE (BE2) R=EREHNE (UBEHE)

& (@A) ZE (MABESER - BEREE) °

A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where Disclosed 83, 108
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per BiFE
facility).
FEEAEEEEYHEE (UAEE) k (WER) BE (MUEE

SER - FHERWHE)

A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where Disclosed 83, 108
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per EHE
facility).

FEEEEEEYREE (AEE) k (WER) BE (NUEE
S5 - BERMAHE)
A1.5 Description of emission target(s) set and steps taken to achieve Disclosed 79-80, 90
them. E#E
FAFTRT S M HERE B IR R BERE L B EATERER A 5 5% -

A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are Disclosed 82-84
handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set and steps BIRE
taken to achieve them.
HM BRI A E R BEEFEENMN AL - RERAT L ORERERA
ZEDE L B IR ERIRE PR o
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ESG indicator
ESGIEE

A2:
General
Disclosure

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIE 2Kk

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water
and other raw materials.

BRERER (BREER  KEREMEME) WK

Disclosed
or not

WEER

Disclosed
E#E

A_h—/\lzl #&tt(m/\)

Page/Remarks
HEZRSfE=

85-89

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.qg.
electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in '000s) and intensity (e.g. per
unit of production volume, per facility).

REAESWER R SEEER (08 - Joh) #FE (AT
BEFERFE) REE (MASESEN - BERMEAE)

Disclosed
ERE

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).
BFEKEREE (MASESEN - BERMEAHE) °

Disclosed
AR5

Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken
to achieve them.
A FT R S B BEIRE A as B 1R R R B 5 Lk B IR PTERER Y 25 5% ©

Disclosed
E#E

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that
is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to
achieve them.

Fa SR EE A KR _E Rl B R RRE - LA RFTR] M A9 7K B 1% &
FAERE L B RPIERERE PR

Disclosed
E#E

Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes)
and, if applicable, with reference to per unit produced.

K mATAREMENEE (UHEETE) k (WER) SEESN
HE -

Disclosed
B

RTRE (R

) BRRAR 202245 115



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
REE - g LEAmE(8)

Disclosed
ESG indicator or not Page/Remarks
ESGIEE BHEER HEZRSfE=
A3: Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts on the Disclosed 85-94
General environment and natural resources. BEHTE
Disclosure AR BEIT ALRIBERARAABREKBEAZEHBUR -
A3
— BB
A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the Disclosed 85-94
environment and natural resources and the actions taken to BEHE
manage them.
HEBEHHRBERAARERNEATZERERNEREHTE
BI1TED ©
A4: Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate- Disclosed 90-94
General related issues which have impacted, and those which may BEiFE
Disclosure impact, the issuer.
A4 BRI REEHE LR EHETAEETVENEARIGHBEER
—MRIRE BUER e
A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have Disclosed 91-94
impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and the BiFE
actions taken to manage them.
BB AR EHETAEEXENEARGERAEE  REY
118 ©
B1: Information on the policies and compliance with relevant laws Disclosed 67-69
General and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer EIFE
Disclosure relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
B1 promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,
—RIEE diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.
EAFMREE  BEREA  IERE RE - TSKE 273
£~ RBRAREMFBERBANBRRETHETARE
BARR AR RIROIME R o
B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example, full-or  Disclosed 67-68, 111
part-time), age group and geographical region. B
ZIER - EBEEE (EREERE) - FRAMNRtEESNES
L g
B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical Disclosed 111
region. EHE

RIER - FiAER Rt B D H)EBRARLL X -
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ESG indicator
ESGIEE

B2:
General
Disclosure
B2
—RIEE

B3:
General
Disclosure

B4:
General
Disclosure

Disclosed
or not Page/Remarks
HEBER CUELIE
Information on the policies and compliance with relevant laws Disclosed 73-77
and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer BiFE
relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards.
BAREL 2 TERBARRE(E S @ R B E M EEHBR KRBT
HETABERZENERERRROINER o
Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the  Disclosed 111
past three years including the reporting year. BEHE
BEZF (BEERFE) BFRITHMAZB KRR -
Lost days due to work injury. Disclosed 111
ETEEARATIERE - ERE
Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, Disclosed 73-77
and how they are implemented and monitored. BEHE
AP PR AR B X R B 2 HE 0 - DA RABRARIT REEZR 0% ©
Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for Disclosed 69-73
discharging duties at work. Description of training activities. EHE
BRARTHE BT TIERE A1 R e BUR - fatiE3IES -
The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee Disclosed 71,112
category (e.g. senior management, middle management). BEHE
RERIREEES (NEAELE  FREEE) HHNZIIESR
AL e
The average training hours completed per employee by gender Disclosed 72,112
and employee category. BE#HE
RUERIREEHRIBE D - BEESTHZ NN FIIREE o
Information on the policies and compliance with relevant laws Disclosed 67, 69
and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer B FE
relating to preventing child and forced labour.
BRI IEE TR hl 4 THBR LB TFHRIT AR EAZENHH
EE KRB ERL
Description of measures to review employment practices to Disclosed 69
avoid child and forced labour. EHE
R e BB FI e AR R B T Reg S5 T -
Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when Disclosed 69
discovered. EHE

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIE g RERHEE)

e B IRE RIS NS EIR B RIS ST ERER Y 28R -
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RE g kERmE (&)

Disclosed
ESG indicator or not Page/Remarks
ESGIER HEER EER3|
B5: Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply  Disclosed 98-101
General chain. BERE
Disclosure EEHEEAIRE RS RBRBUER
B5
—RIEE
B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Disclosed 112
i e B S HEEEA - AR
B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of  Disclosed 99, 112
suppliers where the practices are being implemented, and how BiFE
they are implemented and monitored.
BRI AR RIES - MERITEAEMEREE - ]
RABENTRERTE °
B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental and social  Disclosed 99-101
risks along the supply chain, and how they are implemented and &
monitored.
fEat A B R B AR ERIR Rt g R R EE D] - A RIS
MITREER A ©
B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally Disclosed 100
preferable products and services when selecting suppliers, and BEHE
how they are implemented and monitored.
HMERERHEE RS BRARERRRGHED - LAREBH
ITREERTTE ©
B6: Information on the policies and compliance with relevant laws Disclosed 101-105
General and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer BiFE
Disclosure relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy
B6 matters relating to products and services provided and methods
—RINE of redress.
FAFMREELNREHERERZS BES  RERLEEFEUR
WROTENBER LB THETABEATZENBREZRROINE
o
B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for  Disclosed 113
safety and health reasons. B
EENEEXREMRBHT R 2 HERIEHMALRKT B DL
B6.2 Number of product and service related complaints received and Disclosed 103-104, 113
how they are dealt with. BT
BN Em M RIEHIREFE B AR EE L °
B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting Disclosed 105
intellectual property rights. EHE
i B o RS AR EE R R VB
B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures. Disclosed 102
WilE SR ERERERBIKER B
B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, and  Disclosed 104
how they are implemented and monitored. B
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHREE

The Board is pleased to present the annual report and the audited
accounts of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company is investment holding.
Principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 37
to the consolidated financial statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis on revenue and operation of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2022 by principal activities and geographical
markets is set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group's business review for the year ended 31 December
2022, which includes a discussion on principal risks and
uncertainties facing by the Group, an analysis of the Group's
performance using financial key performance indicators, particulars
of important events affecting the Group during the year, and an
indication of likely future developments in the Group's business
is set out in the sections headed “Financial Highlights” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report.
In addition, discussions on the Group's environmental policies,
relationships with its key stakeholders and compliance with
relevant laws and regulations which have a significant impact on
the Group are also set out in the sections headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis”, “Corporate Governance Report” and
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report”.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group's results for the year ended 31 December 2022 are set
out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on
page 148.

It is the policy of the Board, in considering the payment of
dividends, to allow shareholders of the Company to participate
in the Company's profits whilst retaining adequate reserves for
the Group's future growth. The Board shall consider the following
factors before declaring or recommending dividends:

e the Group's actual and expected financial performance;

e retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company
and each of the members of the Group;
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e the Group’s working capital requirements, capital expenditure
requirements and future expansion plans;

e the Group’s liquidity position;

e general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group's
business and other internal or external factors that may have
an impact on the business or financial performance and
position of the Company; and

e other factors that the Board deems relevant.

The payment of dividend is also subject to compliance with
applicable laws and regulations including the laws of the Cayman
Islands and the Company’s Articles of Association. The Board
will continually review the said dividend policy from time to time
and there can be no assurance that dividends will be paid in any
particular amount for any given period.

After considering the above-mentioned factors, the Board has
recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK8.6 cents per
share for the year ended 31 December 2022 to the shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company
at the close of business on Thursday, 8 June 2023, amounting to a
total of approximately HK$71,660,000. The proposed final dividend
is subject to the approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company (the "AGM"). The final
dividend, if approved, is expected to be paid on Friday, 23 June
2023.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM
to be held on Wednesday, 31 May 2023, the register of members
of the Company will be closed from Thursday, 25 May 2023 to
Wednesday, 31 May 2023, both dates inclusive, during which
period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to be
eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, unregistered shareholders
of the Company should ensure that all share transfer documents,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, are lodged with the
Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor
Services Limited, at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt
Road, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Wednesday, 24 May 2023.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
EEEWRES(E)

For determining the entitlement to the aforesaid proposed final
dividend, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from Tuesday, 6 June 2023 to Thursday, 8 June 2023, both
dates inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to be qualified for the proposed final dividend,
unregistered holders of shares of the Company should ensure that
all share transfer documents, accompanied by the relevant share
certificates, are lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar
in Hong Kong at the above address for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on Monday, 5 June 2023.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group’s results, assets and liabilities for the past
five financial years is set out on page 232. The summary does not
form part of the audited financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movement in the Group's property, plant and
equipment during the year are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BANK BORROWINGS

Particulars of the bank borrowings of the Group as at 31
December 2022 are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movement in the Company’s share capital during
the year are set out in note 21 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or
the laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders of
the Company.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Save for the purchase of 1,646,000 shares of the Company
through its trustee on the open market for the purposes of the
share award scheme of the Company adopted by the Board on 25
February 2019, neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries
had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed
securities during the year ended 31 December 2022.
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RESERVES

Details of the movement in reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in notes 21, 22, 23, 24 and
36(i) to the consolidated financial statements on pages 210 to 212,
page 227, and the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
page 151.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2022, the Company's reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands amounted to approximately HK$495,285,000
(2021: HK$495,451,000), of which approximately HK$71,660,000
has been proposed as a final dividend for the year.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2022 were around HK$2,719,000 (2021:
HK$1,531,000).

DIRECTORS

The directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Mr. Li Pui Leung

Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael
Mr. Lee Leung Yiu

Mr. Cheung Fong Wa

Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy
Ms. Christine Wan Chong Leung
Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong

Pursuant to the Articles, Mr. Li Pui Leung, Dr. Chung Chi Ping
Roy and Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong will retire at the AGM and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.

PARTICULARS OF BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Particulars of biographies of directors and senior management of
the Group are set out on pages 31 to 36 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND THE FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of Directors’ remuneration and those of the five highest
paid individuals in the Group are set out in notes 38 and 8 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE AGREEMENTS

Each of the executive Directors entered into a service agreement
with the Company for a term of three years commencing from 20
December 2022, which may be terminated by either party giving
not less than three months’ notice in writing.

The Company has issued a letter of appointment to each of the
independent non-executive Directors for a term of three years
commencing from 20 December 2022, unless terminated by either
party giving not less than three months’ notice in writing.

No Director proposed for re-election at the AGM has a service
agreement which is not determinable by the Group within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions”
in this report and note 35 (Related Party Transactions) to the
consolidated financial statements, no director nor a connected
entity of a Director had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contract of
significance in relation to the business of the Group to which the
Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year under review.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Share Option Scheme”
and “Share Award Scheme” below, at no time during the year
was the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements and the objects
of or one of the objects of such arrangements is/are to enable
the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
acquisition of shares in, or debt securities, including debentures, of
the Company or any other body corporate.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2022, the interests of the directors or chief
executive of the Company in the shares of the Company which
were recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant to
Section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"),
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code (Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules),
were as follows:

Name of director

Capacity/Nature of interests
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Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in

Number of shares the Company*

RAARHBEA
EENE B M E R BE RAEE AL
Mr. Li Pui Leung (“Mr. Li") Interests in controlled corporations 446,414,000 53.57%
(Noz‘e 1)
FHRAE(ZMREE]) THEE R (M)
Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael Interests in controlled corporation 55,620,000 6.67%
("Mr. Yung") (Note 2)
SEMEE(HEE]D ZHEE R (M 2)
Mr. Lee Leung Yiu (“"Mr. Lee") Interests in controlled corporation 53,640,000 6.44%

(Note 3)

FRIETEE(TFRBRE]D 2 AE s ([aE3)

RTSRE () BRI 202253

125



126

Directors’ Report (continued)
=EFgHEE(E)

Notes:

1. These shares were held by Eastern Mix Company Limited (“Eastern Mix") (for
357,014,000 shares) and Lead Smart Development Limited (“Lead Smart"”)
(for 89,400,000 shares) respectively. The issued share capital of Eastern Mix is
owned as to 45%, 28% and 27% by Mr. Li, Mr. Yung and Mr. Lee, respectively;
and Lead Smart is wholly-owned and controlled by Mr. Li. As Eastern Mix and
Lead Smart are controlled corporations of Mr. Li, he is deemed to be interested

in these shares held by these two corporations pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

2. These shares were held by Cheer Union Development Ltd. (“Cheer Union"”), a
corporation wholly-owned and controlled by Mr. Yung.

3. These shares were held by Normal Times International Limited (“Normal
Times"), a corporation wholly-owned and controlled by Mr. Lee.

* The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares involved divided by the
number of the Company’s issued shares as at 31 December 2022.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of the
directors nor chief executive of the Company had any interests
or short positions in shares or underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which has been recorded in the
register required to be kept pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
or otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2022, the following corporations had interests
in 5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company as
recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, or as known by the
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Company:
Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in
Name of shareholder Capacity/Nature of interests Number of shares the Company*
RAEATNEN
BREEE B, EmHY R EE REF D>
Eastern Mix (Note 1) Beneficial owner 357,014,000 42.85%
SR(HEET) EmEEA
Lead Smart (Note 1) Beneficial owner 89,400,000 10.73%
2B (ML) EmBEEA
Cheer Union (Note 2) Beneficial owner 55,620,000 6.67 %
B (Hfat2) EmEEA
Normal Times (Note 3) Beneficial owner 53,640,000 6.44%
e (f7E3) EmEEA
FMR LLC (Note 4) Interest in controlled corporations 51,636,000 6.20%
FMR LLC(ffat4) RIEHLEE R
FIL Limited (Note 5) Interest in controlled corporations 83,242,000 9.99%
FIL Limited(A74£5) REHLEE R
Pandanus Partners L.P. (Note 5) Interest in controlled corporations 83,242,000 9.99%
Pandanus Partners L.P. (ff3£5)  SiEsEEER
Pandanus Associates Inc. (Note 5) Interest in controlled corporations 83,242,000 9.99%
Pandanus Associates Inc. (A75#5) = EBERE R
Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. Approved lending agent 41,664,600 5.00%

Brown Brothers Harriman & Co.  #% /& HMRIEA
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Notes:

1. The above interests of Eastern Mix and Lead Smart were also disclosed as the
interests of Mr. Li in the above section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’'s
Interests in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures”.

2. The above interests of Cheer Union were also disclosed as the interests of Mr.
Yung in the above section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive's Interests in

Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures”.

3. The above interests of Normal Times were also disclosed as the interests of Mr.
Lee in the above section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive's Interests in
Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures”.

4.  FMR LLC was deemed to be interested in these 51,636,000 shares through a
series of subsidiaries pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

5. Pandanus Associates Inc. is a general partner of Pandanus Partners L.P.,
which in turn owns as to 38.71% in FIL Limited. FIL Limited was deemed to
be interested in these 83,242,000 shares of the Company through a series of
subsidiaries. Accordingly, Pandanus Associates Inc., Pandanus Partners L.P. and
FIL Limited were deemed to be interested in these shares pursuant to Part XV of
the SFO.

* The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares involved divided by the
number of the Company's issued shares as at 31 December 2022.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, no person,
other than the directors and chief executive of the Company
whose interests are set out in the section headed “Directors’
and Chief Executive's Interests in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures” above, had any interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register of interests required to be kept pursuant to Section 336 of
the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 29 November
2013 (the “Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of providing
incentives or rewards to eligible participants (including employees,
executives or officers, directors including non-executive directors
and independent non-executive directors, advisers, consultants,
suppliers, customers and agents of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries) for their contribution to the long term growth of the
Group and to enable the Company to attract and retain high caliber
employees.

The Share Option Scheme became effective on the date of the
Company's listing (20 December 2013) and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from
that date. The remaining life of the Share Option Scheme is
approximately 8 months.
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The total number of securities of the Company available for
issue under the Share Option Scheme was 73,340,000 shares,
representing approximately 8.80% of the shares of the Company
in issue as at the date of this annual report. The maximum
number of shares issuable under share options granted to each
eligible participant in the Share Option Scheme (including both
exercised and outstanding options) within any 12-month period
is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue. Any
grant or further grant of share options in excess of this limit is
subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting. A grant
of share options under the Share Option Scheme to a director,
chief executive or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to
any of their associates, is subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors (excluding any independent
non-executive director who is the grantee of the Options). In
addition, any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any
of their associates, which would result in the shares issued and to
be issued, upon exercise of all options already granted and to be
granted (including options exercised, cancelled and outstanding),
to such person in the 12-month period up to and including the
date of the grant in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company
in issue and with an aggregate value (based on the closing price
of the Company's shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5
million, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a
general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
30 days from the date of offer upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period
of the share options granted is determined by the directors, save
that such a period shall not be more than 10 years from the date
of offer of the share options and subject to the provisions for early
termination as set out in the Share Option Scheme. There is no
requirement of a minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised.

The exercise price of the share options shall be not less than the
highest of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company's
shares on the date of offer of the share options, which must be a
date on which the Stock Exchange is open for business of dealing
in securities; (ii) the average Stock Exchange closing price of the
Company’s shares for the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of offer; and (iii) the nominal value of a share of the
Company on the date of offer.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, there was no outstanding
share option for the subscription of new shares held by any parties.

As at each of 1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022, the number
of share options available for grant under the Share Option Scheme
was 73,340,000 share options.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Company adopted the Share Award Scheme on 25 February
2019 as a mean to recognise the contribution by the Group's
personnel and to provide them with incentives to retain them for
the continual operation and development of the Group. The Share
Award Scheme is valid for a term of ten (10) years commencing
from the date of adoption and is extendable for a period of not
more than five (5) years. As at the date of this report, the remaining
life of the Share Award Scheme is approximately 5 years and 10
months. The shares of the Company to be awarded under the
Share Award Scheme (“Awarded Shares”) are purchased by the
trustee from the open market out of cash contributed by the
Group or subscribed by the trustee when allotted and issued by
the Company under a general mandate granted or to be granted
by the shareholders of the Company from time to time to allot,
issue or otherwise deal with the Company's shares in accordance
with the Listing Rules for the purpose of the trust and be held
on trust for the Eligible Participants (as defined under the Share
Award Scheme) (other than Excluded Participants (as defined
under the Share Award Scheme)) until such shares are vested
with the relevant Selected Participants (as defined under the
Share Award Scheme) in accordance with the provisions of the
Share Award Scheme. Eligible Participants include any full time
and part-time employees of the Group (including the executive
Directors). Selected Participants include any Eligible Participants
recommended for selection by the Remuneration Committee and
approved by the Board pursuant to the Share Award Scheme Rules
(“Scheme Rules") for participation in the Share Award Scheme.

Pursuant to the Scheme Rules, the Board shall not make any
further award of Awarded Shares which will result in the nominal
value of the Shares awarded by the Board under the Scheme to
exceed 5% of the issued share capital of the Company from time
to time. As at the date of this report, such 5% limit represented
41,663,000 shares of the Company, of which 4,578,000 shares
of the Company were held by the trustee pursuant to the
Share Award Scheme. Accordingly, the number of shares of
the Company that the trustee may further purchase from the
open market or subscribe for the purposes of the Share Award
Scheme was 37,085,000 shares of the Company, representing
approximately 4.45% as at the date of this report.

Pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, the vesting period of
Awarded Shares is determined by the Board in accordance with the
Scheme Rules, but is generally 5 years from their respective grant
dates, and the vested share will be transferred to the selected
participant at no cost upon vesting.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company through its
trustee, Bank of Communications Trustee Limited, acquired a total

of 1,646,000 of the Company’s shares.
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As at 31 December 2022, all the share awards were held by the
trustee, and no share has been vested.

Details of the Awarded Shares granted and movements during the
year ended 31 December 2022 are set out below:

Fair value at
the date of
Name or category grant®?
of participants Grant date Vest date (HKS)
iy ebi =Ll
AREE
SRENZAER RUAH HEAH (#7x)
Employee Participants
(in aggregate) 31 January 2019 31 January 2024 4.78
EE2EE(RH) 2019%1A318 2024F1A31H
20 January 2020 31 January 2025 2.76
202061 A20A 2025514318
20 April 2022 19 April 2027 2.42
202254 /208 202747198
Total
@t
Notes:

(a) The fair value of the awards granted is measured by the quoted market price
of the Shares at the respective dates of grant. A description of the basis for
fair value measurement is set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial

Statements.

(b)  The closing price of the Shares immediately before the date on which the awards
were granted was HK$2.45 per Share.

As at 1 January 2022, the number of shares available for grant
under the Share Award Scheme was 38,971,026.

As at 31 December 2022, the number of shares available for grant
under the Share Award Scheme was 37,085,000.

R2022%F12A318 ' FTERKD B R
AEE  BERGOEESRE -

HE2022F12A31BIEFE - BREAZEIK

NREBEFERINWOT :
Number of Awarded Shares
RBRHEE
Lapsed/
Unvested Forfeited/ Unvested
as at Granted Cancelled as at
1 January during during 31 December
2022 the year the year 2022
R20224 R2022%F
181R ERXM/ 12A31A
5B FREY R/ 5B
1,015,544 - - 1,015,544
1,676,430 - - 1,676,430
- 1,886,026 - 1,886,026
2,691,974 1,886,026 - 4,578,000
Mz -

(a) MRS L A BERZRERESEL BT
BHIETE - A5 BE B A ER 601 0 HRXE vF
B HREKMT 5125

(b) Rip R E LR HH AT B 755 R R 7
2.45%87T °

R2022F1A18 « [RpEEFHE T PR HE
MR B 538,971,026/ °

7R2022%F 12318 © D EEENEEI T A] 7%
HE D 8B A&37,085,0000% °
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Further details of the Share Award Scheme are set out in note 25
to the consolidated financial statements. During the year ended
31 December 2022, no share option was granted under the Share
Option Scheme. The aggregate of 1,886,026 Awarded Shares
granted to the Selected Participants during the year ended 31
December 2022 have been purchased by the trustee from the
open market pursuant to the Share Award Scheme. Accordingly,
no shares of the Company will be issued in respect of the awards
granted under the Share Award Scheme during the year ended
31 December 2022. The number of shares of the Company that
may be issued in respect of options and awards granted under
all schemes of the Company during the year ended 31 December
2022 divided by the weighted average number of Shares in issue
for the year ended 31 December 2022 is therefore not applicable.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Each of Mr. Li, Lead Smart and Eastern Mix (collectively the
“Covenantors”) have entered into a Deed of Non-Competition in
favour of the Company (on behalf of itself and the Group) dated
29 November 2013 (the “Deed”). Pursuant to the Deed, each of
the Covenantors shall procure their respective associates not to
directly or indirectly engage in any business in competition with
the existing businesses of the Group. Relevant information on
the Deed was disclosed in the Prospectus in the section headed
“Relationship with Controlling Shareholders”. The Company has
received confirmations from the Covenantors of their compliance
with the terms of the Deed. The Covenantors declared that they
have fully complied with the Deed for the year ended 31 December
2022. The independent non-executive directors have reviewed the
confirmations from the Covenantors and concluded that the Deed
has been complied with and enforced in an effective manner.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION
A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the directors of the
Company is currently in force and was in force throughout the year.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group entered into the following continuing connected
transactions during the year. The directors confirmed that those
transactions have been entered into in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group, on normal commercial terms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of
the Company as a whole. All applicable percentage ratios (other
than the profits ratio) as defined in Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules
in respect of the proposed annual caps for those transactions
are expected to be less than 5%. Those transactions are exempt
from shareholders’ approval under Rule 14A.76(2) of the Listing
Rules and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole.

The table below sets out the annual caps and the actual transaction
amounts of those continuing connected transactions in 2022:

Connected Person

BEAL

No. Continuing Connected Transaction

1 Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement TK Technology Holdings Limited
("TK Technology Holdings")
RIMREBERAR

([RIH&EE])

ERHEhE

2 Shenzhen Tangjia Plant No. 1 Lease Agreement  TK Technology (Shenzhen) Limited
(“TK Technology (Shenzhen)”)

RIMB(RINERAR
(TRTRE (RN ])

RERRE 1 RS

3 Shenzhen Tangjia Plant No. 2 Lease Agreement

RYERRE 258 & ek

TK Technology (Shenzhen)
LR ORI

4 Shenzhen Tangjia Plant Dormitory
Block A Lease Agreement

RIEFREAREEEERZ

TK Technology (Shenzhen)

RITHER (I

Subtotal of lease agreements
BERE N

Note (a): Excluding rental deposits of approximately HK$11,746,000
(RMB10,026,000) paid to TK Technology Holdings and TK Technology
(Shenzhen), which has been refunded to the Group free of interest at the
expiration of the tenancy and lease agreements set out above.

FAREBIILUATHERERS - EFHE
REZERGTIRAEERAER —REBKBRR
FIEATFEEZIEFHEMRRETYL - WA
AARIBRR ZERFZ - RELEMHAUE
14076 EE  ZERHIZEZFELR
FEERBEDLE(RFLEKRIN) BHER
5% o RIFEEMMBAIE14A.76(2) 1K * ZER
SERBETRREAENHRE  UHFEEAA
AR 2 BB o

TREVNZEHBEAERIN2022F 2FE
FREERZ S

Annual Cap Actual Transaction Amount
FELR ERRZ8
RMB'000 HK$'000 RMB'000 HK$'000
ARETT TEL  ARBTR FHET
123 144 123 144
19,201 23,516 18,814 22,057
46,276 56,683 45,409 53,182
1,788 2,190 1,601 1,874
67,388 82,533 65,9474 77,2574

Weta): TERZFEMNRINBEBREINE(F
) 8y 2 &£ #911,746,000% 7T (A B B
10,026,000t ) (B R L F 49 % 7 & 1755 /&
BE [ A EE S ERL) °
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A tenancy agreement dated 20 January 2022 (the “Hong
Kong Tenancy Agreement”) was entered into between TK
Technology Holdings as landlord and TK Group International
(Hong Kong) Limited (“TK Group International (Hong Kong)"),
a subsidiary of the Company) as tenant in respect of the
premises located at Workshop No. 19 on 9th Floor, Block B, Hi-
Tech Industrial Centre, No. 491-501 Castle Peak Road, Tsuen
Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong (the “Hong Kong Premises”)
with an area of approximately 77.67 square metres for a term
of one year commencing on 1 January 2022 and expiring on 31
December 2022 at a monthly rent of HK$12,000. The property
is used as the principal place of business for the Group in Hong
Kong. At any time during the term of the Hong Kong Tenancy
Agreement, TK Group International (Hong Kong) may terminate
the Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement by giving not less than one
month’s prior written notice to the landlord or by paying one
month’s rent to the landlord.

TK Technology Holdings is a property holding company and
indirectly held as to 45.0% by Mr. Li, 28.0% by Mr. Yung
and 27.0% by Mr. Lee. According to the Listing Rules, TK
Technology Holdings is an associate of Mr. Li, Mr. Yung and
Mr. Lee, and is thus a connected person of the Company.

Pursuant to the Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement, the annual
rent of the Hong Kong Premises in 2022 amounted to
HK$144,000, payable by TK Group International (Hong Kong)
in advance on the first day of each calendar month. The annual
rent payable to TK Technology Holdings was determined at
after arm’s length negotiation between the parties to the Hong
Kong Tenancy Agreement. The independent property valuer
of the Company has also confirmed that the terms of the
Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement are fair and reasonable and
the rental payment under the Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement
reflects the prevailing market rate.

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2022

RIRBEE(EREE)ERITISEE
BR(EB)ARAR(TRIEEHE(F
B ARElZHBAR) (EAEBAAN)
7202261 208 ] HERZE([BE
HEWHZ])  NAEBABEBHAZES
I3 491-50158 5= D T¥F LBEIIES
195 MM (BB WE]) HELY
77.67F 7K - HHEA—F - B2022F1 A
1HEE2022F12H318ER - AEA
12,0008 7T - ZWEEREASEEER
BHRETELEMLE - REBHEHEH
PR - RITEEBRER(ES)A
BERREEFFHHTPR—EASZEEER
B HAEEIN—EANBESKIE
HEHE R -

RIMBESEERYMEERAR - B
R&EE  SEERFTRBEED FIFE
FHA45.0% * 28.0% & 27.0% ° BRI £
MR FIREEEAEFTR LA -
SEERFTRBEENBEA - WAK
NElWFEANL -

RIEBEBRERZ  2022FFEMED
FHA144,0008 7T + AR TS EEHE
(BB )RSEAGBRELAYIN - EBNT
FIRBEENFENECEEHERZ
FIRA A FEEEETE - N AFMEL
MELEMTERREBHEHZNE
HBATEE  REASHEHBZETH
HeRM TRITHE -



(2) Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease Agreements

The following lease agreements were entered into between
TK Technology (Shenzhen) as landlord and TK Mold (Shenzhen)
Limited (“TK Mold (Shenzhen)”), TK Precision Plastics
(Shenzhen) Limited (“TK Precision Plastics (Shenzhen)”), YD
Mold (Shenzhen) Limited (“YD Mold”) and TK Supply Chain
Management Services (Shenzhen) Limited (“TK Supply Chain”)

as tenants respectively:

Directors’ Report (continued)
EFgHEE(E)

(2) F®YERBEHE =

RIRECGRIND (EREET)BRITHEA
CRINDBR AR (TRITEACKRID 1)
RTRBAPEZ CRYID AR B (TRITHE
BPEB ORI D) - ARERCRYD AR
RAI(THRER DA RRIHERE R
B CRIDBRAB ([FRTHREE]) (1F
RAEMEA) DRI THIEE R

Agreement Parties to the Agreement Date of Agreement  Leased Property Term Monthly Rent
] BETH5 EELE] IS 3 A&
(RMB)
(ARE)
Shenzhen Tangjia Plant TK Technology (Shenzhen) as landlord 30 December 2021~ Workshop A, B, C, D, E and F Phase 1 of TK 1 January 2022 to 1,667,868
No. 1 Lease Agreement and TK Mold (Shenzhen and YD Mold Technology Park, Tangjia Community, Fenghuang 31 December 2022
as tenants Sub- District Office, Guangming District,
Shenzhen City, the PRC
MIRFER REEDR RIBROVIN(EBEERIEE 2512308 RERITHHREEHSRERHER IRA N0E1RIRR
(RIDREFEE(fERARA) TEE(-5)BRAB-CD-E-FR 20225128318
Shenzhen Tangjia Plant TK Technology (Shenzhen) as landlord 30 December 2021~ Workshop E and F Phase 1, G and H Phase 2, Zone 1 January 2022 to 3,784,014

No. 2 Lease Agreement and TK Precision Plastics (Shenzhen)

and TK Supply Chain as tenants

MIERERIRE RS RIHB(R) (FR% L) AR TRE

(R RRILERR (AR )

Shenzhen Tangjia Plant Dormitory ~ TK Technology (Shenzhen| as landlord
Block A Lease Agreement and TK Precision Plastics (Shenzhen)
and TK Mold (Shenzhen) as tenants

RIMR(MI (feRRT)ER TR
TR (R RRIRA(RI)
(fERAEA)

MIERERARE 2R E RS

20215128308

30 December 2021

20015124308

Aand B Workshop J, Phase 3 of TK Technology 31 December 2022
Park, Tangjia Community, Fenghuang Sub-
District Office, Guangming District, Shenzhen
City, the PRC

PRI AR R BB ERER I BRI
T2E(-B)ERE PR (ZH)ERG HE
(ZH)ERJRA BE

N051818%
N2F12831 8

Dormitory Block A of TK Technology Park, Tangjia 1 January 2022 to 133,388
Community, Fenghuang Sub-District Office, 31 December 2022
Guangming District, Shenzhen City, the PRC
PEMITLAREERERERHERINR  N2FIAAR

T£EAEES 2020£1231R
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TK Mold (Shenzhen), TK Precision Plastics (Shenzhen),
YD Mold and TK Supply Chain (collectively the “Tenants”)
are entitled to renew the Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease
Agreements by notifying the landlord one month before the
expiration of the Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease Agreements,
and Tenants are entitled to a right of first refusal in the
renewal. Moreover, in the event that the landlord intends to
sell the subject properties during the term of the Shenzhen
Tangjia Plants Lease Agreements, including any renewal
thereof, the landlord shall inform Tenants of the intended
sale in writing and Tenants are entitled to a right of first
refusal to purchase, which is deemed to be waived if Tenants
do not accept the offer within 30 days after receiving such
notice. Tenants are further entitled to terminate the Shenzhen
Tangjia Plants Lease Agreements by giving one month's
notice to the landlord without cause. Mr. Li, Mr. Yung and
Mr. Lee, being the ultimate shareholders of TK Technology
(Shenzhen), undertake to use their best endeavour to procure
TK Technology (Shenzhen) to fulfil its obligations under the
Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease Agreements.

TK Technology (Shenzhen) is a company indirectly held as to
45.0% by Mr. Li, 28.0% by Mr. Yung and 27.0% by Mr. Lee.
According to the Listing Rules, TK Technology (Shenzhen) is
an associate of Mr. Li, Mr. Yung and Mr. Lee, and is thus a
connected person of the Company.

The annual rent payable to TK Technology (Shenzhen) was
determined at after arm’s length negotiation between the
parties to the Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease Agreements.
The independent property valuer of the Company has also
confirmed that, the terms of the Shenzhen Tangjia Plants
Lease Agreements (including the rental payable thereunder)
are fair and reasonable and the rental payable under the
Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease Agreements reflects the
prevailing market rate. Our directors consider that the
Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease Agreements have been entered
into on normal commercial terms and in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group.
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Pursuant to Rules 14A.81, 14A.82 and 14A.83 of the Listing
Rules, the transactions under the Hong Kong Tenancy
Agreement and Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease Agreements
(collectively the “Connected Lease Agreements”) have been
aggregated for the purposes of determining the category of
continuing connected transaction that the Connected Lease
Agreements shall fall into under the Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company
have, for the purpose of Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules,
reviewed the continuing connected transactions under the
Connected Lease Agreements as set out above and have
confirmed that these continuing connected transactions have
been entered into by the Group (i) in the ordinary and usual
course of its business; (ii) on normal commercial terms or
better; and (iii) according to the agreements governing such
transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Company’s shareholders as a whole.

For the purpose of Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, the auditor of the Company, has
provided a letter to the Board, confirming that nothing has
come to their attention that causes them to believe that the
continuing connected transactions abovementioned:

(i) have not been approved by the Board;

(i) have not been entered into in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing the transactions; and

(iii) have exceeded the respective annual caps.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The details of the related party transactions are set out in note 35
to the consolidated financial statements.

The Company confirms that in relation to the related party
transactions for the year ended 31 December 2022, it has complied
with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
EFgHEE(E)

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s
five largest customers accounted for 38.1% of the Group's total
sales and the sales attributable to the Group’s largest customer
was approximately 12.1% of the Group’s total sales. The aggregate
purchases attributable to the Group's five largest suppliers
were approximately 10.8% of the Group's total purchases and
the purchase attributable to the Group's largest supplier was
approximately 3.0% of the Group’s total purchases.

None of the directors or any of their close associates or any
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
directors own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) had beneficial interests in the Group's top five suppliers or
customers referred to above.

COMPLIANCE OF RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year, there was no material breach or non-compliance
with the applicable laws regulations by the Group.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Share Option Scheme”
and “Share Award Scheme” in this annual report, no equity-linked
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing shares
or that require the Company to enter into any agreements that will
or may result in the Company issuing shares entered into by the
Company during the year under review or subsisted at the end of
the year.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance were entered into between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling shareholder or
any of its subsidiaries during the year.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated
14 October 2022. As disclosed in the announcement, the public
float of the Company had fallen below the minimum prescribed
percentage of 256% as required under Rule 8.08(1)(a) of the Listing
Rules as each of FIL Limited, Pandanus Partners L.P. and Pandanus
Associates Inc. (the “FIL Group Companies”) filed a disclosure
of interest form on 2 September 2022, pursuant to which the
controlled corporation(s) of the FIL Group Companies purchased
2,911,000 shares of the Company (the “Shares”) on 30 August
2022 (the “Purchase”), after which FIL Group Companies became
interested in 83,698,000 Shares and the FIL Group Companies’
shareholding in the Company increased from approximately 9.70%
to approximately 10.04% of the total issued share capital of the
Company. As a result of the Purchase, the FIL Group Companies
became substantial shareholders and core connected persons of
the Company under the Listing Rules and the Shares held by the
FIL Group Companies should no longer be counted towards the
public float of the Company. Taking into account of the Shares held
by the FIL Group Companies and other core connected persons of
the Company, the public float of the Company was approximately
23.76% as at the date of such announcement, which has fallen
below the minimum prescribed percentage of 25% as required
under Rule 8.08(1)(a) of the Listing Rules.

Reference is also made to the announcement of the Company
dated 22 November 2022. As disclosed in the announcement, the
Company was informed by FIL Limited on 16 November 2022 that
following an on-exchange disposal of an aggregate of 1,362,000
Shares, representing approximately 0.16% of the total issued
share capital of the Company, on 16 November 2022, the FIL
Group Companies became interested in 83,242,000 Shares and
the FIL Group Companies’ shareholding in the Company decreased
from approximately 10.15% to 9.99% of the total issued share
capital of the Company (the “Disposal”). Accordingly, upon the
completion of the Disposal, (i) the FIL Group Companies have
ceased to be substantial shareholders and a core connected
persons of the Company under the Listing Rules and the Shares
held by the FIL Group Companies can be counted towards the
public float of the Company; and (ii) the public float of the Company
has been restored from approximately 23.76% to approximately
33.80%, which exceeds the minimum prescribed percentage of
25% and the public float requirement under Rule 8.08(1)(a) of the
Listing Rules has been restored and complied with.

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors as at the date of this
annual report, there was a sufficient prescribed public float of the
issued shares of the Company under the Listing Rules.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
EFgHEE(E)

PROFESSIONAL TAX ADVICE

If the shareholders of the Company are unsure about the taxation
implications of purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in, or the
exercise of any rights in relation to the shares of the Company,
they are advised to consult an expert.

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers will retire and a resolution for their re-
appointment as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the
AGM.

By the order of the Board
Li Pui Leung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2023
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To the Shareholders of TK Group (Holdings) Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

The consolidated financial statements of TK Group (Holdings)
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which
are set out on pages 148 to 231, comprise:

e the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2022;

e the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

e the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

e the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2022, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“"HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is related to the assessment
of expected credit losses on trade receivables.
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Key Audit Matter

Assessment of expected credit losses on trade receivables

Refer to note 3.1(b), note 4.1 and note 18(a) to the consolidated
financial statements.

As at 31 December 2022, gross trade receivables amounted
to HK$297,701,000, which represented approximately 11% of
the total assets of the Group. Management has estimated the
expected credit losses (“ECL") on trade receivables and a loss
allowance of HK$9,668,000 was made against the gross trade
receivables as at 31 December 2022.

Management estimated the ECL on trade receivables based
on estimation about risk of default and expected credit loss
rates of customers. Management applied judgments in making
the estimation and selecting the methodology and inputs used
in the ECL calculation, based on the customers’ credit risk
characteristics, financial position of major customers as well as
forward looking information.

We considered this area a key audit matter due to the magnitude
of the balance of trade receivables as well as the significant
judgments and estimates involved in the estimation of the related
ECL.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

We obtained an understanding of the management’s internal
control and assessment process over the estimation of
ECL on trade receivables and assessed the inherent risk of
material misstatement by considering the degree of estimation
uncertainty, complexity and subjectivity.

We evaluated and tested management'’s key controls in relation
to the estimation of the ECL.

We assessed the appropriateness of the ECL provisioning
methodology adopted by management based on our
understanding on the Group’s business and credit control process
and the credit risk characteristics of customers.

We tested, on a sample basis, the accuracy of ageing analysis of
trade receivables by tracing to sales invoices and receipts.

We tested the key data input to calculate the estimated default
rates and loss rates.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

We evaluated the financial position of major customers
by checking to relevant information and evaluated the
appropriateness of management’s assessment of forward looking
information with reference to our understanding of the industry
and external macroeconomic data.

We checked the mathematical accuracy of the calculation of ECL.

Based on the above, we considered that the significant
judgments and estimates made in relation to the assessment of
ECL on trade receivables were supportable by available evidence.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

e (Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’'s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.
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e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Cheung Siu Cheong.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 31 March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

AN = A ><
=) ﬁ#%ﬂ'\ =) Hﬂlﬁﬁ%
Year ended 31 December
HZE12A31ALEE
2022 2021
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
iz FER FET
Revenue WA 5 2,279,321 2,404,398
Cost of sales HEM A 7 (1,738,046) (1,835,231)
Gross profit ER 541,275 569,167
Other income HabUg A 6 44,613 51,869
Other gains — net H ek — F 58 6 9,515 11,076
Selling expenses HERX 7 (67,019) (79,252)
Administrative expenses TEAX 7 (280,634) (247,004)
Operating profit BEHEF 247,750 305,856
Interest income B YA 9 23,393 24,513
Interest expenses F BRI 9 (10,038) (6,376)
Finance income — net B UL A — FEE 13,355 18,137
Share of results of associates i NI E 12 (2,347) 527
Profit before income tax KR P 1584 AT 7l 258,758 324,520
Income tax expense FriSfiA > 10 (31,849) (42,137)
Profit for the year FEREF 226,909 282,383
Other comprehensive income Hiusr ez
Item that may be reclassified to AJREEH 57 B E 18 a5 1Y
profit and loss: IHEH -
Currency translation differences INERRITE =R (146,325) 54,627
Total comprehensive income FRGEREEEE
for the year 80,584 337,010
Earnings per share SRER
- Basic and diluted —EAREE 11 HK$0.277% 7Tt  HK$0.34/87T
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The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income
should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

AHEERER
As at 31 December
R12A31H
2022 2021
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Kzt THER FAT
ASSETS aE
Non-current assets IEREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M RE NRERE 13 485,972 527,966
Right-of-use assets FTREESE 14 112,316 101,601
Intangible assets BmILEE 15 19,483 31,746
Financial assets at fair value through MARBEASEAEES
profit or loss HABBHEREE 19 33,621 33,621
Investments in associates Bt SN FIRIRE 12 25,368 16,296
Deferred income tax assets EEFTEREE 30 1,643 2,978
Prepayments for property, plant and M BEREEL
equipment Sl e 12,437 10,099
690,840 724,307
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 17 391,862 495,644
Trade and other receivables B 5 NEMpERRIE 18 343,227 417,060
Amounts due from a related company FEUS BEES N B TR I8 - 10,913
Deposits for bank borrowings BITEENIES 20 157,138 174,437
Restricted cash ZRHRE 20 - 1,231
Cash and cash equivalents NENESEEY 20 1,114,456 1,027,568
2,006,683 2,126,853
Total assets EERAE 2,697,523 2,851,160
EQUITY R
Share capital & 7 21 83,326 83,326
Share premium B sE 21 251,293 251,293
Shares held for employee share TR E R M Z
scheme AR 22 (14,401) (10,416)
Other reserves HibEE 24 69,506 201,232
Retained earnings (R 3% F 23 1,215,871 1,096,484
Total equity RSB 1,605,595 1,621,919
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Consolidated Balance Sheet (continued)

aHEEREXRE)

As at 31 December

MW12H318
2022 2021
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
(F3 Fi# T
LIABILITIES aE
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Bank borrowings RITEE 26 60,543 144,940
Lease liabilities HEaE 14 40,841 23,432
Deferred income TEIEY A 27 43,412 61,316
Deferred income tax liabilities BLEMSHAE 30 31,322 35,675
176,118 265,363
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables B 5 NEMENSRIE 28 348,601 399,202
Contract liabilities XA E 29 200,955 263,518
Income tax liabilities FrigfiafE 4,405 25,894
Bank borrowings RITIEE 26 286,472 194,229
Lease liabilities HERE 14 75,377 81,035
915,810 963,878
Total liabilities =RErak 1,091,928 1,229,241
Total equity and liabilities ERRABEHESE 2,697,523 2,851,160

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in N A AEARBRKREERIBENH T — 4
conjunction with the accompanying notes. i o

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board
of Directors on 31 March 2023 and were signed on its behalf.

BHMBEHRN2023FIANAREESH
o WHTIEETRRESERE -

Li Pui Leung Yung Kin Cheung Michael
MR HEM
Director Director
EF EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

EOtREREER
Shares
held for
employee
Share Share share Other  Retained
Note capital premium scheme reserves earnings Total
HES
LEE
iz & RtEE HENRG Hthfte REEH @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERL TET TAR TAn TAn TATL
Balance at 1 January 2022 R2022%1 B1B ke 83,326 251,293 (10416) 201,232 1,096,484 1,621,919
Comprehensive income GalE
Profit for the year EMET - - - - 226,909 226,909
Other comprehensive income Hftdr Al 24 - - - (146,325) - (146,325)
Total comprehensive income BAWREE - - - (146,325) 226,909 80,584
Transactions with owners in their ~ EEFAUNEEEASH
capacity as owners: BINRS:
Acquisition of shares WERG 2 - - (3,985) - - (3,985)
Employee share schemes EERHE
- value of employee services —EERBER 8 = = = 2,068 = 2,068
Dividends RE 31 - - = = (94,991) (94,991)
Transfer to statutory reserves ERDTETRE 2 - - - 12,531 (12,531) -
Total transactions with owners BREARTHRZEE - - (3,985) 14599  (107,522) (96,908)
Balance at 31 December 2022 R2022F12 8310 &S 83,326 251,293 (14,401) 69,506 1,215,871 1,605,595
Balance at 1 January 2021 R2021F181R (56 83,326 251,293 (10,416) 126,026 944,326 1,394,555
Comprehensive income Gaks
Profit for the year EREH - - - - 282,383 282,383
Other comprehensive income LAl - - - 54,627 - 54,627
Total comprehensive income GakRAE - - - 54,627 282,383 337,010
Transactions with owners in their ~ @EEALEEEA 56
capacity as owners: EThRE
Employee share schemes EERA:HE
- value of employee services —EERKER - - - 2,011 - 2,011
Dividends RE - - - - (111,657) (111,657)
Transfer to statutory reserves BRZETHE - - - 18,568 (18,568) -
Total transactions with owners REEARTHRSEE - - - 2579 (130,225 (109,646)
Balance at 31 December 2021 R2021512 831 B ES 83,326 251,293 (10,416) 201,232 1,096,484 1,621,919

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be LA 6 OF i s B 5% B i (R B B P 5 — B 59
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. & o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
EHEERER

Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31BLEE

2022 2021
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
HtaE FET FET
Cash flows from operating activities REKLIBNWHRERE
Cash generated from operations KEEANIRS 32(a) 418,482 384,348
Interest received BUF B 6,963 5,531
Income taxes paid BEAATEH (53,910) (32,508)
Net cash generated from operating TR RTE AR
activities WEFHE 371,535 357,371
Cash flows from investing activities HREREZBNRESFTE
Purchase of property, plant and BEWE  BEIRE
equipment (139,247) (103,524)
Purchase of intangible assets WEETEE (4,869) (5,086)
Payment for business combination EZ 3N aNEN - (11,862)
Payment for investment in an associate  RE#& R R A K 12 (12,380) -
Loan to an associate MEE QR ER 35(e) (2,240) -
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEDE  MENMERED
plant and equipment PIRCEe! 32(b) 5,283 2,541
Dividends from an associate KB —EBEARNRE 355 407
Additions of financial assets at RERAREETEAH
fair value through profit or loss T AEENEREE 19 (1,241,318) (1,287,813)
Disposals of financial assets at HERANEENEAER
fair value through profit or loss BT ABENEHEE 19 1,257,129 1,306,886
Net cash used in investing activities "EEEFARE FE (137,287) (98,451)
Cash flows from financing activities REBETHNHEERE
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITIEEFMBRIA 103,740 378,609
Repayments of bank borrowings BEIEITEE (88,609) (315,635)
Decrease/(increase) in deposits for RITEERERD
bank borrowings (3&4n) 17,299 (26,206)
Decrease in deposits for leases HEZERH D 10,913 -
Interest paid EAFE 32(c) (9,410) (6,376)
Principal elements of lease payments HENTO RS 32(c) (76,906) (71,898)
Acquisitions of shares W g A% 1 22 (3,985) -
Dividends paid EfIRE 31 (94,991) (111,657)
Net cash used in financing activities BEESTAE SRR (141,949) (153,163)
Net increase in cash and cash Be MRS E WL
equivalents FFE 92,299 105,757
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning F#R 4 &KELEEY
of the year 1,027,568 920,446
Effects of exchange rate changes EXREFFHNTE (5,411) 1,365
Cash and cash equivalents at end FRBEMEEEEY
of the year 1,114,456 1,027,568

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in LA FA GRS RE R EERBENM T — 66
conjunction with the accompanying notes. & o
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1

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 28
March 2013 as an exempted company with limited liability.
The address of the Company's registered office is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The Company, an investment
holding company, and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) are principally engaged in the manufacturing, sales,
subcontracting, fabrication and modification of molds and
plastic components in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC"). As at 31 December 2022, the ultimate shareholders
of the Company are Mr. Li Pui Leung, Mr. Yung Kin Cheung
Michael and Mr. Lee Leung Yiu (collectively the “Ultimate
Shareholders”), each holding an effective equity interest of
30.01%, 18.67% and 18.01% in the Company, respectively.

On 20 December 2013, shares of the Company were listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), unless otherwise stated.

These consolidated financial statements have been approved
for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company on 31
March 2023.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied
to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. The
consolidated financial statements are for the Group consisting
of the Company and its subsidiaries.

SOt B mRME
—RE R

RAFM2013F3 A28 RHAEHSE
AMKLRERRERAF - ARQF
=T fft 9% = BE &9 Hb 4k & Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands °
KA RBIEEERAG EREWBER
A(GEATAKEEDFEEFEARHS
ME(THEDRERER R TEAHRR
& HE KT  ®ERIER - 12022
F12A318  RARNRKKERR BETD
RESE  SEARERFTRBESE (S
BAEITRERR])  BEZBSAFHE
RAFERKREI0.01%  18.67% K&
18.01% °

M2013%F 128208 © XARIBMNDERE
BER AR AR ([BRRT]) £ -

BRBRAES  ZEFAHMBHRRT
RET(TAT]) 25 -

ZEAHPERERN2023F3A31BK
KAREBSHETIE -

TESHHEREE

AU B R RS A B S MR T
RANEERHRE - RBARAE
5N BB DA 2 R S5 B
R o RA Y BREDAREE(EA
AR RAEHEA A MRS -

ROIE® (%) BRAR] 2022F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
BB HRRIEE(E)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHBEXRBE@)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation 2.1 REEAE

(a)

(b)

(c)

Compliance with HKFRS and the disclosure requirements
of HKCO

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS") and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (“HKCO") Cap. 622.

Historical cost convention

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
("FVPL") which are carried at fair value.

New and amended standards

The Group has applied amended standards and annual
improvements effective for the financial period beginning on 1
January 2022. The adoption of these amended standards and
annual improvements does not have any significant impact on
the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

New and amended standards and interpretations that have
been issued but are not yet effective and have not been early
adopted by the Group are as follows:

(a)

(b)

(c)

BTEBMBHREENREE D AKRSL
MR B R E
AEENSHY BRI LB B BER
SEAN(TEEMBREEL]) RBEZX
51556225 A RG] (T FA R ARG D&Y
BEHRTEME

JE S8 R AN TE
BHMBRROREELRAEFR -
BREGMUAAAEBEIENZAAEE
SAERHEEHF ARG ([1RAREER
EREEHFABRDNESREEMIE
HIER]T °

HaT KA T 2R
AREECDEFEMAN2022F1 A1 B A0 8
I B FE AR R B (B BT 2E Rl [ F J8 B o
RWZERIETEARFEERETSY
AEENEHYBRREEANERY
2

EEMERARERAERHARERER K
MEFTR] MR ER 2B T

Effective for

accounting
periods beginning
on or after
RT5 A8
ZHBBERN
SIFHBEEN
HKFRS 17 and amendments to Insurance Contracts 1 January 2023
HKFRS 17
BEBMBwELERE 175K R a4 2023F1H1H
BB wEENF175%
CCHEN

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKFRS Practice Statement 2
BERAGHERE 1R RBAMBHRSE
HREBEHAFE 25 (BEFTA)
Amendments to HKAS 8
BB G ERIESIR(IBFTA)
Amendments to HKAS 12

LHEC D

BRAETER

BREGFTERF 1257 (EFTA)

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2022

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

Definition of Accounting Estimates

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising
from a Single Transaction

HE-QRHELMNEERABERRNELTHEA

1 January 2023
2023%F1H18
1 January 2023
20231 A1H

1 January 2023

2023F1A1H



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
BHEIIERERNEE(E)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(c) New and amended standards (Continued)

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)

BABREANEFESIR(2020%F)

Amendments to HKAS 1
EBGTERE1R(BETA)
Amendments to HKFRS 16
BRI mEERE165% EFTA)
Amendments to HKAS 1
BB G ERIE1R(BETA)
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28
BB wEERE105% &
BB G ERIFE 285 (BFTR)

The Group has already commenced an assessment of the
impact of these new or revised standards, amendments and
interpretations, certain of which are relevant to the Group’s
operations. According to the preliminary assessment made by
the directors of the Company, these standards, amendments
or interpretations are not expected to have a material impact

2.1 RBLEAE (\)

(c) a1 R ARMERT 2R ()

2 FESHBEXRBE@E)

Effective for
accounting

periods beginning

Presentation of financial statement - Classification
by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause

MBHRRER - ERAHHERERERIGRNOE L
ERHOE

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

KEESERRBAIERE

Lease liability in a sale and leaseback

ERENNEERE

Non-current liabilities with covenants

ARFEZERBEE

on or after
KT A
ZEBBEBN
SIHHIBEN

1 January 2024

2024%1 818

1 January 2024
2024F1 A1 H
1 January 2024
20241 A1H
1 January 2024
2024F1 A1 H

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor To be determined

and its Associate or Joint Venture

RELZHEBENAHSERRICHNEELETOTE

on the Group in the current or future reporting periods and on

foreseeable future transactions.

ROIE® (%) BRAR] 2022F
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(a)

(b)

(c)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
where the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power to direct the activities
of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control or joint control. This is generally the
case where the Group holds between 20% and 50% of the
voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted for
using the equity method of accounting (see (c) below), after
initially being recognised at cost.

Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are
initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group's share of the post-acquisition profits or losses
of the investee in profit or loss, and the Group’'s share of
movements in other comprehensive income of the investee in
other comprehensive income. Dividends received or receivable
from associates are recognised as a reduction in the carrying
amount of the investment.

Where the Group’s share of losses in an equity-accounted
investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity,
including any other unsecured long-term receivables, the
Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the other entity.

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2022

(a)

(b)

(c)
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(c)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Equity method (Continued)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest
in these entities. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity-accounted
investees have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments is tested
for impairment in accordance with the policy described in note
2.9.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for all business combinations, regardless of whether equity
instruments or other assets are acquired. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

e fair values of the assets transferred

e liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired
business

e equity interests issued by the Group

e fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement, and

e fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with limited
exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquired entity’s net identifiable
assets.

2 FESHBEXRBE@E)

(c) RE=7E (B

AEEEEBENRMRGMELRE
BR i ARRAEERZEE
BORGRD BRI BEBERTHA
HREREELRRE  SUREREET
TUASH - AESEARNIRE T
B BRCRBEFELES - UREKRE
REBFRANBRER—B -

AR s )E A BRI E B PR E B R B MY &E
2 OFT A BRERAETTRE AR -

WEEHEATTRARARMBEZBHAH -
mMimELAEWERATANEME
E-mpRB-HNBEARMERERNKE
B

s MEREEMAAEE

o HRWWBEBHEAAMELARE

o AEBEFEITRE

o IRRELHELNIMEERKE
BNAAEE R

s MEBARLMEFENRENRDRE
& -

XA Gt P IE R R 385 B B DA I
PrEENABERIARA BN FRERK
BEMN AR BERE(DHPISMERER
5N o ARBAR AR EEKIHT BB
HRNEERA R EEFENEE L
PlHRERWEERE AR RKEETR
A AR IR AR 25
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
The excess of the:
e consideration transferred,

e amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired
entity, and

e acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in
the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair
value of the net identifiable assets of the business acquired,
the difference is recognised directly in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is
deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted to
their present value as at the date of exchange. The discount
rate used is the entity's incremental borrowing rate, being the
rate at which a similar borrowing could be obtained from an
independent financier under comparable terms and conditions.
Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or a
financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial liability are
subsequently remeasured to fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss.

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.
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2

(a)

(b)

(c)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker.

The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the executive
directors who makes strategic decisions.

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). Renminbi ("RMB") is the
functional currency of principal operating subsidiaries of the
Group. These consolidated financial statements are presented
in HKS, which is the presentation and functional currency of
the Company.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions or valuation where items are re-measured.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at year end exchange rates are generally recognised
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in statement
of comprehensive income within ‘Other gains - net'.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none
of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

e assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

(a)

(b)

(c)

FESHBERE @)

REDBIHANRER T EREERRE
A ERRE — A T2 °

T REERKEWRE R IEH KIS 1R
ENHTES  BEDERERIFER
B ERA -

DERZIEY

AEBESEERBMBHRRAMIINEAR - 1
NZERKEMETI2REREMER
MERE(TTEEEE DEE - ARBIA
RENDASENTIELENB AN
WEEEH - ZFEHMBBRTIANET
25 BRRIDARFH 2| RINEE -

R R&ER
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ERHBEEANRTEXRFE/NEE
% RALRHEERRFEFREXRFTH
NINEFHENEEEERBEMELD
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(c)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Group companies (Continued)

e income and expenses for each statement of comprehensive
income are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses are translated
at the rate on the dates of the transaction); and

e all resulting currency translation differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition
of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing rate.

All property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less depreciation and impairment losses. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Construction in progress is property, plant and equipment on
which construction work has not been completed and stated
at cost. Cost includes acquisition and construction expenditure
incurred, interest and other direct costs attributable to the
development. Depreciation is not provided on construction in
progress until the related asset is completed for intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when
replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to
profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are
incurred.
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(a)

(b)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their cost, net of their
residual values, over their estimated useful lives as follows:
Leasehold improvements Over 5 years or the remaining
term of the relevant lease,
whichever is shorter

Plant and machinery 5-10 years

Furniture, fixtures and 3 years
computer equipment

Motor vehicles 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount (note 2.9).

Gains and losses on disposal are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised
within ‘Other gains - net’ in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Computer software

Acquired software licenses are capitalised on the basis of
the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific
software. These costs are amortised on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives of 3 to 10 years.

Goodwiill

Goodwill is measured as described in note 2.3. Goodwill on
acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets.
Goodwill is not amortised but it is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that it might be impaired, and is carried
at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses
on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of
goodwill relating to the entity sold.
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(b)

(c)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units (“CGUs") for the
purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made to those
CGUs or groups of CGUs that are expected to benefit from the
business combination in which the goodwill arose. The CGUs
or groups of CGUs are identified at the lowest level at which
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.

Customer relationships

Customer relationships acquired as part of a business
combination are recognised at fair value and carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate the cost of the customer relationships over their
estimated useful lives of 5 years.

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful
life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually
for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other
assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair
value less costs of disposal and value-in-use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows
which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other
assets or groups of assets. Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.
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(a)

(b)

(c)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

e those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either
through other comprehensive income or through profit or
loss); and

e those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the
cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either
be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income.
For investments in equity instruments that are not held for
trading, this will depend on whether the Group has made
an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to
account for the equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income ("FVOCI").

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when
its business model for managing those assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the
financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset
at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVPL are
expensed in profit or loss.

Debt instruments
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group’s business model for managing the asset and
the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group classifies its
debt instruments:
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Measurement (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income using
the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition is recognised directly in profit
or loss and presented in other gains - net together with
foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses
are presented as separate line item in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the
assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements in the
carrying amount are taken through other comprehensive
income, except for the recognition of impairment gains or
losses, interest income and foreign exchange gains and
losses which are recognised in profit or loss. When the
financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised
in other gains - net. Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income using the effective
interest rate method.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised
cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on a
debt investment that is subsequently measured at FVPL is
recognised in profit or loss and presented net within ‘other
gains - net’ in the period in which it arises.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at
fair value. Where the Group's management has elected to
present fair value gains and losses on equity investments
in other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss
following the derecognition of the investment. Dividends from
such investments continue to be recognised in profit or loss as
other income when the Group's right to receive payments is
established.
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(d)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected
credit losses associated with its debt instruments carried at
amortised cost. The impairment methodology applied depends
on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.
Refer note 3.1 for further details.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the balance sheet where the Group currently has a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts, and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value (“NRV"). Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods and work in
progress comprises direct materials, direct labour, other direct
costs and related production overheads allocated on normal
operating capacity. It excluded borrowing costs. NRV is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less
the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold and service provided in the ordinary course
of business. They are generally due for settlement within 90
days and therefore all classified as current.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they contain
significant financing components, when they are recognised
at fair value. The Group holds the trade receivables with the
objective to collect the contractual cash flows and therefore
measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. Refer note 18(a) for further
information about the Group's trade receivables and note 3.1
for a description of the Group's impairment policies.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
deposits held at call with bank, other short-term, highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
and bank overdrafts.

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the Company’s equity
instruments, for example as the result of a share buy-back or
a share-based payment plan, the consideration paid, including
any directly attributable incremental costs (net of income
taxes) is deducted from equity attributable to the owners of
the Company as treasury shares until the shares are cancelled
or reissued. Where such ordinary shares are subsequently
reissued, any consideration received, net of any directly
attributable incremental transaction costs and the related
income tax effects, is included in equity attributable to the
owners of the Company.

Shares held by the Bank of Communications Trustee Limited
on behalf of the Group are disclosed as shares held for
employee share scheme and deducted from the equity
attributable to owners of the Company.

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services
provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year which
are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented as current
liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the
reporting period. They are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount
is recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for
at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets
are capitalised during the period of time that is required to
complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale.
Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’'s taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by
changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.
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2

(a)

(b)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantially enacted at the end of
the reporting period in the countries where the Company
and its subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation and considers whether it
is probable that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax
treatment. The Group measures its tax balances either based
on the most likely amount or the expected value, depending on
which method provides a better prediction of the resolution of
the uncertainty.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that
at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using
tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only if it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available to utilise those
temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for
temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax
bases of investments in foreign operations where the company
is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2

(b)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where there is
a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and where the deferred tax balances relate to the
same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities
are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to
offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except
to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary
benefits and accumulating sick leave that are expected to be
settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in
which the employees render the related service are recognised
in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the
reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected
to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are
presented as current employee benefit obligations within
“trade and other payables” in the consolidated balance sheet.

Pension obligations

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which
the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate fund. The
Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay
all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the
current and prior periods.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays contributions
to publicly or privately administered pension insurance plans
on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has
no further payment obligations once the contributions have
been paid. The contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a
reduction in the future payments is available.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Profit-sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses and profit-sharing based on a formula that takes
into consideration the profit attributable to the Company's
shareholders after certain adjustments. The Group recognises
a provision where contractually obliged or where there is a past
practice that has created a constructive obligation.

The Group operates equity-settled, share-based compensation
plans, under which the Group receives services from
employees as consideration for equity instruments (award
shares) of the Group. The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of the award shares is
recognised as an expense. The total amount to be expensed is
determined by reference to the fair value of the award shares
granted.

The grant by the Company over its equity instruments to
the employees of subsidiaries in the Group is treated as
a capital contribution. The fair value of employee services
received, measured by reference to the grant date fair value,
is recognised over the vesting period as an increase to
investments in subsidiaries, with a corresponding credit to
equity in the parent entity accounts.

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable for the sale of goods and services in the ordinary
course of the Group's activities. Revenue is shown net of
value-added tax, returns, rebates and discounts and after
eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when control of the products
has transferred, and when specific criteria have been met for
each of the Group's activities as described below. The amount
of revenue is not considered to be reliably measurable until all
contingencies relating to sale have been resolved. Revenue is
recognised as follows:
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(a)

(b)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Sales of goods

The Group’'s sales mainly consist of mold fabrication and
plastics components. Revenue is recognised when control of
the products has transferred, being when the products are
delivered to the customers, the customer has full discretion
over the channel and price to sell the products, and there
is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer'’s
acceptance of the products. Delivery occurs when the
products have been shipped to the specified location, the
risks of obsolescence and loss have been transferred to
the customer, and either the customer has accepted the
products in accordance with the sales contract, the acceptance
provisions have lapsed, or the Group has objective evidence
that all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.

As receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered as
this is the point in time that the consideration is unconditional
because only the passage of time is required before the
payment is due.

Deposits received from customers are classified as contract
liabilities and then recognised as revenue when the obligation
is performed.

Modification income

Revenue from mold modification services is recognised when
control of the modified mold has transferred. The modified
mold has no alternative use for the Group due to contractual
restrictions. However, an enforceable right to payment does
not arise until the customer has accepted the modification
specified in the contract.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive
payment is established.

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

(a)

(b)

S BERE @)

HEBm
AEBNHEFTEDRELRERTE
B o IWAREmE I H i ERR R (ANE
MmN TFEFR)ER  BEFHHEEER

VRENEBEBERINBIGHE  BAE
ERJE?T = EARETFHEMNRBRK -
EEMEBEETHE - BRRIBANRA
REEBTEP UREPERBHE
BRBUWER - RUBIEXE & RBEA
CEEEREERERCREERKE
AR - RISTERRAT ©

FEWRIBEN XN m R - IARRNZ
iy ] 5 AO(E 2 BN SR HI A AR 78 BV B
& 38 25 T A A AR A o

EPRBOZESERAMNEE " B
&

=
HERNERBEARERERSWKA -

=

LT T ON
5KE*ﬁﬁﬂkﬂﬁ(ﬁﬁkﬁ’]ﬂﬂzkﬁEﬂxﬂﬁzﬁ%ﬁ
MG RERERER - HaKRE
(B EAHAREEM aﬂzﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬂ)ﬂb 0
Am - EEFPRKAS QAT HNENR
Al SEHISERS T EEL

% 2 J‘IQAEALI&HXHQ *’gﬂ:‘JEE_LHT‘EEWL,"

BheE BT SR BAFOME) - A
S BB ESTAN SRR - #BIRE
DA BERER -

N
|

ROIE® (%) BRAR] 2022F

171



172

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the profit or loss over the period necessary
to match them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment
are included in non-current liabilities as deferred income and
are credited to the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income on a straight-line basis over the expected lives of the
related assets.

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is
available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components.
The Group allocates the consideration in the contract to the
lease and non-lease components based on their relative stand-
alone prices. However, for leases of real estate for which the
Group is a lessee, it has elected not to separate lease and non-
lease components and instead accounts for these as a single
lease component.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The
lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than
the security interests in the leased assets that are held by
the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured
on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net
present value of the following lease payments:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments),
less any lease incentives receivable

e variable lease payment that are based on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date

e amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

e payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement of the
liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined,
which is generally the case for leases in the Group, the
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate
that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the
funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-
of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar
terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

e where possible, uses recent third-party financing received
by the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to
reflect changes in financing conditions since third party
financing was received

e uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free
interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by the
Group, which does not have recent third-party financing,
and

e makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term,
country, currency and security.

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is available to the
individual lessee (through recent financing or market data)
which has a similar payment profile to the lease, then the
group entities use that rate as a starting point to determine the
incremental borrowing rate.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in variable
lease payments based on a rate, which are not included in
the lease liability until they take effect. When adjustments to
lease payments based on an index or rate take effect, the lease
liability is reassessed and adjusted against the right-of-use
asset.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance
cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease
period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

e the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

e any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received

e any initial direct costs, and
e restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter
of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-
line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain to exercise a
purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over
the underlying asset’s useful life. While the Group revalues
its land and buildings that are presented within property, plant
and equipment, it has chosen not to do so for the right-of-use
buildings held by the Group.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and
vehicles and all leases of low-value assets are recognised on
a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term
leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-
value assets comprise IT equipment and small items of office
furniture.
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(a)
(i)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared,
being appropriately authorised and no longer at the discretion
of the entity, on or before the end of the reporting period but
not distributed at the end of the reporting period.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basic using
the effective interest method.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (foreign exchange risk, price risk, cash flow and
fair value interest-rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.
Risk management is carried out by the senior management of
the Group under policies approved by the Board of Directors.

Market risk

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in the PRC and RMB is the
functional currency of principal subsidiaries of the Group.
The Group is exposed to foreign currency risks, mainly with
respect to HK$, US dollar (“USD") and Euro dollar (“"EUR").
Exchange rate fluctuations and market trends have always
been the concern of the Group. Foreign currency hedging
of the Group has been managed by the Group’'s financial
controller and overseen by the Group's chief executive officer.
In accordance with the hedging needs and the then foreign
exchange situation, the financial controller would gather and
analyse information regarding various hedging instruments and
determine stop-loss thresholds. The Group's chief executive
officer would then evaluate and make a decision as to whether
to enter into the relevant hedging agreement. There is no
unsettled hedging contract as at 31 December 2022. The
conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the
rules and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated
by the PRC government.

(a)
(i)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
B HERERME(E)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BEKRERE®

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BF 5 B R == (4|)

(a) Market risk (Continued) (a) T&mEMR (&)

(i) Foreign exchange risk (Continued) (i) ShER Bz (&)
The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency REEEBBERBE  AEBLINERT
denominated monetary assets and liabilities at the respective BENESKEENBENERESYWT -

balance sheet dates are as follows:

2022 2021
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BE 8fE BE RiE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TER TET TR
HKS$ BT 36,953 137,655 10,187 54,419
usD e 294,840 121,646 437,322 178,667
EUR BT 29,218 118,732 22,946 125,307
Total st 361,011 378,033 470,455 358,393
If RMB had strengthened/weakened by 5% against the AR Y SREINEFEBEE% ©
relevant foreign currencies, with all other variables held MEHMEERZFETE - ABRFAER A

constant, the profit before income tax would have been higher/ SR AN CRUA) BRI T

(lower) as follows:

2022 2021

Strengthened Weakened Strengthened  Weakened

5% 5% 5% 5%

F{E5% B2 {B5% FE5% f2185%

HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FHT FAT FEL

HK$ BT 5,035 (5,035) 2,212 (2,212)
usb T (8,660) 8,660 (12,933) 12,933
EUR B 7T 4,476 (4,476) 5,118 (5,118)
Total st 851 (851) (5,603) 5,603

(ii) Price risk (ii) B8/ Bz
The Group is not exposed to equity securities price risk or A& B R E IR ANE HEAS R R
commodity price risk and the Group has not entered into any mERRER - A% B I8 s AR R
long-term contracts with the suppliers. Fluctuations in the FIEAREBAEH - RMAHERNEE B
price of raw materials are usually passed on to customers. BHEIETEP -
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(a)
(iif)

(b)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Cash flow and fair value interest-rate risk

The Group's interest-rate risk arises from bank borrowings.
Bank borrowings at variable rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest-rate risk. Bank borrowings at fixed rates expose
the Group to fair value interest-rate risk. The Group currently
has not used any interest rate swap arrangements but will
consider hedging interest rate risk should the needs arise. If
interest rate for variable rate borrowings had been 10% higher/
lower for the year ended 31 December 2022 with all other
variables held at constant, the Group’s profit before tax would
have been lower/higher by HK$542,000 (2021: HK$281,000).

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, changes in interest rates
within an expected range had no material impact on the
interest income of cash and bank balances.

Credit risk
Credit risk arises from cash and bank balances, trade and other
receivables and financial assets at FVPL.

Risk management and Security

For cash and cash equivalents and deposits for bank
borrowings, the Group manages the credit risk by placing
all the bank deposits in state-owned financial institutions
or reputable banks which are all high-credit-quality financial
institutions.

The Group does not require collateral from the debtors on the
outstanding balances. To manage the credit risk in respect of
trade and other receivables, the Group performs ongoing credit
evaluations of its debtors’ financial condition. The Group has
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts. The Group reviews regularly the
recoverable amount of each individual receivable to ensure that
the adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. Based on the customers’ credit risk characteristics
and forward-looking information on macroeconomic factors,
the Group maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts
and actual losses incurred have been within management’s
expectations.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group faced concentration of
credit risk as the Group’s five largest customers accounted
for approximately 41% (2021: 41%) of the total trade
receivables. The Group has been taking measure to reduce the
concentration by expanding customer base.

3
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(b)
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(b)
(i)

(ii)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Risk management and Security (Continued)

The Group's investments in debt instruments are considered
to be low risk investments. The credit ratings of the
investments are monitored for credit deterioration.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group formulates the credit losses of cash and bank
balances and trade and other receivables using expected credit
losses ("ECL") models according to HKFRS 9 requirements.

Cash and bank balances

The fair values of cash and bank balances including deposits
for bank borrowings, restricted cash and cash and cash
equivalents approximate to their carrying amount and
represent maximum exposure to credit risk.

While cash and bank balances are also subject to the
impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, the identified
impairment loss was immaterial as management considers
that the counter-parties are reputable banks and financial
institutions with high credit ratings. There is no significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

Trade receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach in
measuring ECL which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for all trade receivables.

To measure the ECL, trade receivables have been grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics.

The expected loss rates are based on the estimated default
rates and loss rates, together with the forward-looking
information on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability
of the customers to settle the receivables. The Group has
identified the annual gross domestic product growth rate, the
annual consumer price index growth rate, the annual broad
measure of money supply growth rate and the purchasing
managers’ index to be the most relevant factors, and
accordingly adjusts the loss rates based on expected changes
in these factors.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
BHEIIERERNEE(E)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BEKRERE®
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BF 5 B R &= (4|)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERME(E)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued) (i) L@EEREE)
Trade receivables (Continued) E S REWEIE(E)
On that basis, the loss allowance was determined as follows BRUWEE BB FEWRIBEBETHER

for trade receivables:

BT

As at 31 December

R12A31H
2022 2021
Expected loss rate TBHIE B R 3.25% 3.82%
Gross carrying amount — trade receivables BEEI4A{E — & 5 fEUW 1A
(HK'000) (F#&7T) 297,701 373,807
Loss allowance (HK'000) BIEEE(TET) 9,668 14,272

The loss allowances for trade receivables as at 31 December
2022 reconcile to the opening loss allowances are presented in
note 18.

Trade receivables is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery. Indicators that there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery include, amongst others, the failure of
a debtor to engage in a repayment plan with the Group, and
a failure to make contractual payments for a period of greater
than 1 year.

Other receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 three-stage approach
to measuring ECL of financial assets included in other
receivables. The Group makes periodic collective assessments
as well as individual assessment on the recoverability of other
receivables based on historical settlement records and past
experience.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Other receivables (Continued)

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial
recognition of asset and whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout each
reporting period. Impairment on other receivables is measured
as 12-month expected credit losses when there has been no
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. If
a significant increase in credit risk has occurred since initial
recognition, then impairment is measured as lifetime expected
credit loss.

To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit
risk, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
asset as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the
date of initial recognition. It considers available forwarding-
looking information. Especially the following indicators are
incorporated:

e internal credit rating

e external credit rating

e actual or expected significant adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant change to the borrower'’s
ability to meet its obligations

e actual or expected significant changes in the operating
results of the borrower

e significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same borrower

e significant changes in the expected performance and
behaviour of the borrower, including changes in the
payment status of borrowers in the group and changes in
the operating results of the borrower.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has assessed that the ECL
for other receivables was immaterial.
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3

(ii)

(c)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A RS R R P L (4]

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 KRREREE
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 R EE (E)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) FE R Bz (&)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) (i) ZEEEREE)
Financial assets at FVPL EAnBEAEEHEGFAEZNS
BhEE
The Group is also exposed to credit risk in relation to financial AEFTEEREBEEALBESEAEH
assets at FVPL that are measured at fair value through profit or BEt ABZNSREENSERK
loss. The maximum exposure at the end of the reporting period HURAABEF=EEZET AEBE
is the carrying amount of these investments HK$33,621,000 HE o RNBEHRARAZAMRAO AZEZRE
(31 December 2021: HK$33,621,000). The Group has assessed A BR @18 33,621,000 7t (2021412 A
that the credit risk for these investments was immaterial. 31H : 33,621,000 7T) A& B FF{HZ
ZREMEERR AR
Liquidity risk (c) REBESREE
Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining NEBERBEEARETIRESRBITHEBE
sufficient cash and bank balances. The Group's liquidity risk is BEHEERERSHESRAR AEBMNRH
further mitigated through the availability of financing through EoRkiE—FTEREEERSERYE
its own cash resources and the availability of banking facilities BHEAESURBREIRITRIE LR BB
to meet its financial commitments. In the opinion of the BORIEMSAER - EERE - ~5H
directors, the Group does not have any significant liquidity risk. WEEMEAREESEM -
The table below analyses the Group's financial liabilities TERGEEEEAGEXREHES YD H
(excluding non-financial liabilities) into relevant maturity HEVRISREIRE - ARR R B B 5t K
groupings based on the remaining period at the balance sheet EENERmEECGEERBERII) - K
date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in NFENSCEAAHNRBEERE SRS -
the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows including BREEREONMEAENF B @ 3¢
interest elements computed using contractual rates, or if B FE - AIIREEANMNERAE -
floating based on rates at the year-end date.
Less than 1yearto 2 yearsto Over
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
TR—F -FEZWE WEELF BBREF @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT THET TERT
As at 31 December 2022 R2022%12A31H
Bank borrowings RITEE 290,095 62,115 - - 352,210
Trade and other payables BH R EMENTA 265,627 - - - 265,627
Lease liabilities HERE 79,249 13,614 25,537 5,585 123,985
Total @t 634,971 75,729 25,537 5,585 741,822
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
BB HRRIEE(E)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BKRREREE
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 B s R B [ =& (&)
(¢) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) REESRM(E)
Less than Tyearto  2yearsto Over
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
2% —FEMFE WFERF HBBRE @5t

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
T THBT TET TET T

As at 31 December 2021 20215128310
Bank borrowings BTEE 196,804 87,836 59,612 - 344,252
Trade and other payables B REMENTE 305,636 - - - 305,636
Lease liabilities HEAE 84,387 9,405 15,845 - 109,637
Total m@ar 586,827 97,241 75,457 - 759,525
The Group had access to the following undrawn borrowing AREBRRE BRI ESLAT RIREA
facilities at the end of the reporting period: EBEERE :
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Floating interest rate FER=E
Expiring beyond one year —F1&BH 440,000 447,563
3.2 Capital management 32 ERER
The Group's objectives when managing capital are to REFEEBEEANBEEZARERNEEE
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern in BIFEEENRE N M AKRERMtE
order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other I AEMIFHERERZR  URER
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to REMNERNEELUREE R -
reduce the cost of capital.
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group BHFNABREARAERE  AEExEE
may vary the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue BURS TRRERA RS S5 - BITHRS
new shares or sell assets to reduce debt. HEZEENRDVER -
The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. AREFBREEBBLHLRHEEERE
This ratio is calculated as total borrowings divided by total R oo ZLh RTYIRIE B EREG AREZR B 58

equity. HE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Capital management (Continued)

The gearing ratio is as follows:

3

BTSRRI E(E)

Bt 7 [ B B B ()

3.2 EREE (&)

BEAGLEMT :

As at 31 December

MW12A31H
2022 2021
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Total borrowings BEBRE 347,015 339,169
Total equity BT 1,605,595 1,621,919
Gearing ratio (%) BEBAELR%) 22% 21%

(i) Loan covenants

Under the terms of the major borrowing facilities, the Group is

required to comply with the following financial covenants:

e tangible net worth of the Group shall not at any time be

less than of HK$500 million,

e external gearing ratio of the Group shall not be more than

0.7,

e the ratio of earnings before interest expenses, taxes,
depreciation and amortisation-to-Interest expenses of the

Group shall not be less than 20, and

e assets value of the Group shall not be less than liabilities.

The Group has complied with these covenants throughout the

year.

3.3 Fair value estimation

The fair values of current financial assets, including cash and
cash equivalents, restricted cash, deposits for bank borrowings
and trade and other receivables, as well as current financial
liabilities including trade and other payables and current
bank borrowings approximate their carrying amounts due
to their short maturities. The fair value of non-current bank
borrowings approximate their carrying amounts, as the impact

of discounting is not significant.

(i) Fair value hierarchy

The Group has classified its financial instruments into the three

levels prescribed under the accounting standards.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and out of fair

value hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting period.

(i)

B3

(i)

BN
RETIZEEREGNR  AEEAET
AT B #5385

o AEEEWEEFENETMEHRERD
{00 EETT -

e AEENBEEBEHLETEER
0.7

o AREFEMFEHRZT  HHE WEXK
BHEAEFER SR YL ERRE
E20 @ &

o AEBEEEBENERAERE-

AEBRFERN—EEST

%E R o

DNABEEME
RREMARE  RBEeREE(EFR
ERBECFEY  XRHBRE - RITE

ENREURE SR EMmEERIR) &R
PeRAB(ERES REMEMNKIAN
REHSRITERE )R BEELRAE
HE - ARBEBREFENK - JEEIHRTT
fEENAREBEEEREERS -

DMREEER
AEBEREFEANRESES
DR={EER -

h T

.

\}

~

AEBREABRRRBERRERRAE
EERNEAREDL -
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3

(i)

(ii)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair
value, by the levels of inputs to valuation techniques. The
inputs to valuation techniques are categorised into three levels
within a fair value hierarchy, as follows:

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets is based on quoted market prices
at the end of the reporting period. The quoted
market price used is the current bid price. These
instruments are included in level 1.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are
not traded in an active market is determined
using valuation techniques which maximise
the use of observable market data and rely as
little as possible on entity-specific estimates.
If all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is
included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based
on observable market data, the instrument is
included in level 3.

During the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, all the
resulting fair value estimates of the Group's financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are included in level 3 during
the year. For transfers in and out of level 3 measurements see
(iii) below.

Valuation techniques used to determine fair values

For unlisted equity investments, specific valuation techniques
used to value financial instruments include: discounted cash
flow analysis and recent transaction price.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

B HP RN E(E)

3 BXERERE@)

3.3 A REBEMETE)

(i) Fair value measurements using significant unobservable (iii) FAERTITEEMASEBENAAEBE

inputs (level 3)

There is no change in level 3 items for the year:

SFTE(E=E)
FRAREFE=—EIEE #

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

2022 20214

12A31H 12A31H

HK$°000 HK$'000

FERT TET

Unlisted equity investments JELETREREE 33,621 33,621

(iv) Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value

(iv) hEBAHBREAABENRR

The following table summarises the quantitative information TRMME=ZBAABEFEMHAEKX
about the significant unobservable inputs used in level 3 fair T ERE ABBENELER -

value measurements.

Un-observable Range of inputs
Description Fair value as at 31 December  inputs (probability-weighted average)
it R12A31ENAAEE FTUBEERAHE WAYBEE(HEMETY)
2022 2021 2022 2021
Unlisted equity investments HK$'000 HK$'000
FETRRRE TER THET
[nvestment A* 23,621 23,621  Expected volatility 35% N/A
RAA* KR iyl
Risk-free rate 4% N/A
BRI X TER
Discount rate N/A 19% — 21%
e E FEA
Net profit rate N/A 17% — 19%
FHE ki
Investment B 10,000 10,000  Discount rate 19% — 21% 19% — 21%
®EB i
Net profit rate 22% — 24%  22% — 24%
Fil%

*  As there were recent transactions of the investment during the year in the * BAREXNREIET S FEMHK S  EFEGFE
market, the directors changed the valuation method from discounted cash B ZHBEE T RE T ERN BT SE
flow analysis to recent transaction price method. The directors are of the W% BEERR  OHRZEKTEEEE
view that the recent transaction price method is more appropriate to reflect RFEEH N A B o

the fair value of the investment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B R ERR M T (E)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(iv) Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value (Continued)
Relationship of unobservable inputs to fair value is as follow:
e The higher the discount rate, the lower the fair value.
e The higher the net profit rate, the higher the fair value.
e The higher the expected volatility, the higher the fair value.
e The higher the risk-free rate, the lower the fair value.

There were no significant inter-relationships between
unobservable inputs that materially affect fair values.

(v) Valuation processes
The finance department of the Group includes a team that
performs the valuations of non-property items required for
financial reporting purposes, including level 3 fair values. This
team reports directly to the CFO and the audit committee
(AC). Discussions of valuation processes and results are held
between the team, the CFO and AC at least once every six
months, in line with the Group's half-yearly reporting periods.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and judgments concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
judgments that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below.

Management estimated the ECL on trade receivables based
on estimation about risk of default and expected credit loss
rates of customers. Management applied judgments in making
the estimation and selecting the methodology and inputs used
in the ECL calculation, based on the customers’ credit risk
characteristics, financial position of major customers as well
as forward looking information. Details are disclosed in note
3.1(b).

In determining the NRV of inventories, the Group would
evaluate customers’ orders, the estimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. If
conditions which have impact on the NRV of inventories
deteriorate, additional allowances for write-down may be
required.

The Group determines the useful lives of property, plant and
equipment based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives of assets with similar nature and functions. The
estimated useful lives could be changed significantly as a
result of technical innovations and competitor actions in
response to severe industry cycles. The depreciation charge
will be increased when useful lives are less than previously
estimated. Write-off or write-down will be recognised when
the assets become technically obsolete or non-strategic.

BAgE S Hlat & M

ARARBEKHRLEMEZEERS
At kA BEREARBRTHAR
EHEHEEME -

AR B ORRAE L AT R A E - AR B
2 SRR ERRIOEREEERE
R TNl r] S B BN T EMKF
EAHEENBEREEFLERHE
BB A LR Y (T Be HI T

EEECDREATEFNENRAR LA
HEEBEXMYEE SR KRN ALY
FEEBRETHT - EFELBRBMAE
REREMEEBRTERANIA
R ABER  EEESREEFMNE
ERBEE TEFEPHNMBMARRIAR
AIRE MEE KL A HIET - FITRBRME
3.1(b) °

REEFENAZRFE  ~REKF
HEPRIE - T IRMFRARAHE
EMFENBARAE - WEEFERER
FENAMR B - BIZEFHRER I OB
G

AEEREEUEERDENYE - B
R EEH B AR F R B ELER
BEWE BERKEOAERSES -
% fh & A8 P 4 HA AT A8 R £ 1l 25 2 e
HERTEXBRNRFEFTRAMESL
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B
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (continued)

There are many transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate determination of income tax is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the current and deferred
income tax assets and liabilities in the period in which such
determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
and tax losses are recognised when management considers
to be probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences or tax losses can be
recognised. The outcome of their actual recognition may be
different.

The Group tests whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment on an annual basis. The recoverable amount of
CGUs was determined based on value-in-use calculations
which require the use of assumptions. The calculations use
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond
the five-year period are extrapolated using estimated growth
rates. These growth rates are consistent with forecasts
included in industry reports specific to the industry in which
each CGU operates.

Subsidiaries in the PRC are required to withhold income tax on
dividend declared out of profits earned after 1 January 2008
to the overseas immediate holding companies of the PRC
subsidiaries. The directors assessed the cash requirement
of the Group and the dividend policy of its major subsidiaries
established in the PRC, based on the Group’s business plan
and financial position. According to the assessments made by
the directors, a portion of the retained earnings generated by
these subsidiaries would be distributed in the near future and
deferred tax liabilities for withholding income tax were accrued
accordingly.
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(a)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BTSRRI E(E)

SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 oIER
The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as AEERITESATELCEREKSE - 8
the executive directors of the Group. The executive directors TEFEMAEENRNIBHRSE - ATE
review the Group’s internal reporting in order to assess RIEESEEIR - WARE B R VE L BLES
performance and allocate resources and have determined REHRNE MEECLENH - AEHE
the operating segments based on the internal reports that KESMNEFBEREERRE - DiHEE
are used to make strategic decisions. The Group's operating ERERFPEMEBENEULSEERH LR E
segments are aggregated into a reportable segment when EEMEREERFSIRH A IEH L F
they have similar economic characteristics associated EETPMBEAREREHA—ETR
with the production process, distribution channel and type Lo Bt MITEEEBEAERE
of customers, and satisfy all conditions and meet all the BHHE  TEFALSEMETRS S
aggregation criteria in HKFRS 8. Accordingly, the executive 2B ()VEERUE - R(i)yFBAEGRIE -
directors considered the nature of the Group's business and
determined that the Group has two reportable segments: (i)
mold fabrication and (ii) plastic components manufacturing.
The executive directors assess the performance of the HMITESRIELEE D HHIE A K EFE
operating segments based on their revenue and gross profit HOHMRER  BXB/FELELEDEFNE
and do not assess the assets and liabilities of the operating EREE-
segments.
Information of the reportable segments for the year is set out (a) FNAMEDHLBEREHINNAT -
as below:
Plastic components
Mold fabrication manufacturing Total
RARE EBANGEE @t
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
HK$"000 HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$'000
TERT THT TET FEx TET FEx
Revenue WA
Segment revenue AEUA 713,115 822,364 1,673,086 1,698,373 2,386,201 2,520,737
Inter-segment revenue S E A 5
elimination (106,880)  (116,339) - - (106,880) (116,339)
Revenue from external INREEMA
customers 606,235 706,025 1,673,086 1,698,373 2,279,321 2,404,398
Segment results and DEEERER
gross profit 160,133 191,557 381,142 377,610 541,275 569,167

Refer to consolidated statement of comprehensive income for
reconciliation of gross profit to profit for the year.

BERFAENRENNEE  F2H6
PR B ek -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
BB HRRIEE(E)

5

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) Information regarding the Group’s revenue by nature:

(c)

5

o EE R (E)

(b) ARAAKEREESDHBAER

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HLLEE

2022 2021

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FET

Sales of goods HERE @ 2,188,566 2,321,883
Modification income &g A 90,755 82,515
2,279,321 2,404,398

The Group's revenue is generated from contracts with
customers and recognised at a point in time.

Revenue of approximately HK$276,043,000 (2021:
HK$352,397,000) was derived from a single external
customer that contributing over 10% of the Group's revenue.
Such revenue is attributable to the plastic components
manufacturing segment.

Sales between segments are based on the terms and
conditions agreed by the respective segments’ management.

Information on revenue of the Group by geographical markets,
based on delivery location of the customers is as follows:

AEBPAREEFLAHN  UNREE
TR

#276,043,0005% 7T (20214 : 352,397,000
TOR AR B AEE I AFEE10% 8
B—HNAEF - ZWARE FEHAGR

e

fifR TR B2 Mgk o

7
)
ZN

(c)

DEPREHE DENEDBEEAS

o

% E

A

SEENT PR R E /KT
BRI DRABRINT -

Year ended 31 December

HZE12A318LLEE
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
PRC s 1,103,432 997,304
USA Ee 507,209 639,493
Europe BN 344,844 432,381
South East Asia and Hong Kong REEREH 295,802 276,695
Others Hit 28,034 58,525
2,279,321 2,404,398
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
B HIERRMTF(E)

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 2IFER @

(d) The non-current assets other than financial instruments, (d TEFESRIA B2 7MKRENE
investment in associates and deferred tax assets by location of ERIEEEMERDEELREEMEE
the assets are shown in the following: DURAIR

As at 31 December

M12H31H
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THTT
PRC HE 587,390 654,888
Vietnam fiEa] 36,336 7,428
Germany = 6,482 9,096
630,208 671,412

6 OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS - NET 6 HttWAREMKE—FEE

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HLLEE

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHEIT
Other income Hiplg A
Government grants BT B 25,677 23,881
Sales of scrap and surplus materials SHE BER R R R A R 13,073 24,807
Others Hip 5,863 3,181
44,613 51,869
Other gains - net Hiblzx — F8
Net foreign exchange gain/(loss) PE W Wz, (E518) F 58 13,952 (1,582)
Impairment of goodwill (note 15) EERE (Mt 15) (6,652) -
Gain on disposals of property, LEWE  BEREED
plant and equipment (note 32(b)) Wezs (H1aE32(b)) 2,053 2,077
Lease modification HEEZT 101 1,429
Gain on termination of lease contracts IR RS 61 -
Rent concessions HeER - 9,152
9,515 11,076
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
BB HRRIEE(E)

7 EXPENSES BY NATURE 7 BMBESTHEX

=

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A318LEE

192

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Changes in finished goods and RURK oh M B ah B
work in progress 104,611 (34,631)
Raw materials and consumables used R4 R K B FE m A 761,527 912,109
Employee benefit expenses (note 8) EEWAIFAY (ffeE8) 634,701 634,715
Subcontracting expenses RIEBH 156,533 189,391
Depreciation and amortisation T E N i 226,850 221,292
Transportation and travelling expenses BRI NERBEY 49,173 62,963
Water and electricity expenditures KEEA 59,410 56,156
Maintenance expenses HEB R 15,817 17,955
Other taxes and levies Hiii s 13,535 16,189
Operating lease payments (note 14(b)) BT ENIR (M aE14(p)) 8,557 12,332
(Reversal of allowance)/allowance FE(BERRD), BE
for inventories (2,753) 8,948
Advisory and legal service expenses Faa oA RER X 10,327 7,831
Security and estate management expenses R RYEEEE 9,969 7,811
Impairment of property, plant and W - BB REERE
equipment - 7,145
Commission expenses HeEH 7,708 6,986
Utilities and postage fees HELREE 5,970 6,142
Advertising and promotion fees XBHEER 6,343 5,351
Auditors’ remuneration 1% B 7 A
- Audit services —ZE R 3,567 3,611
- Non-audit services — IR ER - 500
(Reversal of impairment)/impairment loss ~ © gt &ZE CRERR), HE
on financial assets (note 18(a)) B8 (H 7 18(a) (3,316) 2,941
Custom declaration charges wMEAE 1,815 2,172
Donations B 2,719 1,631
Other expenses Hith 5k 12,636 12,047
Total cost of sales, selling expenses SHEMRZ - HERXR
and administrative expenses THEXAE 2,085,699 2,161,487

Note: Advisory services provided by related entities of the auditors of

HK$452,000 (2021: Nil) were included in advisory and legal service

expenses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

8 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

A RS R R P L (4]

8 EBEEMMAX

Year ended 31 December
HZE12A318LLEE

2022 2021

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET T

Wages and bonuses TERIEL 560,794 570,937
Pension costs — defined contribution RIREHRA — TREHFETE ()

plans (a) 20,719 18,969

Other social security costs H A4 R A 28,547 28,405

Other allowances and benefits H b2 Ak g 22,573 14,393

Share award scheme R 2 Eh T 21 2,068 2,011

634,701 634,715

(a) Employees in the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are required (a) AEEFEWEARNEESEEASEBH

to participate in a defined contribution retirement scheme
administrated and operated by the local municipal government. gl
The Group’s PRC subsidiaries contribute funds which are
10%-20%) of the average
employee salary for the year to the scheme.

calculated as 10%-20% (2021:

During the year ended 31 December 2022, no forfeited
contributions were utilised by the Group to reduce its
contributions for the current year (2021: Nil).

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had no contributions
payable to the scheme (31 December 2021: Nil).

7T B IR ROB VR TE BB R BUR IRET
AEBNFEMBARIEREEFA
FHHEH10% £20% (20214 :
20%)FTE M B ML B -

10% %

HE2022F12A31BIEFE @ A&EH
I 48 (5 FH SR U AL R A B AR 6 P 4L K S

(20214 : &) -

M2022%F12 8318 @ REEBEZTE
RFERHEE (20214128318 : &) -

ROIE® (%) BRAR] 2022F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S HP R E(E)

8 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (Continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group for the year include four (2021: four) directors
whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis shown in note

38. The emoluments payable to the remaining one (2021: one)

individual during year are as follows:

8 EETEFEX@

(b) AEHRSHMA L

FAN - AEEREERTMALTEIEDT
H(2021F : MEZ)EE - HBieE&#HR
MIEE3SFATSI RAI DT « £ - FERHER
—%2021F : —B) &= HMA LB
Eay/ NI

Year ended 31 December

BE12ANALEE
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Basic salaries, housing allowances, AEXREH - BEEER
share award scheme, other It 2@t &l
allowances and benefits in kind H )28 RE YR 2,305 2,066
Discretionary bonuses BB TEAL 1,095 1,585
Contribution to pension scheme RIRBET BN 18 18
3,418 3,669

The emoluments paid to this individual fell within the following

bands:

A AL ASBME N F T 51485

Number of individuals

A

Year ended 31 December
HZE12A31HLLEE

2022 2021
Emolument bands (in HK dollar) M&AE B GBT)
HK$3,000,001 - HK$3,500,000 3,000,001% 23,500,000/ 7T 1 -
HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000 3,500,001%c£4,000,0007%& 7T = 1

No emoluments were paid by the Group to this individual
as an inducement to join, or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office for the year (2021: Nil).

No retirement benefits were paid to or receivable by this

individual in respect of other services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company or its subsidiary

undertaking for the year (2021: Nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
B HIERRMTF(E)

9 FINANCE INCOME - NET 9 MBWA-FH

Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31BLEE

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHxT FHET
Interest income: FBUTA :
- Bank deposits —RITHER 7,525 5,440
- Financial assets at FVPL —BAnEEFEREES
AR EREE 15,811 19,073
- Loan to an associate —m—AEE R FREER 57 -
Finance income B AU A 23,393 24,513
Interest expenses: FEMX :
- Bank borrowings —iRITIEE (5,419) (2,814)
— Lease liabilities (note 14) —HEaBEM7E14) (4,619) (3,562)
Finance cost B 75 K AR (10,038) (6,376)
Finance income - net BRI A — R 58 13,355 18,137
10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10 FTEFHBEX
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HLLEE
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHxT FHET
Current income tax BIHAFT 1S3
- Hong Kong profits tax — EBRNNER 12,523 18,673
- PRC corporate income tax — P B EMEH 19,898 32,258
Total current tax expense ENERFH IE R X 44 B 32,421 50,931
Deferred income tax EEPTSF
- Hong Kong profits tax — BEFEM 691 (109)
- PRC corporate income tax — R ERER (1,263) (8,685)
Total deferred tax benefit EERIER AT (572) (8,794)
Income tax expense FeBimx 31,849 42,137
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10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability and is exempted from
Cayman lIslands income tax.

No provision for income tax in the British Virgin Islands (the
“BVI") has been made as the Group has no income assessable
for income tax in BVI during the year (2021: Nil).

Under the current Hong Kong Inland Revenue Ordinance, from
the year of assessment 2018/2019 onwards, the subsidiaries
in Hong Kong are subject to profits tax at the rate of 8.25% on
assessable profits up to HK$2,000,000, and 16.5% on any part
of assessable profits over HK$2,000,000.

PRC corporate income tax (“CIT") is provided on the
assessable income of entities within the Group incorporated in
the PRC, calculated in accordance with the relevant regulations
of the PRC after considering the available tax benefits. The
applicable CIT rate is 25% (2021: 25%). Certain subsidiaries
of the Group were recognised as “New and High Technology
Enterprise” and enjoy a preferential CIT rate of 15%.

According to the CIT Law, a withholding income tax of 10%
will be levied on the immediate holding companies outside
the PRC when their PRC subsidiaries declare dividend out of
profits earned after 1 January 2008. The immediate holding
companies of certain PRC subsidiaries have obtained Hong
Kong tax resident status, and a lower 5% withholding income
tax rate is applied.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

The taxation on the Group's profit before income tax differs
from the theoretical amount that would have arisen using the
main statutory tax rate applicable to profit of the Group due to
the following:

BTSRRI E(E)

10 FRri8 8B X (@)

BN SR B BR AT S B AR A A TR R
THsEMERAAREZENEREE
EEMEAENRERESETE

Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31BLEE

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TET
Profit before income tax b TS E A= A 258,758 324,520
Tax calculated at corporate income tax rate #25% ¥ FSHM ERAEH
of 25% 1B 64,690 81,130
Effects of: TAEENFE
- Different tax rates applied — RKEATRME (23,123) (31,617)
— Income not subject to tax — BARBKA (1,163) (907)
— Accelerated deduction of research and — WEEE B stk
development expenses (12,677) (12,308)
— Effects of tax rate change on deferred — HEREHHIELTRIENS
tax &= - 1,446
— Tax losses not recognised — KRR IEEE 2,651 3,372
— Expenses not deductible for tax — A HEAX 1,110 995
— (Over)/under provision in prior years — BEFE(BEEE) B
BT (26) 113
— Share of results of associates — (RS R A EE 387 (87)
31,849 42,137
11 EARNINGS PER SHARE 11 SREF
(a) Basic (a) E7

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit for
the year by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
in issue for the year excluding shares held for employee share
scheme (note 22).

BREXRBNIAFAENBFEAFAD
BTEAR(TEREMEERNFTEFE
Bt (FEE22) ) B M4 P9 BT & -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
BB HRRIEE(E)

11 EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued) 11 BRER

(a) Basic (Continued) (a) EA(E)

Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31BLEE

2022 2021
Profit for the year (HK$'000) FREMN(FAET) 226,909 282,383
Weighted average number of ordinary BEITEBRANETSE
shares issued (thousands) (F%) 829,557 830,328
Basic earnings per share (HK$) FRERER BT 0.27 0.34
(b) Diluted (b) #58
Diluted earnings per share approximates basic earnings per B E2022F k2021 F12H31B1EF
share for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 as the B SREERMNEGIRERRF K
impact of dilutive potential shares is immaterial. 1R TR EEEERMOTZERM -
12 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 12 REEE QN TINIKRE
Place of Proportion of
Name of entities incorporation ownership interest held Principal activity
ERER HEMEE  FrEREEREERLS FEEK
2022 2021
Motlles i Matrius Fisas Navarro, S.L. Spain 43% 43% Mold modification
services
Motlles i Matrius Fisas Navarro, S.L. T 43% 43% REEHRS
Shenzhen Sunmerry Technology Co., Ltd.  PRC 32% - Manufacturing and
("Shenzhen Sunmerry”) sales of e-cigarettes
RYFT BB AR AR (RYIFEE]) A 32% - FERHEESTE
In May 2022, the Group acquired 32% equity interests of R2022F5 8 » A& B ULEE R I 5= 1
Shenzhen Sunmerry for HK$12,380,000, resulting goodwill #12,380,000/8 JLHI32% X4 - BEUE
of HK$10,043,000 from the acquisition after purchase price BEERSEEZ B WEAREE10,043,000
allocation. BT °
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12 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Notestothe(ionsohdatedFﬁnancmlStauﬂnents(conﬂnued)

RIS ()

The carrying amount of the investments has changed as
follows:

BRERMEZSHOAT

12 REBEE QN TINERE (@)

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HILEE

2022 2021

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FAET

At the beginning of the year F) 16,296 16,176
Additions NE 12,380 -
Share of operating (losses)/profit FEIE & (1R ,/E 7 (2,347) 527
Dividends % 8 (355) (407)
Currency translation differences INESRRITEER (606) -
At the end of the year FR 25,368 16,296

The associates are private entities with limited liability and no

The Group has interests in the above two individually
immaterial associates which are accounted for using the equity
method.

o

BE AR ABEREELE
quoted price is available. =

/jﬁ_)\EE °

B WER

R B £t SR (B S E K EE R AR
H R 25 {5 P P

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31BLEE

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT T
Aggregate amounts of the Group's share of: AREEE(FIA T S IELEEE -
(Losses)/profit from continuing operations B4 7% (E518),/ % F (2,347) 527
Dividends [iesN (355) (407)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income e (BR) MWasiesE (2,702) 120
As at 31 December
M12831H8
2022 2021
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Share of net assets EhEEFE 15,325 16,296
Goodwill [EE= 10,043 -
Aggregate carrying amounts of individually BRI & A%k 4 A BBV ERE
immaterial associates ®iE 25,368 16,296
ROIE® (%) BRAR] 2022F

199



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
BB HRRIEE(E)

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13 Y% - MENRRKRE

Furniture,
fixture and
Leasehold Plant and computer Construction
Improvements ~ machinery  equipment Motor vehicles in progress Total
KA HEBR
HENXEE BEREE ElMRE "E ERIR &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET 0 TER 0 TER  TER  TER  TER
Year ended 31 December 2022 £2022F12731H
I35
Opening net book amount FOREFE 66,387 423,347 4,392 1,667 32,173 527,966
Currency translation differences  JMNEBFITEER (4,427) (31,395) (237) (57) (2,374) (38,490)
Additions NE - - 3,556 1,040 132,313 136,909
Transfers 2 44,759 91,660 - - (136,419) -
Disposals (note 32(b)) WEM#320)) (1,058) (2,154) (18) = = (3,230)
Depreciation charge ELH (29,205) (104,361) (2,948) (669) - (137,183)
Closing net book amount FERRRFE 76,456 377,097 4,745 1,981 25,693 485,972
At 31 December 2022 720225124318
Cost AR 254,615 1,049,788 42,668 8,493 25,693 1,381,257
Accumulated depreciationand  ZFHHTERFEE
impairment (178,159) (672,691) (37,923 (6,512) - (895,285)
Net book amount BHFE 76,456 377,097 4,745 1,981 25,693 485,972
Year ended 31 December 2021 & £2021512A31H
L5E
Opening net book amount ENREFE 70,821 457,927 7,282 152 20,721 556,903
Currency translation differences  SMEBRENEZR 1,646 11,893 58 3 660 14,260
Additions NE - - 1,447 1,961 100,100 103,508
Acquisition of business WiE£s - 4,751 42 - - 4,793
Transfers o 25,920 63,388 - - (89,308) -
Disposals e - (436) (28) - - 464)
Impairment FifE - (7,145) - - - (7,145)
Depreciation charge REXM (32,000) (107,031) (4,409) (449) - (143,889)
Closing net book amount ERREFE 66,387 423,347 4,392 1,667 32173 527,966
At 31 December 2021 720215124318
Cost WA 234,985 1,085,311 45,722 7,653 32173 1,405,844
Accumulated depreciation and 2 HERFE
impairment (168,598) (661,964) (41,330) (5,986) - (877,878)
Net book amount REFE 66,387 423,347 4,392 1,667 32,173 527,966
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
B HIERRMTF(E)

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 13 % - BMERRE @)

Depreciation charges were included in the following categories WESHFAERAO T ER -
in the profit or loss:

Year ended 31 December

HZ128318LLEE
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHxT FET
Cost of sales SHE AR 121,094 125,595
Administrative expenses THHAX 16,002 18,196
Selling expenses HEMX 87 98
137,183 143,889
14 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASES 14 FREEERHEE
(a) Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance (a) REHEEEBREIRNSE
sheet
As at 31 December
M12A31H
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT T
Right-of-use assets FEHEEE 112,316 101,601
Lease liabilities HEEE
Current E 75,377 81,035
Non-current FEE 40,841 23,432
116,218 104,467
The Group leases various offices, warehouses, equipment AEEHEZHEHBEAE - BE - RER
and vehicles. Rental contracts are made for fixed periods of 6 B o BAEEHIR A61E A =84
months to 8 years.
Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and HE L EREEEE W EHEF ZIETE
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The PR R GHE - REAAFRFEEERE
lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than AR IR A 25 O - FH B 1p sk 30 4 e AN (A
the security interests in the leased assets that are held by Ko  HEBESKTABEEENIEE

the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for on °
borrowing purposes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

AU BRI (8)
14 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASES (Continued)

(a) Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance sheet
(Continued)

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability when they are not short-term and not for
low-value assets. Additions to the right-of-use assets during
the year were HK$105,256,000 (2021: HK$92,456,000).

(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of

14 EFREEEREE @)

(a) REHEEEBEREINESE @A)
MEETBEHIREEEELE B
RRERAESERBERARE - FNFE

{# FA#E & E105,256,000/8 7T (20214 -
92,456,000/ 7T) °

(b) REPHERE W EREDNEHR

comprehensive income

Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31ALLEE
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets {FREZETESH
- Charged to cost of sales — BEER AR 67,594 53,855
- Charged to administrative expenses — BTNk 14,061 15,792
Expense relating to short-term and low- HEHNMEEEEEHERE
value assets leases (note 7) MR (E7)
- Charged to cost of sales — BEER AR 6,813 10,663
- Charged to administrative expenses — BTNk 1,744 1,669
Rent concession HEER - 9,152
Lease modification (note 6) MEET(Hite) 101 1,429
Gain on termination of lease contracts EIEFRA M (HiE6) 61 -
(note 6)
Interest expenses (note 9) BRI (HE9) 4,619 3,662

he total cash outflow for leases were as follows:

(c) HEMNRER

REAMNT -

Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31BLEE

2022 2021

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

Principal elements of lease payments HENTOEAEEH D 76,906 71,898

Interest portion of lease payments HEMTORMB IS 4,619 3,562

Short-term and low-value assets leases fSHIREKEBEBEMBEMNZ 8,557 12,332
payments

90,082 87,792
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
B HIERRMTF(E)

15 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 15 B EE

Computer Customer
software relationships Goodwill Total
ERRH EFE% 5k S st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TART TART TART TART
Year ended 31 December 2022  #Z20225128310 L EE
Opening net book amount FUREFE 21,410 2,943 7,393 31,746
Currency translation differences  SMNEHENEZE (1,491) (236) (741) (2,468)
Additions NE 4,869 - - 4,869
Impairment charge (c) HES i) - - (6,652) (6,652)
Amortisation charge BHETH (7,708) (304) = (8,012)
Closing net book amount FERREZEE 17,080 2,403 - 19,483
At 31 December 2022 M2022%512R31H
Cost B AR 60,470 2,912 6,785 70,167
Accumulated amortisation and ZEEERRE
impairment (43,390) (509) (6,785) (50,684)
Net book amount BREFE 17,080 2,403 - 19,483
Year ended 31 December 2021  #Z20215128318LEE
Opening net book amount FONEMFE 23,242 - 899 24,141
Currency translation differences  SMNERRITEZR 599 98 136 833
Additions NE 5,086 - - 5,086
Acquisition of business I 15 - 3,084 6,358 9,442
Amortisation charge BESH (7,517) (239) - (7,756)
Closing net book amount FRIEEZE 21,410 2,943 7,393 31,746
At 31 December 2021 20215128318
Cost B AR 60,851 3,182 7,393 71,426
Accumulated amortisation TN (39,441) (239) - (39,680)
Net book amount BREEE 21,410 2,943 7,393 31,746
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
BB HRRIEE(E)

15 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (cContinued) 15 B EE (@)

(a) B HF ABmm TR -

(a) Amortisation charges were included in the following categories

in profit or loss:

Year ended 31 December
HZE12A31ALLEE

2022 2021

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHExT FHIT

Administrative expenses THHAX 7,298 7,517
Cost of sales SHER A 714 239
8,012 7,756

(b) Impairment tests for goodwill

Goodwill arose from the acquisition of 100% equity interest
in TK Mold Germany GmbH (“TKMG") in 2014 and the
silicone business from Techco Silicone & Technology Co., Ltd.
("Silicone Business") in 2021.

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined based
on value-in-use calculations. The calculation uses pre-tax cash
flow projections based on financial forecasts prepared by
management covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond
the five-year period are extrapolated using the estimated
growth rates stated below.

The following table sets out the goodwill and key assumptions
used for value-in-use calculation for those CGUs that goodwill
allocated to:

(b) FIERE R

72 E 2014 4 B8 TK Mold Germany
GmbH ([ TKMG 1) 100% A% # } 2021 4
WEREMESEREMRER QAN
BEB((HEBEKDESE -

ReEABUNAKEESEIREER
BEFEETE -Z T EREEEERH
MEDFHENOPBHEA - ERATATER
EREBAEL -BBRIFHENES
MEFERTARGEFHEREES

TR ARAEZFEDERENR
CELBUNERBENHEREIEZR

.
Bl

Silicone

Business TKMG

ERBE® TKMG
31 December 2022 2022%F12H31H
Goodwill net book value (HK$'000) FEREFE(TAT) - =
Net profit margin (%) FEFIE (%) 4% 7%
Revenue growth rate (%) AR R (%) 9% 2%
Pre-tax discount rate (%) AT AL IR & (%) 19% 17%
31 December 2021 2021F12H31H
Goodwill net book value (HK$'000) HEREFE(TET) 6,358 1,035
Net profit margin (%) FFIE (%) 6% 9%
Revenue growth rate (%) U AR R (%) 10% 3%
Pre-tax discount rate (%) AT AL IR & (%) 12% 20%
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15 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Management has determined the values assigned to each of
the above key assumptions as follows:

Assumption Approach used to determining values

Net profit margin  Based on past performance and
management’s expectations for the
future.

Revenue growth  Average annual growth rate over the
rate five-year forecast period; based on

past performance, management’s
expectations of market development,
current industry trends and including long
term inflation forecasts for each territory.

Pre-tax discount Reflect specific risks relating to the

rate relevant segments and the countries in

which they operate.

The impairment charge of HK$5,890,000 arose in the Silicone
Business resulting from decrease in sales order. The Group
has considered and assessed reasonably possible changes for
key assumptions. No class of asset other than goodwill were
impaired.

As at 31 December 2022, the recoverable amount of the
Silicone Business was HK$33,898,000.

The impairment charge of HK$762,000 arose in TKMG
following a decision to reduce the sales of spare parts to
customers in Europe. TKMG will continue to focus on the
provision of repair and maintenance services to customers in
Europe. The Group has considered and assessed reasonably
possible changes for key assumptions. No class of asset other
than goodwill was impaired.

As at 31 December 2022, the recoverable amount of the TKMG
was HK$11,367,000.

5 |MILEE (&)

EHECHRESE T L TREH
BENT :
B mEEEFRASE

JFRI R REBERRLREEEY
RRHFEH -

WABRE TN AR g
EHEE  REBER
R EREHTSRR
M - BATEBS
R 5 E KRR
BRI -

BAAAR R REREABSFLELE
PrEBREREON AR

G o
AA

=
2,

HEFERVEREBEBRES H

5,890,000/ T - "EBE 2 EE R HE
BREMNGIEBELSE o BEFE LU
MEEERHIRRE -

M2022512 A31H @ B EE AU [E
4 %8/533,898,000/8 7T °

EE R mMBUNE P HEBEREE -
TKMGRE S A762,000/8 7T ° TKMG
BB TR RBUNE P RE 1S RIR
ER - AEBEEERTHEEZTERR
MEBELES - MEFBUINNEE
¥aRIHIRRE -

M2022612 A31H » TKMGHIRJ Y @l &
%5/411,367,000/8 7T °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
B HERERME(E)

16 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 16 ZEAE PSR T A
As at 31 December
R12H31H
2022 2021
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Financial assets EREE
At amortised cost WE SRR E
— Trade and other receivables — B REMERGIE
(excluding non-financial assets) (TREEEREE) 294,393 365,040
- Restricted cash — XRHRE - 1,231
- Deposits for bank borrowings — RITEENZRS 157,138 174,437
— Cash and cash equivalents —RekReEEY 1,114,456 1,027,568
At fair value BARBERE
- Financial assets at fair value —RARBEFZEEHE
through profit or loss FFABEHNESREE 33,621 33,621
Financial liabilities cHEE
At amortised cost BB AT E
- Trade and other payables — B REMERMNFIE
(excluding non-financial liabilities) (TEEETRAas) 265,627 305,636
- Bank borrowings — RITEE 347,015 339,169
- Lease liabilities —HEAR 116,218 104,467
The Group's exposure to various risks associated with the AEBHEMNESH T EABENZIER
financial instruments is discussed in note 3. The maximum MK zE3stim - RIEEHIKR ZAEE
exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period is the R A LN SEEMEENRAE -
carrying amount of each class of financial assets mentioned
above.
17 INVENTORIES 17 78
As at 31 December
MW12A31H8
2022 2021
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Raw materials R4 ¥
— At cost — IR 45,957 49,093
- At NRV — KA ERFE 320 643
Work in progress F- K G
- At cost — R 271,608 296,288
- At NRV — A ERRE 12,367 42,960
Finished goods SURK Gh
- At cost — B 61,497 105,053
— At NRV — RAEIRFE 113 1,607
391,862 495,644
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

17 INVENTORIES (Continued)

The cost of inventories for the year included in cost of
sales, selling expenses and administrative expenses were
approximately HK$827,101,000 (2021: HK$845,835,000),
HK$24,000 (2021: HK$410,000) and HK$36,260,000 (2021:

HK$40,181,000), respectively.

The Group reversed HK$3,764,000 of previous inventory write-
down in 2022 (2021: HK$1,928,000), as the Group sold the
relevant inventories that had been written down to customers
at prices above the NRV. The amount reversed has been
included in ‘cost of sales’ in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income.

18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

BTSRRI E(E)

17 & @)

FA-FAHERAE HERI KT
R SZ 77 B R A 2 Bl 49827,101,000
7 7 (2021 £ : 845,835,000 JT )
24,0007 7T (20214 : 410,000 7T) &
36,260,000 7¢ (20214 : 40,181,000
BIT) °

20224 - 7N & E # E 5L R TF B #OR
3,764,000 7T (2021 4 : 1,928,000/8
7o) - TR AN E B B MU AR BT E A
ARTERFENERLEETER - &
P BEFAGHGEENEERN [HEK
K] o

18 ES R HMEBWFRIR

As at 31 December

R12A31H
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Trade receivables (a) & 5 e FNIE a) 297,701 373,807
Less: allowance for impairment T OB S (9,668) (14,272)
Trade receivables, net B EWN G IEERE 288,033 359,535
Export tax refund receivables i R T FE U SR IE 2,369 4,608
Prepayments and deposits (b) AN RIBRIES (D) 36,643 42,247
Value-added tax recoverable A UG [O] (B R 9,822 5,165
Advances to employees =Y =E=EN 3,200 3,675
Loan to an associate (note 35(e)) M — S R R E (M 735(e) 2,297 -
Others Eb 863 1,830
343,227 417,060
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
B HERERME(E)

18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 18 B 5 K& H fth FE WX IE (@)

(a) Trade receivables (a) BZFEWFIE
The credit period granted to customers is generally between BYFEFHEEH RN FE30F0H -
30 and 90 days. The ageing analysis of the trade receivables BHORWFIESHEE HHENRE DT
from the date of sales is as follows: M :

As at 31 December

M12H318
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TFET
Less than 3 months =EAUA 281,734 344,310
More than 3 months but not BiE={ BT BB —5F
exceeding 1 year 15,539 28,132
More than 1 year iR —F 428 1,365
297,701 373,807
Movements for the Group's allowance for impairment of trade REEE 5 MW GRIE R R E B 2 E)
receivables are as follows: T
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HLLEE
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT TFET
At 1 January ®1A1H 14,272 11,258
(Decrease)/increase in loss allowance TEREREE D) /L
recognised (3,316) 2,941
Receivables written off during the year as £ P & 4 % Uk [] 1 #f 85 69
uncollectible JE W SR TE (845) -
Currency translation differences GNEESRRITE =R (443) 73
At 31 December M12A31H 9,668 14,272

(b) Prepayments and deposits mainly represent prepayments for (b) BEFERESTEZEREBEERMEMNTE
purchases of raw materials. RIFRIE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

B HP RN E(E)

19 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 19 RAREBEFEEHEEHTAE

PROFIT OR LOSS BHNERMEE
Financial assets mandatorily measured at FVPL include the BEESPBEARAREBAEFEEEEH

following:

ABGEHNEREERFETIEEA

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31ALLEE
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Unlisted equity investments (a) e LRI E (a)
- At beginning and end of the year — R FEH) R F R 33,621 33,621
Current assets REEE
Wealth management products (b) 1881 EE f (b)
- Beginning of the year — F 7] = -
— Additions — ANE 1,241,318 1,287,813
— Interest income recognised in — REZERHF BUA
profit and loss 15,811 19,073
— Disposals — BE (1,257,129) (1,306,886)
- End of the year — FX - -
(a) Fair value measurements (a) A AREERZ
For information about the methods and assumptions used EHAETIHLEMEGREARBENE
in determining fair value of the unlisted equity investments, AR ERBEROER - 528333 -

please refer to note 3.3.

(b) The wealth management products were placed in banks in (b) B ERTFERPBEMIRIT  (FIREE

the PRC for cash management purposes and with effective BR®%  BBEFMNENF24%ZE45%
interest rates ranging from 2.4% to 4.5% (2021: 2.0% to 3.9%) (20214 : 2.0% E3.9%) * WH/NEA
per annum and mature within six months. MEIH] o
20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 20 BERBEEEY
As at 31 December
M®12H318
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Cash and bank balances (a) e NIRRT R (a) 1,271,594 1,203,236
Less: deposits for bank borrowings B RITEENRS
(note 26(a)) (f17£26(a)) (157,138) (174,437)
Less: restricted cash B ZBREIR - (1,231)
Cash and cash equivalents HERIRESZEEY 1,114,456 1,027,568
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BT BRKRME(E)

20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

(@) The cash and bank balance are denominated in the following

20 RERBREZEEYm)

(a) BRERRITHEBRUATIIEREFE :

currencies:
As at 31 December
®12A31H
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHBT
RMB AR 1,126,096 1,019,318
usD E 81,302 163,115
EUR BT 21,503 10,662
HK$ BT 36,827 9,939
Others HAith 5,866 202
1,271,594 1,203,236
21 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM 21 BRAR B0 %E
Number of Nominal Share
ordinary shares value premium Total
ZEREE H{E B3 = 1E HwEt
thousands HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tk TET T T
Authorised EE
As at 1 January 2021, 31 December 220211818 ~ 2021F12A4
2021 and 31 December 2022 318 K2022F12A318 2,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid BRTRAR
As at 1 January 2021, 31 December 720211718 ~ 2021%124
2021 and 31 December 2022 31HR&2022F12A31H 833,260 83,326 251,293 334,619

(a) All shares issued rank pari passu with each other.

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

22 SHARES HELD FOR EMPLOYEE SHARE SCHEME

B HP RN E(E)

22 HEERMGEESFENRD

2022 2021
Number of Total Number of Total
shares consideration shares  consideration
BHHE RELE BinEE RERSE
(thousands) HK$'000 (thousands) HK$'000
(FH) TER (Fi) TET
At 1 January 2,932 10,416 2,932 10,416
Additions 1,646 3,985 - -
At 31 December 4,578 14,401 2,932 10,416

The Group acquires the Company’s shares through its trustee,
Bank of Communications Trustee Limited (the “Trustee”), for
the Share Award Scheme (note 25). The total consideration
paid for acquisitions of these shares is presented as a
deduction from equity of the Company. These shares are held
by the Trustee for the purpose of granting share to be awarded
under the Share Award Scheme.

23 RETAINED EARNINGS

N

AEEBZBEZTEARBRITELEEAR
A ZFEADBERRRRD - AR
Petn 2B ET 81 (M13E25) - BEZFKRN
MENKREBREES 2 AEARFER
RHRR - ZRFRDHBARZTEARTEA - AR
IRt BE At B th A {0 228 -

23 RERA

Year ended 31 December

BE12A3MALEE
2022 2021
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
At 1 January ®1A1H 1,096,484 944,326
Profit for the year F A 226,909 282,383
Dividends paid (note 317) BRIRE(HEE31) (94,991) (111,657)
Transfer to statutory reserves (note 24(a)) B4 % 55 G248 (fi:124(a)) (12,531) (18,568)
At 31 December »W12H31H 1,215,871 1,096,484
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S HP R E(E)

24 OTHER RESERVES

24 HEfhfEE

Shares-based Currency

Statutory payments translation
reserves reserve reserve Total

NRGBHER

EERE MR RE EHmE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER
At 1 January 2022 H2022F181A8 131,035 5,261 64,936 201,232
Share-based payment expenses AR AEBRNNZFEX - 2,068 - 2,068
Transfer to statutory reserves (a) EEZEETH G 12,531 = = 12,531
Currency translation differences  SMNEHEFEZR - - (146,325) (146,325)
At 31 December 2022 M2022512A31H 143,566 7,329 (81,389) 69,506
At 1 January 2021 #2021%1518 112,467 3,250 10,309 126,026
Share-based payment expenses LR AEBENHHEX - 2,011 - 2,011
Transfer to statutory reserves BEZEATRE 18,568 - - 18,568
Currency translation differences ~ IMNERRITEZR - - 54,627 54,627
At 31 December 2021 720215128310 131,035 5,261 64,936 201,232

(a) Statutory reserves

(a) JEERE

25

In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations of
the PRC, the PRC subsidiaries of the Group should make
appropriation of not less than 10% of its net income after
tax to a statutory reserve. Further appropriation is optional
when the accumulated statutory reserve is 50% or more of its
registered capital. Upon approval from the board of directors,
the statutory reserves can be used to offset accumulated
losses of the PRC subsidiaries of the Group.

EMPLOYEE SHARE SCHEME

The Company adopted a share award scheme on 25 February
2019 (the “Share Award Scheme"”) as a means to recognise
the contribution by the Group’s personnel and to provide them
with incentives to retain them for the continual operation
and development of the Group. Pursuant to the Share Award
Scheme, the vesting period of the awarded shares is 5 years
from their respective grant dates.

Fair value of the awarded shares granted represents the
market value of those awarded shares at their respective grant
dates.

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2022

REFEBABEEZRER  AREMF
B BN A E B RFRARNDR
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B R BN R A R B R BB
RAMREE -

25 [EE R HEHE

AKARR2019F 2 A25 AR AR D S2E
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

25 EMPLOYEE SHARE SCHEME (Continued)

The Group planned to use the shares held for employee share
scheme to award the grantees of the Share Award Scheme
(note 22). No share has been vested since the establishment of
the scheme.

Movements in the number of awarded shares are as follows:

B HP RN E(E)

25 EERHBEE (&)

AEEGEERREERND KA
Pt B2 ) A 1) B2 B =t B (B 5 22) MO AR
A o BRIFTEIAK - BIERND D ER
J% o

BEHBHREEBOT :

Year ended 31 December
HZE12A31ALLEE

2022 2021
At 1 January M1A1H 2,691,974 2,932,000
Granted B 1,886,026 -
Forfeited SR = (240,026)
At 31 December M12H31H 4,578,000 2,691,974

Awarded shares granted and outstanding have the following
grant dates and vest dates with zero exercise price:

ERE R AITEERBRNA TR
BHkGFEEY  TEERT

Number of Number of Number of

shares shares shares

Grant date Vest date granted forfeited outstanding

& R REMS

&H B FERH ROEE R4 & B RHHE

31 January 2019 31 January 2024 1,153,815 (138,271) 1,015,544
20191 A31H 2024F1A31H

20 January 2020 31 January 2025 1,811,792 (135,362) 1,676,430
20201 A20H 20251 A31H

20 April 2022 19 April 2027 1,886,026 - 1,886,026
202244 A20H 202744 A19H

Total 4,578,000

st

The Group has to estimate the expected retention rate of the
share award scheme in order to determine the amount of
share-based compensation expenses charged to profit or loss.
As at 31 December 2022, the expected retention rate was 94%
(2021: 100%).

AEEAMFRD EEESNTERET
X PEFBBENBRONARG AER
RFEEMY 258 - K20224128318 -
TEHAEE TF R 594 % (20214F : 100%) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BT RN (E)

26 BORROWINGS 26 B E
As at 31 December
M12A318
2022 2021
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Non-current JE BN HA
Bank borrowings — unsecured BITEE — | 149,327 215,829
Less: current portion of non-current B SERNEREE R REN S o
borrowings (88,784) (70,889)
60,543 144,940
Current BpHA
Bank borrowings — secured (a) RITIEE — B () 116,060 123,340
Bank borrowings — unsecured RITIEE — EIEH 81,628 -
Current portion of non-current borrowings FEBNEAE E R R EN 29 88,784 70,889
286,472 194,229
Total borrowings BERARE 347,015 339,169

(@) As at 31 December 2022, bank borrowings amounting to
HK$116,060,000 (2021: HK$123,340,000) were secured by
bank deposits of HK$157,138,000 (2021: HK$174,437,000).

(b) The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in
the following currencies:

(a) M2022 %12 A31H - |£RITEE
116,060,000 75 (20214 :123,340,000
7 7T ) LA SR 17 17 3k 157,138,000 78 7T
(20214F : 174,437,000/ 70 ) {E#E 48 -

(b) EEMNBREER TIEHHE

As at 31 December

M12831H8
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
HKS$ BT 136,380 50,000
UsD ETT 94,575 165,829
EUR BT 116,060 123,340
347,015 339,169

(c) All borrowings were at floating rates and the exposure of
the borrowings to interest-rate changes and the contractual
repricing dates at the balance sheet date is 6 months or less.
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Notestothe(ionsohdatedFﬁnancmlStauﬂnents(conﬂnued)

26 BORROWINGS (continued)

(d) The borrowings are repayable as follows:

RIS ()

26 5 & (&)

(d EEARATHRAEER

As at 31 December

R12H31H
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Within 1 year 195K 286,472 194,229
Between 1 and 2 years 15224 60,543 85,889
Between 2 and 5 years 2E54F - 59,051
347,015 339,169

(e) As at 31 December 2022, the effective weighted average
interest rates was 1.79% (31 December 2021

annum.

0 0.91%) per

(e) M2022%12A31H ' EEMETFETF

BRI R H1.79% (2021 €12 4318
0.91%) °

(f) The fair values of the borrowings are not materially different h BEEMNAREERERAABEYEERE
from their carrying amounts as they are either short term in B REAZSEERBEHUHENZE
nature or the interest payables on these borrowings are close BEMEMFEERRITHISFER -
to the current market rates.

27 DEFERRED INCOME 27 BEZEW A

2022 2021

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

At 1 January R1A1H 61,316 46,421
Granted i dun 3,044 26,498
Recognised in the profit or loss RIBRER (16,307) (13,306)
Currency translation differences GNESRRITE =R (4,641) 1,703
At 31 December M®12A31H 43,412 61,316

The amount represented various grants by government

authorities in the PRC.

&R BB R LA 2 B o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S HP R E(E)

28 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

28 EZ R HEMENRIER

As at 31 December

MW12A31H
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Trade payables (a) & 5 e FH(a) 250,007 288,192
Wages and staff welfare benefits payable ENTEREERF 73,223 84,813
Accrual for expenses and other payables JEETF S M EAth FE A 5RIB 15,620 15,071
Contingent consideration (b) KRB (b) = 2,373
Other taxes payable H e IE 9,751 8,753
348,601 399,202

(a) The ageing analysis of trade payables based on the goods/

services receipt date is as follows:

FREe DI T

(a) BHEMNFEBEEZEER,RBELR RN

As at 31 December

R12A31H
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
0 - 90 days 0£90H 194,821 217,922
91 - 120 days 91&120H 34,080 40,168
121 — 365 days 1212365H 16,200 24,486
Over 365 days Him365H 4,906 5,616
250,007 288,192

(b) As at 31 December 2022, the contingent consideration has
been derecognised as the Silicone Business did not meet
the committed sales amounts as agreed in the acquisition
agreement. A gain of HK$2,373,000 was included in other

income.

29 CONTRACT LIABILITIES

Contract liabilities of the Group mainly arise from the advance
payments made by customers related to contracts with
customers while the underlying goods are yet to be provided.
The decrease in contract liabilities was mainly attributable to a

decrease in mold fabrication business.

AEARABUYA o

29 SN EE

BERE TR -

(b) 20229128318 » AREBEBIL K
RWE R AR EEXTAEEEE &
BUBERERSANRE - Yez§2,373,00058 T

AEBENAHNBEETIZMEARREHER
FEAOMBENEmR TP MrEMN
REELE - GHRBERLIETEARERA

Costs incurred to obtain a contract was not recognised as ESEOMEENKAT EERAEE
asset because the period of amortisation is less than one year. B TYEREBEAROR—F -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
BHEIIERERNEE(E)

29 CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued) 29 58 E@
Revenue recognised in the current reporting period relates RAFEHECEREEENRNEE
to carried-forward contract liabilities for sales of goods was SHBEEENINA A187,055,000%8 7T
HK$187,055,000 (2021: HK$197,537,000). (20214F : 197,537,000/ ) °
The aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to M2022F 12 A31H » BHHEHX
sales orders on hand that are partially or fully unsatisfied as at TR EFHEITENRSER AT
31 December 2022 was HK$814,192,000 (2021: HK$918,286,000). © % /814,192,000 7 7T (2021 F -

918,286,000/ 7T) ©

Management expects that 100% of the transaction price EIRETEH - BlE2022F12A31H ' &
allocated to unsatisfied performance obligations as of 31 BEEXTRBAREITNZZERP100%
December 2022 will be recognised as revenue during the BT ERSHEEZAEKRA - @B
next reporting period. The amount does not include variable BREXRHIATZERE -

consideration which is constrained.

30 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 30 EEFAEH
The analysis of deferred tax assets and liabilities is as follows: BEREEERBESTEAT :

As at 31 December

MW12831H
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHxT FHET
Before offsetting KA
Deferred income tax assets: BEFTBREE ¢
—to be recovered after more than 12 months  ~ — ¥ BB 1218 B2 4 6,399 9,197
— to be recovered within 12 months — B 128 A AlkE 11,335 10,080
17,734 19,277
Deferred income tax liabilities: FREMEMREE
- to be settled after more than 12 months — $REBBI12EFELEE (43,732) (44,074)
— to be settled within 12 months — BR2E A R&EE (3,681) (7,900)
(47,413) (51,974)
After offsetting KEHE
Deferred income tax assets REMEMEE 1,643 2,978
Deferred income tax liabilities EEMSHRERE (31,322) (35,675)
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30 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities

are as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
B HERERME(E)

30 IEZEFTSH (&)

BEEMEREERABNESMOT

Accrued
expenses
and Deferred

Deferred income tax assets Tax losses impairment income Total

FEEHBE S
EEFMBHREE REEE RAE ELWA @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR THT TEL
As at 1 January 2022 1202251418 2,325 7,755 9,197 19,277
Currency translation differences WERRITEZR 57 (488) (706) (1,137)
Recognised in profit or loss RERTER 2,825 (1,139) (2,092) (406)
As at 31 December 2022 #2022%12A318 5,207 6,128 6,399 17,734
As at 1 January 2021 ®2021F1/818 7,602 7147 6,963 21,712
Currency translation differences INERRMEZR 197 193 237 627

Recognised in profit or loss RERTHER

- Effects of tax rate change — HEREHTE (3,025) (307) - (3,332)
- Others —Hfp (2,449) 722 1,997 270
As at 31 December 2021 2021128318 2,325 7,755 9,197 19,277
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

30 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

BTSRRI E(E)

30 IEZLEFTISH (&)

Revaluation

surplus in

Accelerated related to

tax  Withholding business
Deferred income tax liabilities depreciation income tax  combination Total

HEKS

BHEEm
BEREHEE MEHBHE BNFmEH EfhRH% @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TEx TEx TEx
As at 1 January 2022 120221 18 (44,074) (7,900) - (51,974)
Currency translation differences INEBRITEZR 3,554 29 = 3,583
Recognised in profit or loss RIEEER (3,212) 4,190 = 978
As at 31 December 2022 720225124318 (43,732) (3,681) - (47,413)
As at 1 January 2021 7202151 A1H (47,218) (15,160) (8) (62,386)
Currency translation differences HERRITEZR (1,452) - 8 (1,444)

Recognised in profit or loss REZHER

- Effects of tax rate change — RxEHyE 1,886 - - 1,886
- Others — Hfth 2,710 7,260 - 9,970
As at 31 December 2021 720216 12A31H (44,074) (7,900) - (51,974)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses
carry-forward to the extent that the realisation of the related
tax benefits through the future taxable profits is probable.
As at 31 December 2022, no deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of the unused tax losses amounting to
HK$70,428,000 (31 December 2021: HK$53,333,000) as its
realisation is uncertain. Such tax losses were mainly incurred
from certain subsidiaries which are incorporated in Hong Kong
and may be carried forward indefinitely.

BEFMSHEEDARBRBEERE
AR RIERBE T IR mMAENRIEE
BHERAR - 202256128318 » K&
B 30 K 5t K 55 A 1 18 5 1870,428,000%8
7t (2021512 A31H : 53,333,000/ 7T)
BREEHIBEE - DHREZREFE
THREE BRABEBEEBEEDNEEARE
BEMAKYNETHBRAREELERRE
ER A4S -

ROIE® (%) BRAR] 2022F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S HP R E(E)

31 DIVIDENDS 31 KA
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31ALLEE
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Interim dividend paid of HK2.8 cents FRHARS BR AR R
(2021 Interim: HK5.4 cents) per 2.878l(20214F &
ordinary share 5.4 R 23,331 44,996
Proposed final dividend of HK8.6 cents EEREAR BIR T RA%S.6
(2021 Final: HK8.6 cents) per L2021 KE : 8.6/81L)
ordinary share 71,660 71,660
94,991 116,656

The dividends paid in 2022 and 2021 were HK$94,991,000
(HK11.4 cents per share) and HK$111,657,000 (HK13.4 cents
per share) respectively. A final dividend in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2022 of HK8.6 cents per share, amounting
to a total of approximately HK$71,660,000, is to be approved at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RIS ()

32 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS

(a) Reconciliation of profit before income tax to cash generated

from operations:

(a) BRATISBLAT @ F 8

REFR1S

32 At REREBRME

BBk

Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31BLEE

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Profit before income tax ¥ BT 15 %4 Bl A 258,758 324,520
Adjustments for: JAEE -
Finance income — net (note 9) B W A— 558 (A7229) (13,355) (18,137)
Depreciation of property, Y - BEREETE
plant and equipment 137,183 143,889
Impairment of property, W - BEL&ERE
plant and equipment - 7,145
Impairment loss of goodwill (note 6) R AR EEE(A76) 6,652 -
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FHEEETE 81,655 69,647
Amortisation of intangible assets B A 8,012 7,756
Gain on disposals of property, HEME - BEMERERHU
plant and equipment (note 6) @ (Hit6) (2,053) (2,077)
Gain on termination of lease BIER MY
contracts (note 6) (Hiate) (61) -
Derecognition of contingent BUBTERSUARE
consideration (2,373) -
Rent concessions HEER - (9,152)
Lease modification (note 6) HEBT(Hie6) (101) (1,429)
(Reversal of allowance)/allowance GE(BERRD) BE
for inventories (note 7) (Kiat7) (2,753) 8,948
(Reversal of impairment)/impairment loss & g&E CRERD ),/
on financial assets (note 7) WEBEAE7) (3,316) 2,941
Share award scheme (note 8) WeAn 22 @&t 21 (A77E8) 2,068 2,011
Share of net loss/(profit) of associates FE(EEE S N BIEE,
CaM ) #E 2,347 (527)
Changes in working capital: EEELED)
Inventories FE 106,535 (57,497)
Restricted cash ZRHIRE 1,231 (788)
Trade and other receivables B 5 NEMEYWIE 79,565 (99,256)
Contract liabilities BHEE (62,563) 17,563
Trade and other payables B 5 REAEAR (178,949) (11,209)
Cash generated from operations KETBIR S 418,482 384,348

RT&RE (ZR)

AR AT 20224 5
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CASH FLOWS (continued)

32 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

(b) In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from

disposals of property, plant and equipment comprise:

32 5B E

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MERME (&

(b) REHRERERA - HEWE  BFE
KR EHFREFIARLE -

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31HLEE
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEx T
Net book amount disposed of BHREREFE 3,230 464
Gain on disposals (note 6) e W (HaE6) 2,053 2,077
Proceeds from disposals HERNTSZIE 5,283 2,541

(c) The movements in liabilities from financing activities:

(c) REMELZBNAEE

Leases Borrowings Total
HE - k)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL FET FHET
As at 1 January 2022 H2022F181A8 104,467 339,169 443,636
Cash flows Remng
Principal amounts VNG (76,906) 15,131 (61,775)
Interest payments FBRR (4,619) (4,791) (9,410)
Other changes H
New leases FHE 105,256 = 105,256
Termination of lease contracts and lease BIFTHAREEER
modification (7,871) - (7,871)
Foreign exchange adjustments I 5% (8,728) (7,913) (16,641)
Interest expense FER% 4,619 5,419 10,038
As at 31 December 2022 12022%12A831H 116,218 347,015 463,233
As at 1 January 2021 2021FE181A8 98,630 282,235 380,865
Cash flows Bene
Principal amounts N (71,898) 62,974 (8,924)
Interest payments FERT (3,562) (2,814) (6,376)
Other changes Hip &
New leases g 92,456 - 92,456
Rent concessions and lease modification HeERREEER (10,581) - (10,581)
Foreign exchange adjustments [ R (4,140) (6,040) (10,180)
Interest expense FEAX 3,562 2,814 6,376
As at 31 December 2021 12021128318 104,467 339,169 443,636
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
B HIERRMTF(E)

33 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 33 HRAE

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had no significant

20226128318 « AEB W EFAE
contingent liabilities (31 December 2021: Nil).

A ARBE(2021F12A318 - #) -

34 COMMITMENTS 34 EiE
(a) Capital commitments (a) BEAEIE
The Group had the following capital commitments: AREEBATEARE
As at 31 December
R12A31H
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Additions of plant and equipment: RNERE MR
— Contracted but not provided for — BEREREE 22,489 52,231
(b) Operating lease commitments (b) REHERE
The Group leases premises under non-cancellable operating AEBBEBEAAIRHELLHEERREE
lease agreements. The Group had future aggregate minimum W o REBERBE A HELEHEES
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases as MHRREERERBBEOT
follows:
As at 31 December
R12H31H
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
Not later than one year —FR
— to related companies — T A A 1,743 5,054
— to third parties —FE=7 352 230
2,095 5,284

RTSHE () BRAOF 202255 223



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
BB HRRIEE(E)

35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS BJBEELIRS
(a) Names and relationship (a) BB R EIE
The following companies and individuals were related parties T RRIRERALAEZE2022F12 7
of the Group that have transactions or balances with the Group JNELEFEHRAEEBR ZEHRHAR
for the year ended 31 December 2022: EEEER
Name of the related party Relationship with the Group
BELFER BEAKE R
TK Technology Holdings Limited Entity controlled by Ultimate Shareholders
RIRSEEERAR RERRZEHIN TS
TK Technology (Shenzhen) Limited Entity controlled by Ultimate Shareholders
FOIRECRINDBR AR BERREZEH N E S
Shenzhen Sunmerry Associate
RIS /N
(b) Transactions with related parties during the year (b) FREBETNRZ S
The following transactions with entities controlled by Ultimate FRAAREEBARKRKELEGFNERET
Shareholders were undertaken by the Group during the year. R ST o

Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31BLEE

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$'000

TER FAET

Payment of lease liabilities XNHEHERE 69,744 74,713
Interest expense paid on lease liabilities HEBEMNENFERX 2,095 1,919

Operating lease expenses paid B EHERSE 5,418 4,322
Rent concessions HEER - (9,152)

Total (i) ) 77,257 71,802
(i) ~ The amounts mainly represented rental payments to TK Technology Holdings () ZFBIEEINEINEEERSRATREIR
Limited and TK Technology (Shenzhen) Limited for land and buildings, including BCEIDBRATEEIR BAREMEHH T
factory, office and other facilities purposes. The related additions of right- WRIEFHHESMNE - 5220228128318 1LE
of-use assets for the year ended 31 December 2022 were approximately B REEERBRNSE 468,725,000 7T (2021

HK$68,725,000 (2021: HK$79,384,000). £ : 79,384,000/ 7T ) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c) Outstanding balances arising from lease contracts with entities

controlled by the Ultimate Shareholders:

B HP RN E(E)

35 EBEARS &)

(c) ElRZERREFNNERNEEANE

HEHRERAER -

As at 31 December

MW12A31H
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Rental deposits Hekse - 10,913

(d) Key management personnel compensation

(d) TREEEAEHMH

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HILEE

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
Wages, salaries and bonuses IE - FHekits 24,079 28,176
Share award scheme % 1 BE R T &I 988 6380
Pension costs — defined contribution plans RBIRE K A—TE R G2 163 163
25,230 29,019

(e) Loan to an associate (e) MEtE N RIREERR
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Beginning of the year F9) = -
Loan advanced FERER 2,240 -
Interest charged U BLAI B 57 -
Balance at end of year FRES 2,297 -

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
provided loan to an associate amounting to HK$2,240,000
(RMB2,000,000), with interest rate of 6% for a term of six
months.

Indemnity

Each of the Ultimate Shareholders jointly and severally
has undertaken to indemnify and keep each of the Group's
companies fully indemnified against all claims and losses
suffered or incurred by any company of the Group as a result of
or in connection with, amongst others, the use of the land and
buildings owned by certain related companies by any company
of the Group as tenants, as these related companies have not
obtained the approval from the relevant authorities in relation
to the lease arrangements of such land and buildings.

HE2022912A318ILFE » AEER
Bt N B4R B 302,240,000/ T (AR
#2,000,0007T) * F|ZE6% * HAPR A7~ (E
ﬂ o

BREBRE HLE R @53 BA RS
M(ERmaH) AEEEMAR(ELSE
B)ERETHBARBRAN L RIET
MEAKREETARARIHELNME
REFBEAAASESARREHBER
EREFEEBE  RASZFHEEQ
AYRESHERRELZZ L RET
B Z BB

RTSHE () BRAOF 202255
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BT RN (E)

36 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT

OF THE COMPANY

(a) Balance sheet of the Company

36 ARFREERBERKFEED

(a) AAAEEEEBR

ll

As at 31 December

M®12A31H
2022 2021
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
it FET FET
Assets EE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R E AR E 228,384 226,316
Deferred income tax assets RIEMSTHERE 42 42
Total non-current assets IERBNEELREE 228,426 226,358
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries R SNGIE S 323,269 347,058
Cash and cash equivalents WE RS EEY 20,311 206
Total current assets MENVEEBTE 343,580 347,264
Total assets EELE 572,006 573,622
Equity fE=
Share capital R A 83,326 83,326
Share premium f& 10 = B 425,815 425,815
Shares held for employee share MEER M EEERN
scheme f& 15 (14,401) (10,416)
Other reserves H b e (i) 7,329 5,261
Retained earnings R HF| (ii) 69,470 69,636
Total equity AR 571,539 573,622
Liabilities =L
Current liabilities REBE
Other payables E MR 5RIE 467 -
Total liabilities BEAR 467 -
Total equity and liabilities EEkEEEE 572,006 573,622

Approved by the Board of Directors on 31 March 2023 and was

signed on its behalf:

Li Pui Leung
R

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2022
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36 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT

OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

(i) Other reserves of the Company

Other reserves represent share-based payments reserve.

36 ANAEERBRRFEEEDH @)

(i) ADBHEALREE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
BB ERR M TE(E)

HAbfE e AR M ERE R RS -

2022 2021

HK$000 HK$'000

THExT FHET

At 1 January B1A1H 5,261 3,250
Employee share schemes — EERMDETEI—

value of employee services BB RIGEE 2,068 2,011

At 31 December M12H31H 7,329 5,261

(ii) Retained earnings of the Company (i) A<D TR E5F

2022 2021

HK$°000 HK$'000

FExT FET

At 1 January ®1A1H 69,636 64,748

Profit for the year F A 94,825 116,545

Dividends B (94,991) (111,657)

At 31 December M12A31H 69,470 69,636

ROIE® (%) BRAR] 2022F
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37 SUBSIDIARIES

37 BB A =

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31
December 2022, all of which are limited liability companies:

AR AR2022F12 A31 BN EZEHEA

A(BA/BERRA)IIK

Place of Principal activities and Particulars of
Company name incorporation place of operation issued share capital Interest held
RS MK FEEBRCERE ERITRAFE BEER
TK Group International BVI Trading of plastic products 50,000 ordinary shares of 100%
(Hong Kong) Limited* and molds/HK USD 1 each
RISEER(FE)BRAR ERRAHE ZBEMREAZS/FE  50,000REREEIETNLER 100%
TK Plastic Products (Suzhou) PRC Manufacture of plastic Paid-in capital of HK$10,000,000 100%
Limited? products/PRC
RIZBEm(EMN) BB i HEEBHG,/ T H B & 710,000,000 T 100%
TK Mold (Shenzhen) Limited? PRC Fabrication of mold/PRC Paid-in capital of HK$132,000,000 100%
RIBACRINBRARN i BARUE/HE E & 75132,000,0007% 7T 100%
YD Mold (Shenzhen) Limited* PRC Fabrication of mold/PRC Paid-in capital of HK$10,000,000 100%
HREL(RINBERR R I BARE/HE EUYER10,000,000/7T 100%
TK Precision Plastics PRC Manufacture of plastic Paid-in capital of HK$166,000,000 100%
(Shenzhen) Limited* products/PRC
RIRETZCRINBR AR i HEEBHG,/ T H E )& 7166,000,0007%5 7T 100%
TK Precision Plastics PRC Manufacture of plastic Paid-in capital of HK$10,000,000 100%
(Huizhou) Limited? products/PRC
RIRENTZE (BN AR A i HEEBHG,/ T H E & 710,000,000 T 100%
TK Mold Germany GmbH Germany Fabrication of mold/Germany  Paid-in capital of EUR25,600 100%
TK Mold Germany GmbH =8 BARE /B E & A25,6008T 100%

* Shares held directly by the Company

* ARBRERFERD

@ Registered as wholly owned foreign enterprises under PRC law

o RIBPEEEEMAINEBELE

Cash and bank balances held in certain Asian countries
(including China) are subject to local exchange control

REFTEMNER(2ERE)FENERS
KAIRTTHE S E BT & HIMNEE HJER o
ZEERHBZFERMOE AL HE N
PR (EFEREBRIN) o 5 A G IS
FANBERAZERGINES RIRITEKD
8% T {8 4 920,786,000 7% Jt (2021 4F :
854,194,000/ 7T ) °

regulations. These regulations provide for restrictions on
exporting capital from those countries, other than through
normal dividends. The carrying amount of the cash and bank
balances included within the consolidated financial statements
to which these restrictions apply is HK$920,786,000 (2021:
HK$854,194,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
B HIERRMTF(E)

38 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 3B EEEFN R ER
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EERBESTHRAENE
The remuneration of every director and the chief executive is SEENESTHABNGTMES T -

set out below:
For the year ended 31 December 2022: BZE2022F128318LLFE :
Employer's

contribution
to retirement

Discretionary benefit

Name Fees Salary bonus scheme Total
LSRRI

#E He 7 BEEL  HEEHR st

HK$°000 HK$"000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$"000
TR TR TR TR TiEn

Executive Directors HTES

Mr. Li Pui Leung FHRAE 500 2,734 1,591 18 4,843
Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael (i) SEM% () 500 2,360 1,420 18 4,298
Mr. Lee Leung Yiu ZRE%E 500 1,554 812 18 2,884
Mr. Cheung Fong Wa RRELE 250 2,036 881 18 3,185
Independent non-executive BIKHITES

Directors

Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy BEIEL 321 - - - 321
Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong LENEE 321 = = = 321
Ms. Christine Wan Chong Leung ~ RZEL+ 321 - - - 321

2,713 8,684 4,704 72 16,173
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(Continued)

(Continued)

38 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’'s emoluments

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
B HERERME(E)

38 EETFARER @)

(a) EBRESTHRAEME (5

For the year ended 31 December 2021: BZE2021F12A318 LFE :
Employer's
contribution
to retirement
Discretionary benefit
Name Fees Salary bonus scheme Total
RINEFIE
#E e e BEFL  WEFHRR @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAR TRT TAR TAT
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Li Pui Leung FHREE 500 2,430 2,932 18 5,880
Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael (i) SEH%E () 500 2,086 2,547 18 5,151
Mr. Lee Leung Yiu TRB%E 500 1,427 1,405 18 3,350
Mr. Cheung Fong Wa REERE 500 1,685 1,555 18 3,758
Independent non-executive BIHTES
Directors
Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy B5TEt 320 - - - 320
Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong BENR L 320 - - - 320
Ms. Christine Wan Chong Leung PEETL+ 320 - - - 320
2,960 7,628 8,439 72 19,099

(i)  Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael is also the chief executive officer.

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

38 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(Continued)

(b) Directors’ other benefits

No retirement benefits were paid to or receivable by any
directors in respect of their other services in connection with
the management of the affairs of the Company or its subsidiary
undertaking for the year (2021: Nil).

None of the directors of the Company waived any emoluments
for the year (2021: Nil).

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors
as an inducement to joint, or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office for the year (2021: Nil).

No loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of the
directors, controlled bodies corporate by and connected
entities with the directors of the Company for the year (2021:
Nil).

Save for the transactions disclosed in note 35, there were no
significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation
to the Group's business to which the Company was a party
and in which a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.

BTSRRI E(E)

38 EETFARER @)

(b) ESHMWER

FA-EAESHERTEARFNE
Y 8 B =5 75 A B B L b AR %5 S AN B
FEWCRIRTRA (20214 « &) -

FR - BEARAESHRETMAHNE
(20214 : &) -

FA - ANEEBEERE SN T M B
- EARSIFEEMALEEKEAR
EMAREERHRESKIEABBHE
(20214 : &) o

FAR-BMEUNES  ZFEFEHE
ANEBLRERARREZTAHENERS
RBmANER  EERREMRZ 5 (2021
FE) -

PRETEESBPT B RR BN - MERKF
=S RS I NNTSIE 3] VAR S CIEERN
SEXBER BEARAEZERNETEH
BEAREREEAREMNEARS X%
HEREH -

ROIE® (%) BRAR] 2022F
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FIVEYEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

EFEMBEHBE
Year ended 31 December

BE12A31ALEE
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$"000
FHET FHET FET FET FTEx
Revenue WA 2,298,609 2,310,842 2,033,419 2,404,398 2,279,321
Profit for the year F R F 350,185 301,803 209,687 282,383 226,909

As at 31 December

M12831H

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET FET FEx
Total assets BERRE 2,163,489 2,324,543 2,572,311 2,851,160 2,697,523
Total liabilities BERE 1,088,031 1,133,078 1,177,756 1,229,241 1,091,928
Total equity BRET 1,075,458 1,191,465 1,394,555 1,621,919 1,605,595
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